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266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial
staterments of the Company for the financial vear ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the management of general takafui, family takaful and
{akaful investment-linked business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

RM 000

Net profit for the financial year 128,723

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other
than as disclosed in the financial staterments.

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial
year were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusuai
nature.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial
period.

The direcfors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of the current
financiat year.

MAYBANK GROUP EMPLOYEES' SHARE SCHEME

The Maybank Group Employees’ Share Scheme ("ESS”) is governed by the by-laws approved
by Maiayan Banking Berhad's ("MBB"} shareholders at an Exiraordinary General Mesting held
on 13 June 2011. The ESS was implemented on 23 June 2011 and is in force for a maximum
period of seven (7) years from the effective date for eligible employees and executive directors
within the MBB Group.
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ETIHIA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia}

MAYBANK GROUP EMPLOYEES’ SHARE SCHEME (CONTD.)

The maximum number of ordinary shares of RM1 each in MB8 available under the £ESS should
not exceed 10% of the total number of issued and paid-up capital of MBB at any point of time
during the duration of the scheme.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this
report are;

Dato’ Mohd Salleh Haji Harun {Chairman)

Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Vice Chairman) (Resigned on 18 Aprif 2012)
Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Alhabshi

Dato' Johan Ariffin

Zainal Abidin Jamal

Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid

L.oh Lee Scon

Gary l.ee Crist

Hans J. J. De Cuyper

Frank J.G Van Kempen (Appointed on 17 July 2012}

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Gary Lee Crist, Mr. Loh Lee
Soon and Mr. Hans J.J. De Cuyper shall refire at the forth coming Annual General Meeting
{"AGM" of the Company and being efigible, offer themselves for re-election.

Fursuant to Arlicle 102 of the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Frank J.G, Van Kempen
shall retire at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and being eligible, offers himseif for re-
election.

SHARIAH COMMITTEE
The Company is advised by a Shariah Committee {"SC"), whose composition is as follows:

Tan Sri Dato’ Sert (Dr.) Haji Harussani Haji Zakaria (Chairman)
Prof. Ratuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Alhabshi

Dr. tsmail Mohd @ Abu Hassan

Dr. Mohammad Deen Mohd Napiah

Dr. Ahcene Lahsasna

Sarip Adul

The SC met 6 times during the financial year.
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ETiQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' BENEFITS

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any
arrangement to which the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in or debeniures of the Company or any other body carporate,
other than as may arise from the share options to be granted pursuant to the MBB Group
Employee Share Scheme ("ESS"} of the ultimate hoiding company, MBB,

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to
receive a benefit (other than benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received
or due and receivable by the directors, or the fixed salary of a full time employee. of the
Company as disclosed in Notes 22 and 30 fo the financial statements) by reason of a contract
made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firrn of which he is a
member, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest,

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end
of the financial year in shares and options over shares of the ultimate holding company, MBB,

during the financial year were as follows;

Numbers of ordinary shares of RM1 each

1 January 31 December
2012 DRP* Bought Transfers 2012

Direct Interest:
Dato' Mohd Salleh Haji Harun 314,782 7,869 - - 322,651
Dato' Johan Arffin 128,337 8,362 23,6683 - 168,362
Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid 10,390 - - 18,285 28,685
indirect Interest:
Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid 22,751 - - {18,295) 4,458

*DRP = Dividend Reinvestiment Plan



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (CONT'D.)

* Transfer of shares held by a nominee to seif thus increasing direct hoiding by 18.295 and
reducing indirect holding by the same amount.

Number of Options over Ordinary Shares of RM1 each
Original <— Granted on —>

Exercise  23June 30 Aprl 1January 31 December

Price (RM}) 201 2012 2012 Granted Exercised 2012

Hans J.J De Cuyper §.82° 200.000 - 200,000 - - 200,000
8.78" - 100,000 - 100,000 - 100,000

300,000

? The exercise price had been adjusted from RM8.82 to RMS.78 on 29 December 2011, then to
RM8.76 on § June 2012 and tastly fo RMB.75 on 29 October 2012,

¥ The exercise price had been adjusted from RM8.78 to RMRB.76 on 5 June 2012, and then io
RM8.75 on 29 Ociober 2012.

Number of Restricted Shares Unifs ("RSU") of Ordinary Shares of RM1 each
< Gramed on—3

23 June 30 Aprit 1 January Vested / 31 December
2011 2012 2012 Granted Exercised 2012
Hans J.J De Cuyper 75,000 75 000 75,000 75,000 - 150,000

The options and RSU which were granted to the director on 23 June 2011 and 30 April 2012 had
not been vested as at 31 December 2012. The options and RSU will be vested and exercisable
or awarded upon fulfillment of vesting conditions or predetermined performance metrics
including service period, performance targets and performance period,

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directars in office at the end of the financial vear had
any interest in shares of the Company or its related corporations during the financial year.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERMAD
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) Before the statement of financial position and income staterment of the Company werg
made out, the directors took reasonable steps:

{} to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that all
known bad debts had been written off and that adequate provision had been made for
doubifui debts; and

(i} to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown
in the accounting records in the ordinary course of business had been written down fo
an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

{(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would
render:

i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful dabts
in the financial statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

{§) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Company
misieading.

{¢) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have
arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or
hiabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d} Al the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise
dealt with in this report or the financial statements of the Company which would render any
amount stated in the financial statements misieading.

(e} As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

{i} any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the
financial year which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(i) any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year,
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ETHIA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT'D.)

B

(@

tn the opinion of the directors:

{l no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of fwelve months after the end of the financial year
which will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations when thay
fall due; and

(i} no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the
interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report which is likely
to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Company for the financial
year in which this report is made. '

For the purpose of paragraphs (e)(il} and (f){i), contingent or other liabilities do not inciude
fiabilities arising from contracts of takaful underwritien in the ordinary course of business of
the Company.

Before the statement of financial position and income statement of the Company were
made out, the directors took reascnable steps to ascertain that there was adequate
provision for claims reported, claims incurred but not reported ("IBNR™ and the actuarial
vaiuation of family takaful liabilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors {"the Board") is committed to ensuring that the highest standards of
corporate governance are practised in the Company. This is a fundamental part in discharging
their responsibilities to protect and enhance all stakeholders’ values and the financial
performance of the Company.

{a)

Board Responsibilifies

in discharging their duties, the Board is equally responsible to ensure compliance with the
Takaful Act, 1984 and Bank Negara Malaysia's ("BNM") Guidelines, including
BNM/RH/GL/004-1: Guidelines on Directorship for Takaful Operators. They aiso have to
comply with the tenets of corporate governance by adopting its best practices as stipulated
under BNM/RMIGLAGO3-2: Prudential Framework of Corporate Governance for Insurers .

Apart from their statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Company’s major
investments, disposals and funding decisions. They ensure the implementation of
appropriate systems to manage risks and also review and approve the strategies and
financial objectives to be implemented by the managerent. These functions are camied out
by the Board directly and/or through their various Commiitees.
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ETIQA TAKAFLUIL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE {CONT'D.)

{a)

(b}

Board Responsibilities {cont'd.)

The Beard is responsible for creating the framework and pelicies within which the Company
should be operating and the management is responsible for implementing them. This
demarcation reinforces the supenvisory role of the Board.

The Company has an organisational structure showing all reporting lines as well as clearly
documented job descriptions for all management and executive employees and formal
performarnce appraisals are done annually,

The directors, with different backgrounds and experiences, collectively bring with them a
wide range of skiils and specialised knowledge that are required for the management of the
Company,

The Board met 7 times during the financial year and the attendance of the directors was as
follows:

Number of Board

Name meetings attended %
Dato’ Mohd Salleh Haji Harun (Chairman) &/7 86
Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Vice Chairman)

{Resigned on 19 April 2012) 44 100
Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Alhabshi 5{7 71
Date' Johan Ariffin 717 100
Zainal Abidin Jamal 6/7 86
Mohamed Nor Abdul Hamid 77 100
Loh Lee Soon 67 86
Gary Lee Crist 87 71
Hans J. J. De Cuyper 717 100
Frank J. G. Van Kempen (Appointed on 17 July 2012} 3/3 100

Management Accountability

Whilst the Beard is responsible for creating the framework and policies within which the
Company should be operating, the management s accountable for the execution of the
enabling policies and atfainment of the Company's corporate objectives.
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ETHIA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D.}

{c

(d)

Corporate Independence

Al material related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 30 to the financial
statemeants.

internal Controis and Audit

The Board exercises overall responsibility for the Company's internal controls and its
effectiveness. The Board recognises that risks cannot be eliminated completely; as such,
the systems and processes put in place are aimed at minimising and managing them. The
Company has established internal controis which cover all levels of rersonnel and business
processes that ensure the Company's operations are run in an effective and efficient
manner as well as o safeguard the assets of the Company and stakcholders’ interests.
Continuous assessment of the effectiveness and adequacy of irternal controls, which
includes an independent examination of controls by the internal audit function, ensures that
corrective action, where necessary, is taken in a timely manner.

The internal audit reports are tabled at the first scheduled Audit Commitiee ("AC"} meeting
after the date of receipt of these reports. The internal audit function reporis to the Board
through the AC, and its findings and recommendations are communicated o senior
management and all levels of staff concerned. The AC is established at the holding
company's leveal,

Tha composition of the AC is as follows:

{.oh Lee Soon (Chairman)
Independent, non-executive director

Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Resigned on 11 June 2012)
Non-independent, non-executive director

Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Athabshi
independent, non-executive director

Gary Lee Crist {Appo nted on 26 July 2012)
Nen-independent, non-executive director
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CORFORATE GOVERNANCE {CONT'D.}

{d)

{e)

internal Controls and Audit {cont'd.}

The AC met 6 times during the financial year and the attendance of the directors was as
follows:

Number of AC Board
Name meetings attended %
| oh Lee Soon B/8 100
Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Resigned
on 11 June 2012) 313 100
Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Alhabshi 6/6 100
Gary Lee Crist (Appointed on 26 July 2012) 212 100

Risk Management

The Board takes responsibility in establishing the Risk Management Commitiee ("RMC").
The primary objective of the RMC is to oversee the senior management's activities in
managing the key risk areas of the Company and to ensure that the risk management
process is in place and functioning effectively.

The RMC is established at the helding company's level. In discharging its responsibilities,
the RMC is compiemented by the Investment Committee of the Board and assisted by the
Asset Liability Committee ("ALCO"} established by the management.

The §C, set up in compliance with the Takaful Act, 1984, will oversee the operations of the
Company fo ensure that they are in line with the principles of Shariah.

The risk management framework of the Company comprises three main components, i.e.
policy-making, monitaring and control and risk acceptance while the risk management
approach is premised on three lines of defence, ie. risk-taking, risk control and
coordinating units and internal audit. Risks have been classified into three main categories,
which are made up of takaful risk, financial risk (including market risk, credit risk and
balance sheet risk) and operational risk.

There is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks
faced by the Company in consultation with the SC. This is achieved through designated
management functions and internal controls, which includes the setting up of operational
risk limits for all core activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTD.)

{e)

(f

Risk Management {cont'd.)
The composition of the RMC are as follows:

Mohamed Nor Abdui Hamid (Chairman)
tndependent, non-executive director

Damis Jacobus Ziengs (Resigned on 11 June 2012}
Non-independent, non-executive director

Datuk R. Karunakaran
independent, non-executive director

Gary Lee Crist {Appointed on 11 June 2012)
MNon-independent, non-execufive director

The RMC met 7 times during the financial year.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company will continue to leverage on the existing Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board ("NRC") which had taken effect as a merged committee of the
ultimate holding company, MBB, on 27 May 2010 as part of its governance structure.

The primary objective of the NRC is to establish a documented, formal and transparent
procedure for the appointment of directors and the chief exscutive officer ("CEO™ and key
senior officers as well as assessment of the effectiveness of directors, the Board as a
whole and the performance of the CEQ and key senior officers.

Further, the NRC is also responsibie fo provide a formal and transparent procedure for
developing a remuneration policy for directors, the CEQ and key senior officers and
ensuring that compensation is competitive and consistent with the .Company’s culture,
objectives and strategy.

10
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ETIGA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D.)

{f)

(g}

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (conf'd.)
The composition of the NRC are as follows:

Dato’ Mohd Salleh Haji Harun {Chalrman)
independent, non-executive director

Tan &ri Dr, Hadenan A, Jalil
Independent, non-executive director

Zainal Abidin Jamal
Non-independent, non-executive director

Date’ Dr. Tan Tat Wai
Independent, non-executive director

Alister Maitland
Independent, non-executive director

During the financial vear, the NRC met 11 times.
Investment Commitiee

The 1C reports to the Board of all the operating companies under Maybank Ageas Hoidings
Berhad ("MAHB").

The objectives of the IC include: (i) to present an opinion on the long-term strategic
investment policy including real estate, as a recommendation for the Risk Management
Meeting ("RMM"YRMC/Board based on ALCO advice; (i} to establish a tactical investment
policy on the basis of the proposals made by the investment manager and within the
boundaries iaid out in the Invesiment Management Mandates ("IMM™; (iii} to test the
execution of policies by the investment manager against the sirategic and tfactical .
Investment policy/asset management mandate; and (iv} {o evaluate and approve the
operational policy executed by the investment manager. It also evaluates, reviews and
maintains the investment Management Guidelines ("IMG"), based on ALCO advice and
negotiates conditions with, appoints and/or dismisses external fund managers, custodians,
banks and other financial intermediaries.

11
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ETIGA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONT'D.)
{q} Investment Commitiee {cont’d.}
The composition of the IC are as follows:

Dato' Sri Abdul Wahid Omar (Chairman)
Non-independent, non-executive director

Datuk Dr. Syed Othman Syed Hussin Athabshi
independent, non-executive director

Datuk R. Karunakaran
Independent, non-executive director

The IC met 4 times during the financial year.
{h)} Public Accountabhility

As a custodian of public funds, the Company's dealings with the public are always
conducted fairly, honestly and professionally.

(i) Financial Reporting
The Board takes responsibiiity for presenting a balanced and comprehensive assessment
of .the Company's operations and prospects each time i releases its annual financial

statements to shareholders. The AC of the Board assists by scrutinising the information to
be disclosed to ensure accuracy, adequacy and completeness.

12
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

There were no significant events during the financial year,

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

There were no material events subsequent fo the end of the financial year that require
disclosures or adjiustments {o the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The auditors, Ernst & Young, retire and have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

&

Dato’ Mohd SallefrHaji Harun

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
8 February 2013

13
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 169(15) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

We, Dato' Mohd Salieh Haji Harun and Hans J. J. De Cuyper, being two of the directors of Efiga
Takaful Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 19 to 235 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, internationat Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the
Companigs Act, 1865 in Malaysia so as {o give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2012 and of the results and the cash flows of the Company for the
financiat year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resoiution of the directors.

-

WS

Dato' Mohd Salleh Haji Harun

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
8 February 2013

STATUTORY DECLARATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 1689{16) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

I, Ahmad Rizlan Azman, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
Eliga Takaful Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 18 to 235 are in my opinion, correct and | make this solemn
declaration conscientiously believing the same to be frue and by virtue of the provisions of the
Statutory Declarations Act, 1960,

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
{he abovenamed Ahmad Rizlan Azman at
Kuala Lumpur in Wilayah Persekutuan

on 8 February 2013 Ahmad Rizlan Azman

2-LG-TT KOMPLEKS NIAGA UTaMA, 14
TINGKAT TERBAWAH,
JALAN BANGSAR UTAMA 1,
BANGSAR UTAMA,
SH000 KUALA LUMPUR
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH COMMITTEE
In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful

‘We, Tan Sri Dato' Seri (D) Haji Marusssani Haji Zakaria and Dr. Mohammad Deen Mohd
Napiah, being two of the members of the Shariah Committee of Etiga Takaful Berhad, do hereby
report on behalf of the Committee that to the best of our knowiedge and belief;

We have reviewed and approved the principles, policies, products and the contracts relating to
the transactions underiaken by the Company during the financial year ended 31 December 2012,
We have alsc conducted our review to form an opinion as to whether the Company has complied
with the principles of Shariah and with the Shariah rulings issued by the Shariah Advisory Council
of Bank Negara Malaysia, as well as Shariah decisions made by us.

The management of the Company is respensible for ensuring that the Company conducts its
business in accordance with Shariah rules and principles. 1t is our responsibility to express an
independent opinion, based on our review of the operations of the Company.

We have assessed the work carried out by Sharizh review and Shariah audit which included
examining, on a test basis, the relevant type of fransactions, documentations and procedures
adopied by Etiga Takaful Berhad.

We obtained all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence o give reasonable assurance that the Company has not
violated the rules and principles of Shariah.

Inn our opinion:

1. the relevant contracts, transactions and dealings entered into by the Company during the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 that we have reviewed are in compliance with the
Shariah principles;

2. the allocation of profit and charging of losses relating to investment accounts conform to the
basis that had been approved by us in accordance with Shariah principles;

3. all earnings that have been reahlsed from sources or by means prohibited by the principles
of Shariah have been put aside in a separate account and is considered for donation fo

charitable causes; and

4. the calculation of zakat is in compliance with the principles of Sharizh.

15
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH COMMITTEE (CONT'D.)
in the narme of Aliah, the Beneficant, the Mercifiil

This opinion is rendered based on what has been presented to us by the management of the
Company and its Shariah Division. We, the members of the Shariah Committee of Etiga Takaful
Berhad, do hereby confirm that the operations of the Company for the Jnancial year ended 31
December 2012 have been conducted in conformity with the rules and principles of Shariah.

Signed on behalf of the Commiites.

— J‘ Wﬁ

Tan Sri Date’ Seri (Dr.) Haji Dr. Mohammad Deen Mohd Napiah
Harussani Haji Zakaria

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
8 February 2013

16
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Independent auditors' report to the member of v By LOER

Etiga Takaful Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Repert on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Etiga Takaful Berhad, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the income statement, the
statement of comprehensive income, thea statement of changes in eguity and the statement of
cash flows for the financial year ended 31 December 2012, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanaiory notes, as set out on pages 19 to 235.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as
give a frue and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965
in Malaysia. The directors are also responsibie for such internal controf as the directors
determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibitity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financis! statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
inctuding the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, .
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audii procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on fhe effectiveness of the entitv's internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

17
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independent avditors' report to the member of
Etiga Takaful Berhad (Cont'd.)
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Cpinicn

in our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2012 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2012 in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965
in Malaysia.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Cornpanies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report

that in our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to
be kept by the Company have been properiy kepl in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Other matters

This report is made solely o the member of the Company, as a body, in accordance with
Section 174 of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility to any other person forthe content of this report.

Envstslong 2 Bt D

Ernst & Young Brandon Bruce Sta Maria
AF: 0039 Ne.2937/092/13())
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
8 February 2013

18
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT ¥ DECEMBER 2012

Note M.12.2012 F1.12.2811 107,201
Shareholder's Generat Fanily Shareheidar's General Fagnily Shareholder's General Family
fund  taksful fund  takaful fund Company fund  takafuifund  takaful fund Gampany fund  takaful fund  takafol fumd Company
RWOE0 il Lt R0 RM300 R oo RMQGE RREOR0 RM0D% RMGod RM0G0 RE¥GD0 RM000
ASSETE
Broperty, plant and equipment 3 2,199 1 " 2200 1,452 & 5 4470 4578 3 $ 4,595
{ntangibie Assels 4 8872 19 473 9,163 12,431 33 an 13,375 12,395 558 1,235 14,1983
Invesiments 5 877,094 1,251,882 7,321 388 9,450,312 334 670 1.087.296 4,797 810 8,179,876 334,173 574,953 8,407 541 F1L077
Financiog receivables G s Bey g - 16,922 37, 24% 21,855 - 4C,B78 51,933 22,192 1821 53,486 77.289
Takahd receivablies 7 - 106 692 97 262 284,054 - 82,6852 §8.449 16T, 181 - 97 818 80272 177 590
Olhet receivatiles 3 RERTVR 18,311 412,588 142 307 522167 11,518 92,118 105 074 500,085 10,634 65,848 79,931
Retakalu! assels 12 - 273,385 18,634 291,999 - 278,168 18,832 286,940 - 300,054 21,687 AZE 145
Cash and bank balances 18 436 20,240 40841 15 167 18,514 28130 #4188 83,828 1 165 Prat g 2055 50,253
Total assets 1,207,545 1,671,489 7,507,354 19,214,043 919,592 1,495,043 70422992 8968 597 874 580 1,414,538 8,547 925 5436578
EQUITY, LIABILITIES AND
PARTICIFANTS" FUNDS
Equity
Share capital E 100,060 - - 100,590 108,008 - - 104,085 100.000 - - 100,000
Reserves % G5.206 - . 659,285 330044 - - 530,244 436,921 - - 455921
Tofal eguity 759 295 - - 759,296 G306, 244 - - &, 244 586,921 - - S86.921
Liakilities and Paricipants’ Funds
Padidpants’ funds | - 123,172 1,965,923 2,052,411 . 87 945 1,542,038 1.593,300 - 92690 1,458,832 1,514,538
Takaful cerificales iabitins 12 - 1,284,196 5,303,452 8,597,538 - 1,127,876 4812634 5,949,310 - 1,942,835 4,558,158 85,611,013
Expange fabiities 13 306,128 - - 306,128 2%7,973 - - 217 92 213,657 - - 219,057
Deferred tax iabities 14 5,245 - B7 5,312 G747 - S3 6,810 7,772 - 671 £.443
Takatut payables 1% 3,008 89,183 51,247 153,438 - 58,937 59,890 126,737 - 64,8681 TS677 144 365
Othar payables 1% 122,986 184,978 273,838 325,041 85,408 211,784 586,372 B0 EYE 98,322 14,307 532428 348,161
Current fax liabilities 10,852 - 2997 13,879 2% - 2785 3005 1.618 - 2052 38677
Tola lisbilities and n
participants’ funds 448,249 1,671,489 7,607,354 9,454,747 280,348 1,498,043 7.022.992 8,278,353 287 769 $.414 538 5,641 525 7,848,657
Total eguity, Habitities and
participants’ funds 1.207 545 1.67 1,468 7,807,354 10,214,043 §i0.582 1,496 043 7422992 B,5049 597 AT4.680 414,536 6,641,925 8,436,578

The accompanying nates form an integeal part of the Anancial statements.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERBADR
{lrrcorporated in Mataysia)

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR £NDED 3 DECEMBER 20432

Gioss eamed conficutions
Earned conlributions ceded to retaiafl
Net earned contributions

Fee and commission income

invastment income

Realised gaing and losses

Fair value gains and losses

Other operating revenusf {expenses), net
Othier revenus

Gross benefits and claims paid

Claims ceded to retakaful

Gross change ko cerliicate labilties

Changs in cerificate Gabilites ceded o ratakafi
Met benafits arxd claims

Hanagement expenses
Change in expense fiabilites
fre and commission expenses
Other expenses

Qperating profit before surplus fransfers

Surplus atlibutable 1o participants
Surplus alirfibutable to sharshaolder
Profitisurplus before {axation
Taxafion

Zgkat
Het profit for the year/period

Basic earnings per share {sen)

Note

17
L¥4

18
13
208

21

23
24

25

26

1L E to 31.12.2042

1072011 to 31,12.201M

Sharsholder's Gonaral Family Shareholder's Ganeral Family
fund takafut fund takaful fund Coampany fund takaful fund takafud fund Comipany
RM'QG0 RGO RMQE0 Roco RMg40 RA'0DG RA00G RETQOG
- TH7.696 1,744,795 2,542,340 - 368,683 724,835 1,004 479
- {80 420 {12.163) (o2 585 - {76,567} (10,608 {87,175}
- 717,276 1,732,632 2,449,757 - 243 115 Ti4 227 1007 304
520,354 15,747 1,888 17,635 109,526 5. 145 32 G177
24,877 43,485 303,814 372,186 8,039 20,588 146,843 17340
13,387 23,564 149,188 183,116 1266 9.2%0 54,002 55,255
- - 10,143 10,141 . - 258622 256232
844 (11,578 {62,390} (73.024} 1,775 3,655 (21813} (16,373}
555,532 73,228 402,548 519,034 119,318 38,679 204 6EG 254,149
- (372058 {640, 1933 {1,812,251) - {128,347} {374,752} {513.09%;
- 6,707 3.565 10,272 - 2,536 5,750 12,328
- (88,747} (501,124} {1,054,588) - {198,588} {242,244} (456,341}
- (20,772 {198} {20,970} - 23,448 {2,249} 21,208
- (472.790) (1,137 930} (2,074,488} - {218,351 {612,455} {345,814
(324,134) (8543 (58,792} (283,629 {66, 350) (534) {53,644 £120,488)
{82,155) - . (58,155) 1,084 - - 1,084
(214,995 {217.192} {390 227) {202,064 £46.556) 188,079} {303,774 {128,139
(527,288} {218,046} {455 019) (579 BaB) (11212 {88 563} {157,418} {248 528}
20,244 97 568 542,311 205 475 7,183 25,881 145,040 G720t
- {48 834} 414,914} - - {12,940} {102,168) -
176,013 {48,834} {127,181} - 59,792 {12941 {48,851} -
205,258 - 218 205,475 55,980 N 21 §7.001
{71,419} - {218} £71.635} {19,725} - 213 18,746}
117} - - (B.117) £3.739) - - {3,730}
125,723 - - 125,725 43,516 - - 43,516
12572 - - 125,72 43,57 - - 43 52

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of e fnancial statements.
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ETIGA TAKAFUL BERHAR
fincorporafed in Malaysia}

STATEMENT OFf COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Note

1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012

1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011

Nei profit for the yearfperied

Other comprehensive income:
Net gains on AFS financial assels:

Gains on fair value changes

Realised gain transferred 1o

income statement 20

Tax effects refating to components

of ather comprehensive income
ther comprehiensive fincame)

{oss atiribuiable io participants

Other comprehensive income/{loss)
for the year/period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the yearfperiod

Shareholder's General Family Sharehalder's Gereral Family

fund  takaful fund  takaful fund Company fund fakaful fund takahul fund Company

RIG'000 RM'000 RMG00 RM'000 . Rmoog RW'000 RM'GOD RM GO0
126,723 - - 125,723 43,518 - - 4#3.518
14,796 25,2563 2,236 133,285 1,708 4 6566 25,691 36,065
£10,357) {23,564} {105,784) (139,705) {1.956] (9,290) {36,960} (48,2186}
(1,710} - - {1,110 ] - - 85

- {2,685 13,548 10,859 ~ 4,624 7,269 11,863

3,329 ~ - 3,329 (183} - - £193)

129,052 - - 128,052 43323 - - 43,323

The accompanying notes form an integral par of the financial statements.



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

At 1 January 2012
Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 December 2012

At 1 July 2011
Totat comprehensive income for the period
At 31 December 2011

Attributable {o Equity Holder of the Company

Non-Distributable

Distributable

Available-for-sale

Share Capital Reserve Retained Profits Total Equity
RM'CO0 - RM'G90 RMQ00 EM'000
106,000 10,790 519,454 630,244

- 3,329 125,723 129,052
100,000 14,118 645,177 758,206
100,000 10,883 475,833 586,921

- (193) 43518 43,323
100,600 10,730 519,454 630,244

The accompanying noles form an inlegeal part of the financial statements.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERMAD
{(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Note

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation and zakat
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assetls
Write off and adjustment of property and equipment
Fair value gain on investments
Realised gain on disposal of investments
Unrealised losses f {gain) on foreign exchange
Realised losses on foreign exchange
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment losses) on
Invesiments
Takaful receivables
Other receivables
Financing receivables
Frofit income
Gross dividend income
Amortisation of premium/{aceretion of discounts)
Reversal of witholding fax
increase in net contribution Habilities
Increase in general takaful fund
Increasea in family takaful fund
Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Proceeds from sale of invesiments
Purchase of investments
{Increaseldecrezse in lakaful receivables
increase in other receivables
{Decrease)/increase in other payables
increasef{decrease) in expense liabilites
Increase/{decrease) in takaful cerlificates payables
Decrease in loans/inancing receivabies
Decreasef{increase) in placements of

Istamnic investment accounts

Decreasef(increase) in retakaful assets
Increase in claims liabilities

Operating cash flows afier working capital changes

23

1.01.2012t0  1.07.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RN'000
205,475 67,001
653 378
6,361 4,000

. 2,213
{10,141} (25,622)
(183,116) (85,258)
154 (798)

137 313
41,224 18,666
24,459 (3,796)
1,579 385
226 (438)
(347,874) (150,973)
(26,764) {14,230)
2 452 (8,268)
25,601 -
53,584 31,437
48,834 12,940
414,914 102,168
257,758 (26,795
2,583,864 867,939
(4,142,460) (1,262,527}
(67.412) 20,585
(12,935) (26,107)
(57,349) 29,407
88,155 (1,084)
26,701 (17,631}
24,466 15,804
431,027 (5,398)
20,920 (21,200)
590,815 403,002
(256,450) (27,002)
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ETIHQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {CONT'D.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Note

CASH FL.OW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (CONT'D.)

Profit income received
GGross dividend income received
Zakat paid
Taxation paid
Mudharabah paid to paricipants
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 29

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cancellation of units
Net cash flows used in financing activities 28

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Nat cash flows used in investing activities 29

{Decrease)fincrease in cash and

cash equivalents 29
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of year/pericd
Cash and cash equivalents at end

of year/period

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and bank balances of:
Shareholder's fund
General takaful fund
Family takaful fund

1.01.2012 to 1.07.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM'0G0
319,684 151,195
26,518 14,266
(5,846) (308)
(60,408) (21,986)
{19,379) (24.853)
4,121 81,315
{12 650) (50,137)
{12,650} (50,137)
(2,149) (2,497}
(1,383) (136)
(3,532) {2,633
(12,081) 38,545
88,828 50,283
76,767 88,828
16,486 18,510
20,240 26,130
40,041 44188
76,767 88,828

The accompanying notes form an integral pari of the financial staterments.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL. BERHAD
(incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2012

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is the management of general takaful, family takaful
and takaful investment linked business.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Company during
the financial year.

The Company is & public limited liability compaay, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.
The registered office of the Company is located at Level 19, Tower C, Dataran Maybank,
No. 1, Jalan Maarof, 52000 Kuala Lumpur.

The holding and ultimate hoiding companies of the Company are Maybank Ageas Holdings
Berhad ("MAHB"} (formerdy known as Mayban Ageas Holdings Berhad) and Malayan
Banking Berhad ("MBB") respectively, both of which are incorporated in Malaysia. MBB is a
licensed commercial bank listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The financial year end of the Company was changed from 30 June to 31 December in the
last financial year. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company for the current
financial year ended 31 December 2012 covers a twelve-month period compared fo a six-
month period for the previous financial period ended 31 December 2011 and, consequently,
the comparative amounts for the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity, the sfatement of cash flows and the related notes are not

comparable.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resofution of the directors on 8 February 2013.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have heen preparsd in accordance with
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards {("MIFRS"), International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"} and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1865 in Malaysia. In
previous financial years, the financial statements of the the Company were prepared in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS") in Malaysia as modified by BNM
Guidelines. These are the Company's first annual financial siatements prepared in
accordance with MFRS and the effects of the first-time adoption of MFRS Framework
are disclosed in Nofe 2.3,
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ETHA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D.)

2.1 Basis of Preparation {conf'd.)

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies. The financial statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia {"RM"), which is the Company's functional currency,
and all values are rounded {o the nearest thousand (RM'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

In preparing the Company-level financial statements, the balances and fransactions of
the shareholder's fund are amalgamated and combined with those of the takaful funds. -
Interfund balances, transactions and unrealised gains or losses are eliminated in ful
aduring amalgamation. The accounting pelicies adopted for the shareholder's and takafut
funds are upiform for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,

The fakafui funds are consolidated and amalgamated from the date of conirol and
continue {0 be consolidated untll the date such conirol ceases which will occur when the
Company's licence to manage takaful business is withdrawn or surrendered.

Takaful operations and its funds

Under the concept of takaful, individuals make contributions to a pool which is managed
by a third party with the overall aim of using the monies to aid feflow participants in times
of need. Accordingly, as a takaful operator, the Company manages the general and
family takaful funds in line with the principles of Wakalah (agency), which is the main
business modet used by the Company. Under the Wakalah model, the takaful operater
is not a participant in the fund but manages the funds (including the relevant assets and
liabifities) towards the purpose outlined above.

In accordance with the Takaful Act 1984, the assels and liabilities of the takaful funds
are segregated from those of the takaful operator: a concept known as segregation of
funds. Accordingly, in prior years, the financial statements of the takaful operator
presented separate statements of financial position, income statements and statements
of comprehensive income for the iakaful funds to clearly segregate the asseis,
liabilities, income and expenses of the takaful operator from those of the takaful funds
which it manages bui does not own. This was a modification to Financia! Reparting
Standards by Bank Negara Malaysia as permitied under Section 41 of the Takafut Act
1884 in Malaysia.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONT'D.)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (cont'd.)

Effective this year, in full compliance with MFRS 127 Consofidated and Separate
Financial Statements, the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the takaful funds
are consolidated with those of the takaful operator to represent the control possessed by
the operator over the financial and operating policies of the respective funds. Upon
consolidation, the related interfund balances and transactions are eliminated in full.

The inclusion of separate information of. the takaful funds and the takaful operator
together with the consolidated financial information of the Company in the statement of
financial position, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income as well
as certain relevani notes to the financial siatemenis represents additional
supplementary information required for Bank Negara Malaysia reporting.

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a} Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

Alt iterns of property and equipment are initially recorded af cost, Subsequent costs
are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separafe asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fuiure economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably.
The carrying amount of replaced paris iz derecognised. Al other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or Joss in the financial year in which the costs are
incuwrred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, piant and squipment are stated at cost
less accumudated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Work-in-progress are not depreciated as these assets are not available for use,
When work-in-progress is completed and the asset is available for use, it is
reciassified to the relevant category of properly, plani and equipment and
depreciation of the asset begins.

Depreciation on properly and equipment is provided for on a straighi-line basis to
write off the cost of each asset fo its residual vaiue over its estimated useful life at
the following annual rates:

Furniture, fittings, office equipment and renovations 20%
Computers and peripherals 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2 Sumimary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

{a)

(b}

Property, Plant and Equiprment and Depreciation (cont'd.)

The residual values, useful fives and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the
future econemic benefits embodied in the iters of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefiis are expected from its use or disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss,

Intangible assets

intangible assels include software development costs and computer software.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The costs of intangible assets acquired In a business combination are their fair
values as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a sfraight-fine basis
over the estimated economic useful fives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed af least at each reporting date.

Amoaoriisation is charged to the income siatement.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if evenis or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The useful iife of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
also reviewed annually to determine whether the usefid life assessment continues
o be supporiable.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.)

{b} intangible assets (cont'd.}

{

{ii)

Software development costs

Software development in progress are tested for impairment annually and
represent development expenditure on software. Following the initial
recognition of the development expenditure, the cost model is applied requiring
the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. When
development is complete and the asset is available for use, it is reclassified to
computer software and amortisation of the asset begins. During the perfiod
where the asset is not yet in use, it is tested for impairment annually.

Computer software and licences

The useful lives of computer software and licences are amortised using the
straight-ine method over their estimated useful lives of 4 years. Impairment is
assessed whenever there is indication of impairment and the amortisation
period and method are also reviewed at least at each reporting date.

(c) Leases

(1)

(1)

Classification

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if if fransfers subsientially to the
Company all the risk and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land and
buildings are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as
leases of other assets and the jand and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease
classification. All leases that do not transfer substantially alf the risk and
rewards incidental to ownership are classified as operating leases. -

Operating leases - the Company as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a siraight-iine
basis over the term of the relevant leass.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERBAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(cont'd.)

{d) investments and financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and
cnly when, the Company and/or the takaful funds become a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument,

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable fransaction costs.

The Company determines the classification of its financial asstes at initial
recognition and the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL"), loans and receivables {"LAR"™ and available-for-sale {("AFS")
financial assets, -

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVPTL if they are held for
trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held
for trading are derivatives (including separated embedded derivatives) or
financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term.

For assets designated at FVTPL, the following criteria must be met;

- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
fiabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different basis; or

- the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial
liabiliies or both which are managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy..

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on financial assets at FVPTL
do not include exchange differences, profit and dividend income. Exchange
differences, profit and dividend income on financial assets at FVTPL are
recognised separstely in profit or loss as part of other expenses or other
income.
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ETHIA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd.)

{d) Investments and financial assets (cont'd.}

(i

(iii)

LAR

LAR are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an aclive market. For the accounting
policies with respect to retakaful assels and takaful receivables, refer fo
Notes 2.2¢h) and 2.2{n)} respectively.

Subsequent to initial recognition, joans and receivables are measured af
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the assets are derecognised or
impaired, and through the amortisation process.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified in any of the twa preceding categories,

After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. Any
gains or losses from changes in fair vaiue of the financial asseis are
recognised in other comprehensive income except for impairment losses,
foreigh exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and profit
calculated using the effective profit method which are recognised in profit or
toss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the
financial asset is derecognised.

Investments in equily instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less impairment losses.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

{(d} Investments and financial assets {cont'd.}

(e)

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and any cumulative gains or losses that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Regutar way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
canvention in the marketplace concerned. Al regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date Le. the date that
the Company and/or the takaful funds commit to purchase or sell the asset.

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets

The fair value of financial assets that are actively traded in organised financial
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices for assets at the close
of business at the reporting date.

For financial assets in quoted unit and real estate investment trusts, fair value is
determined by reference to published prices. investments in equity that do not have
guoted market prices in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are stated at cost.

For financial assets where there s no active market such as unquoted fixed income
securities i.e. unquoted bonds, Malaysian Governments paper, Khazanah bonds,
fair values are determined by reference to indicative bid prices obtained from
Bondweb. The fair values of structured deposits are based on latest market prices
obtained from financial nstitutions. The market value of Negotiable Isiamic
Certificate of Deposit ("NICDs") are determined by reference to BNM's rates on
interest rate swaps. In the case of defaulted or other bonds where such indicative
prices are not available, an internal valuation is performed by gualified personnel {o
determine the fair value of the bonds.
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ETIQA TAKAFLUL, BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

2,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd.)

(e) Fair vaiue of financial assets at FVTPL and AFS financial assets {cont'd.)

{)

The fair value of floating rate and over-night deposits with financial institutions is
their carrying value which is the cost of the depositiplacement.

it the fair value cannot be measured refiably, these financial instrumenis are
measured at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition
of the instrument or the amount received on issuing the financial liability. Al
transaction costs directly attributabie o the acquisition are also included in the cost
of the investment except in the case of financial assets al FVTPL where the
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss,

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporling date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

{i) Takaful receivables

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
takafui receivables has been incurred, the Company considers factors such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer or
obiigor and default or significant delay in payments. Takaful receivables that
are assessed not io be impaired individually are subsequenily assessed for
impairment on a collective basis based on similar risk characteristics. Objective
evidence of impairment for a porifolio of receivables could include the
Company's past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed paymenis in the portfolio past the average credit period and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defauit on receivables. -
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f

Impairment of financial assets {cont'd.)

i

(in)

Takaful receivables (cont'd.)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assel's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future -cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective profit rate, The impairment
foss is recognised in profit or loss.

mpairment losses on takaful receivables are recognised as a reduction against
the carrying amount of those receivables through the use of an allowance
account. When takaful receivables are determined to be uncollectible, it is
written off against the aliowance account.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impaimment joss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in
profit or loss,

AFS financiat assets
Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial
difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading

market are considerations fo determine whether there is objective evidence
that investment securities classified as AFS financial assets are impaired.
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(f)

Impairment of financial assets (cont'd.}

{if}

{iii)

{iv)

AFS financial assets (cont'd.)

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is

transferred from equity or participants’ funds to profit or loss. '

Impairment losses on AFS equity investrments are not reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Increases in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment
is recognised in other comprehensive income. For AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed in profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment losses were recagnised in profit or loss.

Unquoted equity securities carried at cost

i there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on unquoted equity
securities carried at cost has been incurred, the carrying amount will be written
down to the recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are nof reversed in

subsequent periods.
L oans and receivables

LAR are impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there Is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of the cccurrence of loss eveni(s) after
initial recognition. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
measured as the difference between the assef's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original
effective inferest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account,
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(g)

{h}

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. f any such indication exists, or when an anriual
tmpairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an esfimate
of the assel's recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or ioss except for assets that were
previously revalued where the revaiuastion was taken to other comprehensive
income. In ihis case, the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive
income up o the amount of any previous revaluation.

An impairment assessment is performed at each reporing date to determine
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
assetl's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

i that is the case, the carrying amount of an asset is increased 1o its revised
recoverable amount, provided thal this amount does not exceed the carmying
amount that would have been determined (nef of amortisation, or depreciation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset is at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal is treated as a revaiuation increase.

Retakaful

The Company, as the operator of the participanis’ fund, cedes takaful risk in the
normal course of business for all s takaful business. Ceded retakaful
arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to participants. For
both ceded and assumed retakaful, contributions, claims and benefils paid or
payable are presenied on a gross basis.

Retakaful arrangements, entered into by the Company, that meet the classification
requirements of takaful ceriificates as described in Note 2.2(i} are accounted for as
noted below. Arrangemenis that do not meet these classification requirements are
accounted for as financial assets.
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{h} Retakaful {cont'd.)

{1}

Retakaful assets represent amounts recoverable from retakaful operators for
takaful cerlificate habilities which have yet to be settled at the reporting date.
Amounts recoverable from retakaful operators are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the underlying takaful certificate and the terms of the
relevant retakaful arrangement.

At each reporling date, or more frequently, retakaful assels are assessed for
impairment. Impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence as the result
of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the retakaful assefs that the
Company may not receive all outstanding amounfs due under the ferms of the
contract and the impact of the event can be reliably measured. If any such evidence
exists, the amount of the impairment {oss is measured as the difference belween
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.The impairment
loss is recorded in profit or loss.

Retakaful assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to ancther party.

Product classification

The Company, as the operator of the participants' funds, issues certificates that
contain takaful risk or both financial and takaful risk.

Financial dsk is the risk of a possibie future change in one or more of a specified
profit rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of price or rate, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific fo a party to the gontract.
Underwriting risk is risk other than financial risk.
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{i} Product classification {cont'd.)

Takaful certificates are those certificates that contain significant underwriting risk. A
takaful certificate is a ceriificate under which the participants’ fund has accepted
sighificant risk from the participants by agreeing to compensate the participants if a
specified uncertain future event adversely affects the participanis. As a general
guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant underwriting. risk by
comparing benefils paid or payable on the occurrence of an event against benefits
paid or payable if the insured event does not occur. If the ratio of the former
exceeds the latter by 5% or more, the takaful risk accepted is deemed to be
significant.

Investment contracts are those contracts that do not transfer significant takaful risk.

Once a ceriificate has been classified as a takaful certificate, it remains a takaful
cerlificate for the remainder of its life-time, even if the underwriting risk reduces
significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or
expire. Investment confracts can, however, be reclassified as takaful certificates
after inception if takaful risk becomes significant.

Takaful and investment confracts are further classified as being either with or
without discretionary participation features ("DPF®). DPF is a contractual right to
receive, as a supplement fo guaranteed benefits, additional benefits that are;

(a) hkely o be a significant portion of the total confractual benefits;
(b whose amournd or {iming is contractualiy at the discretion of the issuer; and
(¢} contractually based on the:
{1} performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract;
{2) realised andfor unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assels
held by the issuer; or
{3) the profit or loss of the company, fund or other eniity that issues the
coniract.
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(i} Product classification {cont'd.)

Local statutory regulations and the terms and conditions of these contracts set out
the bases for the determination of the amounts on which the additionat discretionary
benefits are based and the takaful subsidiaries of the Group may exercise their
discretion as to the quantum and timing of their payment to contract holders. All
DPF tiabilities, including unallocated surpluses, both guaranteed and discretionary,
are held within insurancefiakaful contract liabilites as at the end of the reporting
period.

For financial options and guarantees which are not closely related to the host
insurance contract and/or investment contract with OPF, bifurcation is required to
measure these embedded derivatives separately at fair value through profit or foss.
However, bifurcation is not required if the embedded derivative is itself an
insuranceftakaful contract andfor investment contract with DPF, or if the host
insurance/fakaful contract and/or investment confract itself is measured at fair value

through profit or joss.

When takaful certificates contain both a financial risk component and a significant
underwsiting risk component and the cash flows from the fwo components are
distinct and can be measured reliably, the underdying amounts are unbundled. Any
centributions relating to the underwriting risk component are accounted for on the
same basis as takaful certificates and the remaining element is accounted for as a
depaosit through the statement of financial position similar to investment coniracts.

Based on the company's product classification review, afl products meet the
definition of a takaful cerdificate.
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(i} Shareholder's fund

Expense liabilities

The expense liabilities of the sharehoider's fund consist of expense liabilities of the
general and family takaful funds which are based on estimations performed by a
qualified actuary. The expense liabilities are released over the term of the takaful
certificates and recognised in the income statement. :

{i} Expense liabilities of general takaful fund

Expense liabilities of the general takaful fund are reporied as the higher of the
aggregate of the provision for unearned wakalah fees ("UWF™) and the
unexpired expense reserves ("UER") and a provision of risk margin for adverse
deviation ("PRAD") calculated at 75% confidence level at the total fund level as
at the reporting date.

(a)

(b}

Provision for unearned wakalah fee

The UWF represents the portion of wakalah fee income aliocated for
expenses {0 be incurred in managing genaral takaful certificates that refate
to the unexpired periods of cedificates at the end of the reporting peried,
The method used in computing UWF is consistent with the calculation of
unearned contribution reserves ("UCR").

Unexpired expense reserves

UER consists of the best estimate value of the unexpired expense
reserves at the valuation date and a PRAD calculated at 75% confidence
level at the total fund level. The best estimate UER is determined based
on the expected claims handling expenses to be incurred as well as the
expected expenses for cerfificate maintenance of unexpired risks. The
method used in computing PRAD for expense liabilities is consistent with
the calculation of PRAD for claim liabilities.
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(i} Shareholder's fund {cont'd.}

Expense liabilities (cont'd.)

(i)

(i)

Expense liabilities of family takafui fund

The valuation of expense liabilities in relation to cerificates of the family takaful
fund is conducted separately by the Appointed Actuary in the shareholder's
fund. The method used fo value expense liabilities is consistent with the
method used to vaiue takaful liabilities of the correspending family takaful
certificates. In valuing the expense liabilities, the present vaiue of expected
future expenses payable by the shareholder's fund in managing the takaful
fund for the full contractual obfigalion of the ifakaful certificates less any
expected cash flows from future wakalah fee income, and any other income
due to the shareholder's fund that can be determined with reasonable certainty,
are taken into consideration.

Expense liabilities are recognised when projected future expenses exceed the
projected future income of takaful certificates. The changes in expense
liabilifies are recognised in profit or loss.

Liability adequacy test

At each reporting dale, the Company reviews the expense liabilities of the
shareholder's fund to ensure that the carrying amount is sufficient or adequate
fo cover the obligations of the shareholder's fund for all managed takaful
certificates.

in performing this review, the Company considers all contractual cashflows and

compares this against the carrying value of expense liabilities. Any deficiency is
recogrised in the income statemeant,

41



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

{k} General fakaful fund

The general takaful fund is maintained in accordance with the Takaful Act, 1984
and consists of AFS reserves and any surplus/deficit attributable to parlicipants
which represents the parficipants’ share in the net surplus/deficit of the general
takaful fund. Any deficit in the general takaful fund will be made good by the
shareholder's fund via a benevolent loan or Qard. Surplus is distributable in
accordance with the ferms and conditions prescribed by the Shariah Committee-of
the Company.

The general takaful underwriting results are determined for each class of business
after taking into account retakaful, changes in takaful certificate liabilities, wakalah
fees and management expenses.

{i} Contribution income

Contribution income is recognised in a financial year in respect of risks
assumed during that particular financial year. Contribution from direct business
are recognised during the financial year upon the issuance of debit notes.
Contributions in respect of risks incepted for which debit notes have not been
issued as at the reporting date are accrued af that date.

Inward freaty retakaful contributions are recognised on the basis of periodic
advices received from ceding iakaful operators. Inward facultative retakaful
coniributions are recognised in the financial year in respect of the facultative
risks accepted during that particular financial year as in the case of direct
certificates, following the individual risks' inception dates,

Quiward retakaful contributions are recognised in the same financial year as
the originai certificate to which the retakaful relates.

42



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTD.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd.)
{k} General takaful fund {cont'd.)
{iil} Contribution liabilities

Contribution liabiliies represent the Company's future ohligations on takaful
certificates as represented by contributions received for risks that have not yet
expired. The movement in contribution liabilities is released over the-term of the
takaful certificates and Is recognised as contribution income.

Contribution iabilities are reported at the higher of the aggregate of the UCR
for ail lines of business or the total fund's unexpired risk reserves ("URR'"} at
75% confidence level at the end of the financial year.

(@) Unearned Contribution Reserves

UCR represent the portion of the gross contributions of takaful certificates
writters, net of the reiated retakaful contributions ceded fto qualified
retakaful operators, that relaie to the unexpired periods of the certificates
at the reporting date.

Mudharabah

Short-term UCR represent the porfion of net contribution income that
relate to the unexpired period of certificates, with a duration not exceeding
one year, at he reporiing date.

In determining shor-term UCR at the reporting date, the method that most
accurately reflects the actual unearmed contribution is used as foliows:
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{k} General takaful fund (cont'd.)

(i} Contribution liabilities {cont'd.)

(8) Unearned Contribution Reserves (cont'd.}

- earned upon maturity method for bond business;

- 25% method for marine, aviation, cargo and transit business: and

- 1365th method for all other classes of general business, reduced by
the comresponding percentage of accounted gross direct business
comimissions {0 the corresponding contributions, not exceeding limits
specified by BNM as follows:

Motor and beond 10%
Fire, engineering, aviation and marine hut! 15%
Workmen compensation and employers' liability:
« Foreign workers 10%
- Others 25%
Other classes 25%

Long-term UCR represent the portion of net contribution income of takaful
certificaies, with a duration exceeding one vear, that relate to the
unexpired periods of certificates at the reporting date. The earned
cantribution income is recognised on a time apportionment basis over the
duration of the certificates.

Wakalah

The UCR for wakalah business is calculated on net contribution income
with a further deduction for wakalah fee expenses fo reflect the wakalah
husiness principle. The method used to calculate UCR is similar to that
ugsed for mudharabah business. No further deduction for commission
expenses is made as commission expenses are bome by the
shareholder's fund.
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(K} General takaful fund (cont'd.}
(i) Contribution liabilities (cont'd.)
{D} Unexpired risk reserves

The URR is a prospective estimate of the expecied fulure. payments
arising from future events covered under cerdlificates in force as at the
reporfing date and also includes aliowance for expenses, including
overheads and costs of retakaful, expected to be incurred during the
unexpired perod in administering these certificates and settling the
retevant claims, and expeeted future contribution refunds.

URR is estimated via an acfuarial valuation performed by a qualified
actuary.

{iii) Ciaim liabilities

Claim liabilities represent the Company's obligations, whether contractual or
ctherwise, {o make future payments in relation to all claims that have been
incurred as at reporting date.

Claim fiabilties are the estimated ullimate cost of all claims incurred but not
settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, fogether with related
claims handling costs and other recoveries.

Claim liabilities are comprised of claims incurred and reporied but still
outstanding as a! reporiling dale, as well as claims incurred but not reported
("IBNR"). The eslimation includes a provision of risk margin for adverse
deviation ("PRAD"} at a level of sufficiency higher than 75% as required by
Bank Negara Malaysia.

Liabilittes for oulstanding claims are recognised upon nofification by
participants. IBNR claims are estimated via an actuarial valuation performed by
a qualified actuary, using a range of aciurial claim projection techniques based
on, amongst others, aclual claim development patterns. Liabilities are not
discounted for the time value of money.
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{k) General takaful fund {cont'd.)

(iv}

{vi}

Liabitity adequacy test

At each reporting date, the Fund reviews all takaful cerlificate liabilities to
ensure that the carrying amount of the liabilities is sufficient or adequate to
cover the obligations of the Fund, contractual or otherwise, with.-respect to
takaful certificates issued. In performing this review, the Fund estimates all
contractuai cash flows and compares this against the carrying value of takaful
cerlificate liabilities. Any deficiency is recognised in the income statement.

The estimation of claim Habilities and contfribution fiabilities perdformed &t
reporting date is part of the liability adequacy tests performed by the Fund.

Claim expenses

Claim expenses are charged {o profit or loss as incurred based on the
estimated liability for compensation owed to ceriificate holders or third parties
damaged by the certificate holders. They include direct and indirect claims and
sefllement costs and arise from events that have occurred up to the end of the
reporting period even If they have not yet been reported o the Campany.

Recoveries on retakaful claims are accounted for in the same financial year as
the originaf claims are recognised,

Commission expensesfacquisition costs

Commission expenses net of income derived from retakaful, which are cosis
directly incurred in securing contributions on takaful certificates net of income
derived from ceding retakaful contributions, are recognised as incurred. and
property allocated to the periods in which it is probable they give rise to income.

Under the Mudharabah principle, commission expenses are bormne by the
general takaful fund with the resulling underwriting surplus/deficit after
expenses shared between the Company and the participants as advised by the
Shariah Committee.

Under the Wakalsh principle, commission expenses are borne by the
shareholder's fund at an agreed percentage of the gross contributions. This is
in accordance with the principles of Wakalah as approved by the Shariah
Committee and agreed between the paricipants and the Company.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

)

Farrily takaful fund

The family takaful fund is mainfained in accordance with the requirements of the
Takafui Act, 1984 and consists of AFS reserves and any surplus/deficit attributable
to pariicipants which represents the participants' share in nét suplus/deficit of the
family takaful fund,

The family takaful fund surpius or deficit is determined by an annual actuarial
valuation of the family takaful funds. Surpius distributable io participants is
determined after deducting retakaful, claims/benefits paid and payable, expenses,
provisions and reserves and is distributed in accordance with the terms and
conditions prescribed by the Shariah Commitise.

(i} Contribution income

Ceontributions are recognised as soon as the amount of the contributions can
be reliably measured in accordance with the principles of Shariah as advised
by the Shariah Commitiee, Initial contribution is recognised from inception date
and subsequent contributions are recognised on due dates.

At the end of the financial year, all due contributions are accounted for to the
extent that they can be reliably measured.

Gutward retakaful contributions are recognised in the same financial year as
the original certificates to which the retakaful relates.
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{

Family takaful fund {(cont'd.}

(1)

(i)

Claims liabilities

Claims and setllement costs that are incurred during the financial vear are
recogrised when & claimable event occurs and/or the Company is notified.

Recoveries on retakaful claims are accounted for in the same financial year as
the original claims are recognised.

Claims and provisions for claims arising on family takaful certificates, including
seltlement costs, less retakaful recoveries, are accounted for using the case
basis method, and for this purpose, the benefits payable under a family takaful
certificate are recognised as follows:

- maturity or other certificate benefit payments due on specified dates are
tfreated as claims payabie on the due dates; and

- death, surrender and other benefits without due dates are treated as
claims payable, on the date of receipt of intimation of death of the assured
or cccurrence of the contingency covered.

Creationlcancellation of units

Net creation of units which represents coniributions paid by participants or
unitholders as payment for a new contract or subsequent payments to increase
the amount of that confract are reflected in the income statement of the
investment-linked funds. Net creation of units is recognised on a receipt basis,

Creationfcancellation of units is recognised in the financial statements at the

next valuation date, after the request to purchase/sell units is received from the
participants or unitholders.
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{f} Family takaful fund {cont'd.)

{iv) Commission expenses/facquisition costs

{v}

Commission expenses, which are costs directly ncurred in securing
contributions on takaful cerlificates, net of income derived from ceding
retakaful contributions, are recognised as incurred and properly allocated to the
periods in which it is probable that they give rise fo income,

Under the mudharabah principle, commission expenses are borne by the family
takaful fund with the resulting underwriting surplusideficit after expenses
shared between the Company and the participants as advised by the Shariah
Commitiee.

Under the wakalah principle, commission expenses are borne by the
shareholder's fund at an agreed percentage of the gross contributions. This is
in accordance with the principles of wakaiah as approved by the Shariah
Committee and agreed between the participants and the Company.

Family takaful certificate liabilities

Family takaful certificate liabilities are recognised when certificates are in-force
and contributions are charged.

The family takaful cerificale liabilities are derecognised when the cedificate
expires, is discharged or is cancelied. At each reporting date, an assessment is
made of whether the recognised family ftakaful cerlificate liabilities are
adequale through the performance of a lability adequacy test.
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(0

Family takaful fund {conf'd.}

(v} Family takaful certificate Habilities {cont'd.)

Liabilities of family takaful business are determined in accordance with

valuation guidefines for takaful operators issued by BNM. All family takaful

liabilities have been valued using a prospective actuarial valuation based on
the sum of the present value of future benefits and expenses less future gross

considerations arising from the certificates, discounted at the appropriate risk

discount rate. This method is known as the gross contribution valuation

method.

For the risk fund, the expected fulure cash flows of benefits are determined
using best estimate assumplions with an appropriate aliowance for PRAD from
expecied experience such that an overall ievel of sufficiency of certfificafe
reserves at a 75% confidence level is secured.

The liabilities in respect of the non-unit component of an investment-linked
certificate have been valued at the risk-free discount rate by projecting future
cash flows to ensure that all futwre outflows can be met at the product level
without recourse to addiftonal finance or capital support at any future time
during the duration of the investrment-linked certificate. The value of the unit
component is the net asset value of the fund which is treated as a liability.

For a one year family certificate or a one year extension to a family certificate
covering contingencies other than life or survival, the liability for such family
takaful cerlificatles comprises contribution and ciaim labilities with an
appropriate allowance for PRAD from the expected experience.

Adjustments {o the liabiiities at each reporting date are recorded in profit or .
loss. Profits originating from margins of adverse deviation on run-off contracts
are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the confract, whereas losses
are fully recognised in profit or loss during the first year of run-off.
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(m) Measurement and impairment of Qard

{n)

in the event where the assefs of the takaful funds are insufficient to meet the
liabilittes, shareholders are required {o rectify the deficit of the takaful funds via a
Qard, which is a profit free loan. The Qard shall be repaid from future surpluses of
the affected takaful funds. in the Shareholder's fund, the Qard is stated at cost less
impairment losses if any, whereas in the takaful funds, the Qard is stated at cost.

Al each reporting date, the Qard position and the ability of the affected fund to
generate sufficient surplus to repay the shareholder is monitored and measured.
The likehood that the Qard will be repaid and the duration of time that will be
required to repay the Qard is determined and ascertained via projected cash flows
which take into account past experience of the affected fund. The projected cash
flows are then discounted to determine the recoverable value of the Qard.

if the Qard is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between ifs cost and
its recoverable amount, less any impairment loss previously recognised is
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses are subsequently reversed in the
income statement if objective evidence exists that the Qard is no longer impaired.

Takaful receivables

Takaful receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at
the fair value of the consideration receivable. Subsequent fo initial recognition,
takaful receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the effective yield
method.

If there Is objective evidence that a takeful receivable is impaired, the Company
reduces the carrying amount of the takaful receivable accordingly and recognises
ihe impairment loss in profit or joss, Objective evidence of impairment for takaful
receivables and the determination of consequential impairment losses are as
described in Note 2.2(D{).

Takaful receivables are derecognised when the derecognition criferia for financial
assels, as described in Note 2.2(d), have been met.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

(0}

{2

{a)

Cash and cash eqguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and af banks, excluding fixed and
call deposits with licensed financial institutions. The statement of cash flows has
been prepared using the indirect method.

Income fax

Income tax on profit or loss for the financial year comprises current and deferred
tax. Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the
taxabie profit for the financial year and is computed using the tax rates that have
been enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided for, using the liability method, on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and lihilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assels are
recognised for alf deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused
tax credits to the extent that il is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused fax losses and unused
tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the fiability is setfled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substanfively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is
recognised in the income statement, except when it arises from z fransaction which
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred
tax is also charged or credited directly in other comprehensive income.

Zakat
Zakat represents tithes payable by the Company to comply with the principles of

Shariah. Zakat is computed based on the Working Capital Method at 2.5% of the
net assets of the Company as decreed by the Shariah Committee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

r

{s}

Takaful payables

Takaful payables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at
the fair value of the consideration payable less directly atiributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using
the effective yield metheod.

Financial liahilities

Financial liabiiities are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial kability.

Financial liabilities, within the scope of MFRS 139 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measument, are recognised in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company and/or the takaful funds become a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial lizbifities are classified
as either financial liabilifies at FVTPL or other financial liabilitiss.

During the financial year and as at the reporting date, the Company and the takaful
funds did not classify any of its financial labilities at FVTPL.

The Company's and the takaful funds' other financial liabilities include payabies
which are recognised initially at fair value pius directly attributable transaction costs
and are subsequenily measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

For other financial liabilittes, gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation
process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)

{s} Financial liabilities {cont'd.}

()

A financial liability is derecognised when the obiigation under the liability is
extinguished. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substaniially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

(0

Short-term henefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions ("SOCSC") are
recognised as an expense fn the perfod in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Company. Shorf-term accumulating
compensated absences such as paid annual leave are recognised when
services are rendered by employees that increase their entitlement fo future
compensated absences. Shorterm, non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave are recognised when the ahsences occur.

Defined contribution plan

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into separate funds and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if any of the funds do not
hold sufficient funds to pay all empioyee benefits refating fo employee services
in the current and preceding financial years.

As required by law, the Company makes such contributions to the national

pension scheme, the Employees Provident Fund ("EPF™. Such coniributions
are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.
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{t} Employee benefits (conf'd.)
{(iif} Share-hased compensation
- ESS

The ESS is an equity-setiled share-based compensation plan that affows
the Directors and employees to acquire shares of MBB. The total fair value
of share aptions granted te employees is recognised as an employee cost
with & corresponding increase in the amount due to MBB over the vesting
period and taking into account the probability that the options will vest. The
fair vaiue of share options is measured at grant date, taking into account, if
any, the market vesting conditions upon which the options were granted
but excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable on vesting date.

At each reporting date, MBB revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable over the vesting period,

- Restricted share units ("RSUM

Senior management personnel of MAHB are entitled to performance-
based restricied shares as consideration for services rendered. The RSU
may be settled by way of issuance and transfer of new parent shares or by
cash at the absolute discretion of the ESS Commities. The total fair vaiue
of RSU granted fo senior management empioyees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase in the reserve within the
parent's equity over the vesting period and taking into account the
probability that the RSU will vest. The fair value of the RSU is measured at
grant date, taking into account, the market vesting conditions upon which
the RSU were granted but exciuding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected io be awarded on the
vasting date.

Setllement with the ultimate holding company in respect of the arrangement of
the scheme is by cash over the vesting period.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd.)

{u) Foreign currency transactions

(v}

In preparing the financial statements, fransactions in currencies other than the
functional currency ("foreign currencies”) are recorded in the functional currencies
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each
reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at
the rates prevailing on the reporting date, Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rafes prevailing on
the daie when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not ranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the seiflement of monetary items, and on the
transtation of monetary iters, are included in the income statement for the financial
year.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in the income statement andfor other comprehensive income
for the period except for the differences arising on the franslation of non-monetary
tems in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary items are also recognised
directly in equity.

Other revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to the Company and/for takaful funds, and the amount
of the revenue can be measured reliably.

{i} Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised on a declared basis when the Company's
and/or takaful funds’ right to receive payment is established.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Cont'd.)

{vi

{w)

Other revenue recognition {cont'd.}

{i) Profit income
Profit income is recognised using the effective yield method.

{iif} Wakalah fees
Wakalah fees represent fees charged by the shareholder's fund to manage
takaful certificates issued by the general and family takaful funds under the
principle of Wakalah and are recognised as soon as the contributions to which
they relate can be reliably measured in accordance with the principles of
Shariah.

(iv} Fund management fees

Fund management fees are recognised when services are rendered.

Fee and commission income

Participants are charged for policy adminisiration services, surrenders and other
contract fees, These fees are recognised as revenue over the period in which the
related services are performed. If the fees are for services to be provided in future
periods, these fees are deferred and recognised over those future financial years.

Management fee income earned from investment-linked business is recognised on

an accrual basis based on a percentage of the net asset value of the investment-
tinked funds.

57



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd.)
{x} Equity instrumenis

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are
recognised and accounted for in the statement of changes in equity in the period in
which they are declared.

Transition to MFRS and application of MFRS 1

These are the Company's first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with
MFRS. In previous financial years, the financial statements of the Company were
prepared in accordance with FRS in Malaysia as modified by BNM Guidelines.

The accounting policies set out in Notes 2.2 have been applied in preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the financial period
ended 31 December 2011 and in the preparation of the opening statement of financial
position at 1 July 2011 (which is alsc the Company's date of fransiticn). The optional
exemptions available under MFRS 1 are not applicable to the Company and did not
result in any financial impact to the Company.

Standards issued but not yet effective
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standasds,
Amendments and Issues Commiftee ("IC"} interpretations have been issued by the

Malaysian Accounting Standards Board ("MASB") but are not yet effective and have nof
been adopted by the Company.

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

MFRS 101 Presentation of ftems of Other Comprehensive Income
(Amendments fo MFRS 101)
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2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective {cont'd.)

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 4 Janttary 2013

MFRS3 3 Business Combinations (IFRS 3 Business Combinations issued by IASB in
March 2004}

MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

MRS 11 Joint Amangements

MFRS 12 Disclosure of inferests in Other Entifies

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

MFRS 118 Employee Benefits

MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements

MFRS 128 investment in Associate and Joint Ventures

MFRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (IAS 27 as revised by
IASE in December 2004)

Arriendments to MFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
tLiabilities

Amendments to MFRS 1. First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards - Gavernment Loans

Amendments to MFRS 1. First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards - Annual improvements 2009-2011 Cycle)

Amendments to MFRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements (Annual
improvements 2009-2011 Cycle)

. Amendments o MFRS 116: Properly, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cyele}
Amendments to MFRS 132: Financial Instruments; Preseniation
{Annual improvements 2008-2011 Cycle}
Amendments to MFRS134: Interim Financial Reporting (Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycie)
Amendments to MFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements: Transition Guidance
Amendments to MFRS 11: Joint Arrangerments: Transition Guidance
Amendments to MFRS 12: Disclosure of interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance
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2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective (cont'd.)
Effective for financial periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2013 {cont'd.)

IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Amendment to IC Interpretation 2 Members’ Shares in Co-operative Entities and
Simitar Instruments (Annual Improvements 2008-2011 Cycle)

Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Amendments fo MFRS 132; Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Effective for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

MFRE 8 Financial Instrumenis

The Company plans to adopt the above pronouncements when they become effective in
the respective financial years. These pronouncemenis are not expected to have a
significant impact o the financial statements of the Company upon their initial
application except as described beilow;

(a} MFRS 8 Financial Instruments ("MFRS 9"}

MFRS 9 reflects the first phase of the work on the replacement of MFRS 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial fiabilities as defined in MFRS
139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, The adoption of the first
phase of MFRS § will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the
Company's financial assets. The Company wifl quantify the effect in conjunction
with the other phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.
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2.4 Standards issued but not vet effective (cont’d.)

(b} MFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements ("MFRS 10%)

(c)

MFRS 10 replaces part of MFRS 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that deals with consolidated financial statements and IC Interpretation
112 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities.

Under MFRS 10, an investor controls an investee when (a) the inveslor has power
over an investee, (b} the investor has exposure, or rights, fo variable returns from
its involvernent with the investee, ‘and {c} the investor has ability to use fis power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Under MFRS 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, controi was defined as the power
to govern the financial and operatmg poiicies of an entlity so as fo obtain benefils
from its activities.

MFRS 10 includes detailed guidance to explain when an investor has control over
the investee. MFRS 10 requires the investor to take into aceount all relevant facts
and circumstances. The Company is currently assessing the impact that this
Standard will have on the financial statements of the Company but based on
preliminary analyses performed, no material impact is expected.

MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ("MFRS 117}

MFRS 11 replaces MFRS 131 Inferests in Joint Ventures and IC Interpretation 113
Jointly-Controlled Entiies - Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers.

The classification of joint arrangements under MFRS 11 is determined based on the
rights and obligations of the parties to the joint arrangements by considering the
structure, the legal form, the contractual terms agreed by the parties to the
arrangement and when relevant, other facts and circumstances. Under MFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures, - . .
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D.)

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective (cont'd.)

{©)

{d)

(e}

MFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ("MFRS 117} (cont'd.)

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of
the arrangement have rights to the assets, and obiigations for the liabilities, relating
to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

MFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly controlled entities ("JCE™) using
proportionate consolidation, Instead, JCE that meet the definition of g joint venture
must be accounted for using the equity method. The Company is currently
assessing the impact that this Standard will have on the financial staferments of the
Company but based on preliminary analyses performed, no material impact is
expected.

MFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ("MFRS 127)

MFRS 12 includes alt disclosure requirements for interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and structured eniities. A number of new disclosures are
required, This standard affects disclosures only and is expected to have no
significant impact on the Company's financial position or performance.

MFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement ("MFRS 13")

MFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under MFRS for all fair value
measurements. MFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under MFRS

when fair value is required or permitted.

The Company is currently assessing the impact that this Standard will have on the
financial statements of the Company but based on preliminary analyses performed,
no material impact is expected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D.)

2.4 Standards issued but not yet effective {cont'd.)

{f

{g@)

MFRS 127 Separate Financial Statements ("MFRS 127")

As a consequence of the new MFRS 10 and MFRS 12, MFRS 127 is limited to
accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlied entities and associates in separate
financial statements.

As a consequence of the new MFRS 11 and MFRS 12, MFRS 128 is renamed as
MERS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, This new standard
describes the application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in
addition {0 associates.

Amendments to MFRS 101: Presentation of Financial Statements {Annual
improvements 2003-2011 Cycle) ("MFRS 1017

The amendments to MFRS 101 change the grouping of items presented in other
comprehensive income. ltems that could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or
loss at a fulure point in time (for example, exchange differences on fransiation of
foreign operations and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) would
be presented separately fram itemns which will never be reclassified (for example,
actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans and revaluation of land and
bulidings). The amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the
Company's financiat position and performance.

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

(a}

Critical judgments made in applying accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires
management to exercise judgment on the use of estimates and make assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, labilities,
income and expenses. Although these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions used that are significant
to the financial statements, and areas involving higher degree of judgment and
complexity, are disclosed as below:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgments (cont'd.)

{a} Critical judgments made in applying accounting policies {conf'd.}

{B)

{i}

(i)

impairment of AFS financial assets

Significant judgment is required {0 assess impairment for AFS financial assets.
The Company evaluates the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost; the financial health and near term business
autlook for the investee, including but not limited to factors such as industry
and sector performance, changes in technology; and operational and financial
cash flows.

impairment of receivables

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired, Factors considered by the Company
are probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtors
and default or significant delay in paymenits.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below,

(i)

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

intangible assets that can be separated and sold and have a finite useful life
are amortised over their estimated useful fives.

The determination of the estimated useful lives of these intangible assets
require management to analyse the circumstances, the industry and market
praclice and also to use judgment. At each reporting date, or more frequently
when events or changes in circumstances dictate, intangible assefs are
assessed for indications of impairment. if indications are present, these assets
are subject to an impairment review. The impairment review comprises a
comparison of the carrying amount of the assets with its recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgments {cont'd.}

{b} Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont'd.)

(i)}

(iif)

Uncertainty in accounting estimates for general takaful business

The principal uncertainty in the general takaful certificate liabilities arises from
the technical provisions which include the contribution and claim liabilitics. The
basis of valuation of the contribution and claim fiabilities is explained in Notes
2.2 (k)(iiy and 2.2 (k){iii} of the financial statements.

The esfimation bases for contribution fiabilities is explained in the related
accounting policy statement whilst claim liabilities comprise provision for
outstanding claims and IBNR. Generally, ciaims [abilities are estimated based
upon historical claims experience, existing knowledge of events, the terms and
conditions of the relevant policies and interpretation of circumstances.
Parlicularly relevant is past experience of similar cases, historical claims
development trends, legislative changes, judicial decisions and economic
conditions. It is certain that actual, future contribution and ciaim liabilities will
not exaclly develop as projected and they vary from the projections.

The estimales of contribution lHabilties and claims liabilities are therefore
sensitive to various factors and uncertainties. The establishment of technical
provisions is an inherently uncertain process and, as a consequence of this
uncertainty, the sventual settiement of contribution and elaims lizhiiities may
vary from the initial estimates,

Uncertainty in accounting estimates for family takaful business

There may be significant reporting lags between the cccurrence of an insured
event and the time it is actually reporfed. Following the identification and
notification of an insured loss, there may stil be uncertainty as to the
magnitude of the claim. There are many factors that will determine the level of
uncertainty such as inflation, judicial interprefations, legistative changes and
claims handling procedures.

For family takaful certificates, estimaies are made for future deaths, disabilities,
maturities, investment returns in accordance with the Company experience,
The family takaful fund bases the estimate of expected number of deaths on
applied mortality tables, adjusted where appropriate to reflect tha fund’s unique
risk exposures. The estimated number of deaths delermines the value of
possible fulure benefits 1o be paid out, which will be factored into ensuring
sufficient cover by reserves, which in retum is monitored against current and
future contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.)

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgments {cont'd.)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty {cont'd.)

(i)

{iv}

Uncertainty in accounting estimates for family takaful business {cont'd)

For those certificates that cover risks related to disability, estimates are mads
based on recent past experience and emerging trends.

At each reporting dale, these estimates are reassessed for adequacy and
changes will be reflected as adjustments to the liability,

Uncertainty in accounting estimates for shareholder's fund expenses
liahilities

Management expenses are categorized into 2 categories 1o reflect the nature
of the spending.

{a) Acquisition cost include the expenses incurred to write the business, such
as medical cost for underwriting, printing cost for the necessary
decuments, cost of setting up the product in the IT system and ete.

(b) Maintenance expenses include system maintenance cost, policy senvicing,
claim handling expenses, overhead and efc that associated with the
operation of the business on an on-going basis.

Only maintenance expenses will be included in the expense labilities
calculations.

The expenses labilities for family tekaful business are estimated using
prospeclive  actuarial valuation, by projecting fulure expenses and
shareholders' future income. The expected fulure cash flows used to compute -
the expense liabilities are based on best estimate assumptions with provision
of rsk margin for adverse deviation ("PRAD". These cash flows are
discounted to present date at the risk-free discount rate prescribed.

The valuation was made in accordance {o the Guidelines on Valuation Basis for
Liabilities of Family Takaful Business (BNM/RH/GL 004-20).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D.}

2.5 Significant accounting estimates and judgments {cont'd.)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty {cont'd.)

(iv) Uncertainty in accounting estimates for shareholder's fund expenses

liabilities (cont'd.)

The expense liabifities of general takaful fund refers to the higher of unearned
wakalah fees and best estimate for unexpired expense reserves with provision
of risk margin for adverse deviation. There are uncertainties in estimating these
two components:

{a) The unearned wakalah fees are estimated in a similar manner as the
calcuigtion for unearned contribution liabilities, for all fines of business.
The detailed estimation basis of unearned wakalah fees for general takaful
certificate liabilities is explained in Note 2.16 (i) (8) of the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

(b) The method used to value unexpired expense reserve is calculated using
adjiusted parameters {0 provide expenses liabilities at 75% confidence
level as required by the “Guidelines on Valuation Basis for Liabilities of
General Takaful Business”,

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax implications arising from the changes in corporate income tax
rates are measured with reference to the estimated realisation and settlement
of temporary differences in the future periods in which the tax rates are
expected to apply. based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date. While management's estimates on the realisation and
settiement of temporary differences are based on the available information at
the reporting dale, changes in business strategy, future operating performance
and other factors could impact on the actual fiming and amount of temporary
differences realised and settied. Any difference between the actual amount and
the estimated amount would be recognised in the income statement in the
financial year in which actual realisation and settliement oceurs.,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all impairment losses on investments,
net amortisation of premium in investments and other temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the benefits can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on
the lkely timing and level of future taxable profits fogether with future tax
planning strategies.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Shareholder's fund

Furniture,
fittings, office Computers
Motor Workin equipment and and
vehicles progress renovations  peripherals Total
RMW 000 RMW000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
31.12.2012
Cost
At 1 January 2012 589 - 19,390 15,988 35977
Additions - 406 560 417 1,383
Write off {266} - {16,983) {15,622) {32,771)
At 31 December 2012 323 408 2,967 893 4,580
Accumulated
Depreciation
At 1 January 2012 520 - 18,127 15,871 34,518
Charge for the year 36 - 492 115 6543
Write off (266) - {18,983) (15,522) (32,771)
At 31 December 2012 280 ~ 1,836 464 2,380
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2012 33 406 1,331 429 2,189
31.12.2011
Cost
At 1 July 2011 586 - 22,261 15,974 38,824
Additions - - 112 24 136
Adjustment - - (68) - (68
Reclassified to infangibie
assets (Note 4) - - {(770) - {7700
Write off - - {2,145) - {2,145)
At 31 December 2011 589 - 19,380 15,908 35,977
Accumulated
Depreciation
At 1 July 2011 502 - 17,809 15,835 34,146
Charge for the period 18 - 318 36 372
At 31 December 2011 520 - 18,127 15,871 34,518
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

Shareholder's fund {cont'd.}

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2011
Net Book Value

At 1 July 2011
General takaful fund
3.12.2012

Cost

Al 1 January 2012
Write off
At 21 December 2012

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year
Write off

At 31 December 2012

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2012
31.12.2011

Cost

At 1 July/
31 December 2011

Accumuiated Depreciation

ALt July 2011
Charge for the period
At 31 Decamber 2011

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2011
Net Book Value

At 1 July 2011

Furniture,
fittings, office  Computers
Motor Workin equipment and and

vehicles progress renovations  peripherals Total
RM'GLO RAMGO0 RM'OCG RM'000 RM'000
68 - 1,263 127 1,459

87 - 4,452 138 4,678

- - 578 1,514 2,083
) - (556} (1,514) {2,070}

. . 23 - 23

- - 573 1,014 2,087

- - 5 - 5
- - (556)  (1.514) (2.070)

- - 22 - 22

- . 1 - 1

- - 579 1,614 2,093

. - 571 1,514 2085

- - 4 ~ Z

- - 573 1,514 2,087

- 8 - 6

- - 8 - 8
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)
Family takaful fund

Furniture,
fittings, office  Computers
equipment and and
renovations  peripherals Total
RM000 RM'000 RAO00

31.12.2012

Cost

At 1 January 2012 1,838 1,858 3,697
Write off (1,808} {1,854) (3,660)
At 31 December 2012 32 5 37
Accumuiated

Depreciation

At 1 January 2012 : 1,833 1,859 3,682
Charge for the year 5 - 5
Write off {1.806) (1,854) {3,660}
Al 31 December 2012 32 5 37

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2012 - y -

31.12.2011
Cost

At 1 July/31 December 2011 1,838 1,859 3,657

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 July 2011 1,828 1,858 3,683
Charge for the period 4 - 4
At 31 December 2011 1,833 1,855 3,692

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2011 5 - 5

Met Book Value

At 1 July 2011 g - g
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

Company
Furniture,
fittings, office Computers
Motor Work in equipment and and
vehicles progress renovations  peripherals Total
RM'000 RM'C00 RM'O00 RN'DRO RM'O00

3.12.2012
Cost
At January 2012 589 - 21,807 19,371 41,767
Additions - 408 560 417 1,383
Write off (266) " (19,345) {18.590) £38,501)
At 31 December 2012 323 408 3022 868 4,649
Accumuiated

Depreciation
At 1 January 2012 520 - 20,533 19,244 40,2897
Charge for the year 38 - 502 118 653
Write off {266) - {19,345) {18,880) €38,501}
At 31 December 2012 280 - 1,680 469 2,449
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2012 33 406 1,332 429 2,200
31.12.2611
Cost
AT July 2071 589 - 24 678 19,347 44 614
Additions - - 112 24 136
Adjustment - - (68) - (683
Reclassified to Intangible

asseis (Note 4} - - (7703 - (770)
Write off - - (2,145) - (2,145)
At 31 December 2011 589 - 21,807 19,371 41,767
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT'D.)

Company (conf'd)
Furniture,
fittings, office  Computers
Motor Work in equipment and and
vehicles progress renovations  peripherals Total
RY'00C RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Accumulated
Depreciation
ALt July 2011 502 - 20,208 19,208 39,818
Charge for the year 18 - 324 38 378
Write off - ~ - - -
At 31 December 2011 520 - 20,633 19,244 40,297
Net Book Vaiue
At 31 December 2011 68 - 1,274 127 1,470
Net Book Value
At 1 July 2011 57 - 4,469 139 4,695

included in property, plant and equipment of the funds and Company are the costs of fully
depreciaied assets, which are still in use, as follows:

General Family
Shargholder's takaful takaful
fund fund fund

RM'000 RM'000 RM'C00

31.12.2012
Furniture, fitlings, office
equipment and renovations 94 - 25
Computers and peripherals 220 - 13
Motor vehicles 180 - -
484 - 35
31.12.2011
Furniture, fittings, office
equipment and renovations 16,997 556 1,806
Computers and peripherals 15,742 1,514 1,85¢
Motor vehicles 445 - -
33,184 2,070 3,665

72



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

4,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Sharehalder's fund

31.42.2012
Cost

At 1 January 2012
Additions

Write off

Al 31 December 2012

Accumuiated Amortisation
and Impairment

At 1 January 2012

Amortisation charge for the year
Write off

At 31 December 2012

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2012
31.12.2011

Cost

At 1 July 2011
Additions
Reclassified from property,

plant and equipment (Note 3)
Transfer from general takaful fund
At 31 December 2011

Accumuiated Amortisation
and Impairment

At 1 July 2011
Amortisation charge for the period
At 31 December 2011

Software Comptuter
development software
costs and licences Total
RNM'0DG RM000 RM'000
34,654 - 34,654
2,149 - 2,149
(2,208} - {2,208)
34,595 - 34,595
22,223 - 22223
5,908 . 5,908
{2,208) - (2,208}
25,923 - 25,923
8,672 - 8,672
30,859 - 30,859
2,497 - 2,497
770 - 770
528 - 528
34,654 - 34,654
18,464 - 18,464
3,758 - 3,758
22223 - 22223
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4.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS {(CONTD.)

Shareholder's fund {Cont'd)

Net Book Value

Al 31 December 2011

Net Book Value

At July 2011

General takaful fund
31.12.2012

Cost

At 1 Januaryf31 December 2012

Accumulated Amortisation
and impairment

At 1 January 2012
Amorlisation charge for the year
At 31 December 2012

Net Book Value

At 31 December 2012

31.42.201
Cost
At 1 July 2011

Transfer to shareholder's fund
At 31 December 2011

Software Computer
development software
cosis and licences Total
RM00O RAM'000 RM'CO0
12,431 - 12,431
12,385 - 12,385
- 11,234 11,234
- 11,201 11,201
- 15 15
- 11,216 11,216
- 18 18
528 11,234 11,762
{528) - (528)
- 11,234 11,234
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4.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

General takaful fund (Cont'd.)

Software Computer
development software
costs and licences Total

RM'000 RM'QCO RM'000

Accumulated Amortisation
and Impairment
At 1 July 2011 - 11,184 11,194
Amortisation charge for the period - 7 7
Al 31 December 2011 - 11,201 11,201
Net Book Vaiue
At 31 December 2011 - 33 233
Net Book Value
At 1 July 2011 528 40 568
Family takaful fund
31.12.2012
Cost
At 1 January/31 December 2012 - 9,822 9,922
Accumulated Amortisation
and Impairment

At 1 January 2012 - 9,011 9,041
Amortisation charge for the year - 438 438
At 31 December 2012 - 9449 9,448
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2012 - 473 473
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4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.)

Family takaful fund {Cont'd.)

Software Computer
development software
costs and licences Total

RM'OCD RAM OO0 RM'000
31.42.2011
Cost
At 1 Julyf31 December 2011 - 8,922 9,922
Accumulated Amortisation

and Impairment
At 1 July 2011 - 8,687 8,687
Amortisation charge for the period - 324 324
At 31 December 2011 - 8,011 8,011
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2011 - 911 911
Net Book Value
At 1 July 2011 - 1,235 1,235
Company
3M.12.2012
Cost
At 1 January 2012 34,654 21,156 55,810
Additions 2,149 “ 2,148
Write off {2,208} “ (2,208}
Al 31 December 2012 34 585 21,156 55,751
Accumulated Amostisation
and impairment

Ab 1 January 2012 22,223 20,212 42 436
Amortisation charge for the year 5,908 453 8,361
Write off {2,208) - {2,208)
At 31 December 2012 25,023 20,665 46,588
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4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D.}

Company (cont'd.)

Software Computer
development software
costs and licences Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2012 8,672 491 8,163
31.12.2011
Cost
At 1 July 2011 31,387 21,158 52,543
Additions 2,497 - 2,497
Reclassified from property,
plant and equipment (Note 3) 770 - 770
Transfer from/(te) fund - - -
Al 31 December 2011 34,654 21,156 55,810
Accumulated Amortisation
and impairment
At 1 July 2011 18,464 19,881 38,345
Amortisation charge for the period 3,759 331 4,080
At 31 December 2011 22,223 20,212 42 435
Net Book Value
At 31 December 2011 12,431 944 13,375
Net Book Value
At 1 July 2011 12,823 1,275 14,198
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& INVESTMENTS

Shareholder's General Family
fund fakaful fund takaful fund Company
RAM'000 RM 000 RM 080 RNM'000
31.12.2012
Available-for-sale ("TAFS") 763,134 1,040,792 2,225,372 4,029,298
Designated upon initial recognition
as at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss ("FVTPL" - - 4,442,783 4,442 783
Heild for Trading ("HFT™) - - 13,578 13,678
Loans and réceivables {"LAR" 113,860 211,870 639,623 964,653
877,084 1,251,862 7,321,356 9,450,312
31.12.2011
Available-for-sale ("AFS") 204 222 824,536 1,875,704 3,004,462
Designated upon initial recognition
as at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss ("FVTPL") - - 3,711,116 3,711,116
Held for Trading ("HFT") - - 68,618 68,618
Loans and recelvables ("LAR") 130,748 262,760 1,002,172 1,385,880
334,870 1,087,298 5,757,610 8,179,876
1.07.2011
Available-for-sale ("AFS") 180,078 793,080 1,845,538 2,818,707
Designated upon initial recognition
as at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss ("FVTPL" - - 3,386,088 3,386,086
Held for Trading ("HFT") - - 118,002 116,002
Loans and receivables ("LAR") 154,094 181,873 1,054,315 1,300,282
334,173 974,863 6,401,941 7,711,077
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5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

{I) AFS financial assets

31.12,2012

At fair value:

Malaysian government papers
Unquoted debt securities in

Malaysia
Equity securities:
Quoted in Malaysia

Unguoted in Malaysia

Quoted unit and property trust

funds in Malaysia

Negotiable islamic certificates

of deposit

31.12.2011

Al fair value:

Malaysian government papers
Unquoted debt securities in

Malaysia
Equity securities:
Cuoted in Malaysia

Unquoted in Malaysia

Quoted unit and property trust

funds in Malaysia

Negotiable I1slamic cerificales

of deposit

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'00G RM'000
12,167 210,218 277 .861 500,238
657,865 618,182 1,308,083 2,580,130
91,237 185,617 601,145 877,999
32 - - 32
1,843 4,087 23,686 29,618
- 24,688 16,597 41,285
763,134 1,040,702 2,225 372 4,029,288
2,060 177,601 226,142 405,793
164,816 485,048 1,081,262 1,725,033
37,170 152,484 625,230 814,884
32 - - 32
184 1,581 17,088 18,823
- 23,922 15,875 39,897
204,222 824 536 1,875,704 3,004,462
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5.

INVESTMENTS {(CONT'D.}

(i}

{ii)

AFS financial assets (Cont'd.}

Shareholder's General Family
fund takafui fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RNM000 RM'000 RM'GOO
1.07.2011
Ad fair valus:
Maiaysian government papers 12,023 174,685 218,570 406,288
Unquoted debt securities in
Malaysia 132,097 443,636 955,843 1,831,576
Equity securities:
Quoted in Malaysia 35,314 148 121 633,150 817,585
Unquoted in Malaysia 230 - - 230
Guoted unit and property trust
funds in Malaysia 415 2,003 13,190 21,108
Negotiable islamic cerdificates
of deposit - 23,135 18,785 41,620
180,079 793,080 1,845,538 2,818,707
Financial assets designated as FVTPL upon initial recognition
Family
takafui fund Company
RM'000 RM'GOO
3t.12.2012
At fair value:
Malaysian government papers 921,405 921,405
Unquoted debt securties in Malaysia 3,421,175 3,421,175
Negotiable Islamic cedificates of deposit 100,203 100,203
4,442,783 4,442,783
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5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

(i) Financial assets designated as FVTPL upon initial recognition {Cont'd.)

Family
takaful fund Company
RNT000 RM'GG0
31.12.2011
At fair value;
Malaysian government papers 772,039 772,039
Unquoted debt securities in Mataysia 2,842 585 2,842 585
Negotiable islamic certificates of deposit 86,492 086,492
3,711,116 3,711,116
1.07.2011
At fair value;
Malaysian government papers 776,163 776,163
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia 2,493,012 2,483,012
Negotiable [sfamic cerificates of deposit 116,811 116,811
3,386,086 3,386,086
{iif) HFT financial assets
Family
takafui fund Company
RM'GO0 RM'000
31.12.2012
Af fair vaiue:
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 5847 5,847
Foreign notes 7,731 7,731
13,5978 13,578
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5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.}

{iif} MFT financial assets {Cont'd.)

Family
takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM"000
31.12.2011
At fair value:
Negotliable Islamic certificates of deposit 10,755 10,755
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 44,357 49,357
Foreign notes 8,508 5,606
58,618 68,618
1.87.2011
At fair value:
Negotiable islamic certificates of deposit 50,129 50,129
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 54,735 54,735
Foreign notes 11,138 11,138
116,002 116,002
{iv) LAR
Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM0GD RM'€00 RMWO00 RM'000
31.12.2012
Deposits and placements with
financial institutions
{slamic investment accounts with:
Licensed financial institutions 113,824 211,070 830,410 855,304
Others 136 - 8,213 9 349
113,960 211,070 639,623 964,653
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5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

(iv) LAR (Cont'd.)

31.12.2011

Deposits and placements with

financial institutions

istamic investment accounts with:

Licensed financial instifulions

Others

1.07.2011

Deposits and placements with

financial institutions

Istamic investment accounts with:

Licensed financial institutions

Cthers

investments maiuring afier 12 months ;

31.12.2612

AFS
FVTPL

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'GO0 RM'Go0 RM 000
130,617 262,760 947 714 1,341,091
131 - 54,458 54,588
130,748 262,760 1,002,172 1,395,680
153,963 181,696 1,000,029 1,335,688
131 177 54,286 54,584
154 094 181,873 1,084,315 1,390,282
Shareholder's General Family
fund takafulfund takaful fund Company
RM'O00 - RM000 RM'G00 RM'000
670,022 568,050 1,501,326 2,738,398
- - 4,221,142 4,221,142
670,022 568,050 5,722,488 6,960,540
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5. INVESTMENTS (CONT'D.)

[nvestments maturing after 12 months (Cont'd.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RAM'000 RAYTG00 RM'G30 RM'000
31.12.2011
AFS 166,866 543,170 1,280,538 2,000,572
FVYTPL - - 3,641,965 3,641,965
HFT - - 27,974 27,874
166,866 543,170 4,960 475 5,670,511
1.07.2011
AFS 144,120 487,115 1,148,464 1,789,699
FVTPL - . 3,262,114 3,262,114
HFT - - 49 444 49 444
144,120 497 115 4 480,022 5,101,257

{iv} Fair value of financial investments

An analysis of the different fair value measurement bases used in the determination of the
fair values of investments are further disclosed in Note 38(v) of the financial statements.

6. FINANCING RECEIVABLES

Shareholder's General Family
fund fakaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 . - RWM000
31.12.2012
Corporate loans - 3,381 42,098 45,480
Staff loans:
Secured 18,334 - - 18,334
Unseacured 115 - - 115
Others 2,492 - 19 2,511
Alfowance for impairment losses {622} (3,381) (25,196) (29,189)
20,319 - 16,822 37.241
Receivable within 12 monihs 2,228 - - 2,228
Receivable after 12 months 18,091 - 16,022 35,013
20,319 - 16,922 37,241
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6. FINANCING RECEIVABLES {CONT'D.)

31.12.20141

Corporate loans
Staff loans:
Secured
Unsecured
Other
Allowance for impairment lossas

Receivable within 12 months
Receivable after 12 months

1.67.2011

Corporate loans
Staff icans:
Secured
Unsecured
Other
Allowance for impairment losses

Receivable within 12 months
Receivable after 12 months

Shareholder's General Family

fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'GO0 RM'600 RMO00 RM'GDO
- 3,396 65,648 65,044
15,056 - - 19,056
174 - - 174
2,405 - 227 2,832
{580} (3,396} {24,997} {28,973}
21,085 - 40,678 1,933
2,277 - 2,705 4,982
18,778 - 38,173 56,551
21,055 - 40,878 61,933
- 5,453 78,440 83,893
22772 - - 22 772
. - 45 45
{680) (3,832} (24,999} (284113
22,182 1,621 53486 77,299
1,828 858 12,813 15,400
20,364 763 40,673 61,800
22,192 1,621 53,486 77,299
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8. FINANCING RECEIVABLES (CONT'D.)
The carrying amounts of financing receivables approximate their fair values as these loans are
issued al profit rates that are comparable to instrumenis in the market with similar

characteristics and risk profiles and, accordingly, the impact of discounting thereon ig not
material.

The weighted average effective profit rate of financing receivables at the reporting date was
6.29% (31.12.2011: 6.86%, 1.7.2011: 6.52%).

7. TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES

General Family
takafui fund takaful fund Company
RM'C0D R0O00 RM'000
31.12.2012
Due contributions including agents/
brokers and co-iakaful balances 90 254 131,127 230,381
Due from retakaful operators 28,558 7,452 38,011
127,813 138.579 266,352
Allowance for impairment iosses (21,121 (41,217 (62,338)
106,6592 97,362 204,054
31.12.2011
Due cantributions inciuding agents/
brokers and co-takaful balances 81,686 74,630 - 158,318
Pue from retakaful operators 32,203 10,461 42 564
113,888 85,081 198,880
Allowance for impairment losses {(21,237) {16,642) (37,879)
92,652 635,449 161,101

86



286243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

7. TAKAFUL RECEIVABLES (CONT'D.}

General Farnily
takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'G00 RMN000
1.07.2011
BDue contributions including agenis/
brokers and co-takafui balances 894,756 88,353 184,109
Due frorm retakaful operators 29,393 5,063 35,456
124,149 95,416 218,565
Allowance for impairment losses (26,531} (15,144) (41,675)
97,618 80,272 177,890
8. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Shareholder's General Family
fured  fakaful fund takaful fund Company
RM000 RM'GO0 RM'QGO RM'000Q
3.12.2012
Sundry receivables, deposits
and prepayments 3,752 1,804 5,145 10,751
Allowance for impairment losses {1,430} - {550) (1,880)
2,322 1,854 4 585 8,771
Investment profit receivable 8,132 10,777 60,444 88,353
Qard due from family
takaful fund* 36,684 - - -
Amounts due from:
General takaful fund™ 64,012 - 1,340 -
Family takaful fund** 170,309 - - -
Amount due from ultimate
holding company™™* - - 1,663 1.663
Amount due from related parties™ 114 - - 114
Amount due from stockbrokers 1,202 5,880 35,524 43,406
282,775 19,311 112,565 142,307
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8. QTHER RECEIVABLES {CONT'D.}

Shareholder's General Family
fund takafuifund takaful fund Company
RM'GO0 RM'0GO RM'000 RAFBO0
31.42.2011
Sundry receivables, deposits
and prepayments 5,729 3,248 . 31,318 40,293
Allowance for impairment losses {401) - - {401}
5,378 3,246 31,318 35,892
Investment profit receivable 1,562 8,566 50,277 60,405
Qard due from family
takaful fund™ 36,684 - - -
Amounts due from:
General takaful fundg* 48,630 - 7,678 -
Farnily takaful fund™ 428,038 - - -
Amount due from uitimate
holding company™ - - 1,663 1,663
Amourn due from related parties** 87 8 181 274
Amount due from stockbrokers 1,838 - 1,002 2.840
522,187 11.818 92 119 105,074
1.07.2011
Sundry receivabies, deposits
and prepaymenis 7.551 2,087 5731 15,409
Allowance for impairment losses {(1%) - - {16}
7,675 2,087 5,731 15,393
Investment profit receivable 2,424 8,408 50,005 60,837
Qard due from family
takaful fund* 36,684 - - -
Amounts due from:
General takaful fund** 58,108 - 4 861 -
Farmily takaful fund™ 353,824 - - -
Amount due from ultimate
hoiding company™ - - 1,277 1,277
Amount due from related parties™ 341 - 2 343
Amount due from stockbrokers 32 139 1,870 2,141
500,086 10,634 63,846 79,861
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8.

OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D.)

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these balances.

*  Qard represents a benevelent, profit-free loan to the family takafut fund was used to make
good any actuariat valuation deficit in the group family takaful fund. The amount is
unsecured and is repayable out of future surpluses of the group family takaful fund upon
demand.

** The amounts due from the ultimate holding company, the holding company and related
companies, and the general fakaful and family takaful funds in the respective funds are
- unsecured, not subject to any profit elements and are repayable upon demand.

SHARE CAPITAL

No. of shares Amount
‘000 RM00G

Shareholder's fund

31.42.2012

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
At beginning and end of year 800,000 500,000

lssued and paid-up:
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
At beginning and end of year 100,000 100,000

31.12.2041 and 1.07.2011

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
At beginning and end of periodfyear 500,000 500,000

Issued and paid-up;
Ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
At beginning and end of periodiyear 100,000 100,000
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10. RESERVES

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
KRM'OG0 RM'000 RM'000
Shareholder's fund/Company
Non-distributable:
AFS reserves 14,118 10,790 10,883
Distributable:
Retained profits 645,177 519,454 475,938
§59,296 530,244 486,921

The AFS reserve of the Company arese from the changes in the fair value of the investment
assets classified as AFS financial assets.

11. PARTICIPANTS' FUND

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.067.2011
RM'000 RM'Q00 RM'GO0
Takaful funds and Company
General takaful fund (Note {a)) 123,172 87,946 92,690
Family takaful fund (Note (b))} 1,965,923 1,542,038 1,458,832
2,089,085 1,629,984 1,551,622
Less : Qard elimination (36,684) (36,684) {36,684}
2,082,411 1,593,300 1,514,938
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11. PARTICIPANTS' FUND (CONT'D.)

(a) General takafu! fund

Accumulated surplus (Note (i)
AFS reserves (Note (i)

(i) Accumulated surplus

At beginning of year/period
Surplus attributable to
participants during the

year/period

Hibah paid o parlicipants
during the year/period
At end of year/period

(i} AFS reserves

At beginning of year/period
Net gain on fair value changes
Realised gain transferred {o
income statemeant (Note 20)
At end of year/period

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
RMO00 RM'G00 RM000
90,922 58,385 58,505
32,250 28,561 34,185
123,172 87,946 82,690
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
58,385 58,505 55,848
48,834 12,940 45,357
{16,287) {13.060) (42,700}
90,922 58,385 58,505
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
RM'000 RM*000 RMC00
29,561 34,185 19,758
26,253 4,666 28,915
(23,564) (9,290) {13,488)
32,250 28,561 34,185
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11. PARTICIPANTS' FUND (CONT'D.)

(b} Family takaful fund

()

©;

31122012 31.12.2014 1.07.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00
Accumidated surpius (Note (i) 1,787,174 1,349,741 1,259,366
Card™ {(Note (i)} 36,684 36,684 36,684
AFS reserves (Note (i) 142,065 155,613 162,882
1,865,923 1,542,038 . 1,458,832
Accumuliated surpius
31.12.2012 3t12.2011 1.07.2011
RM'200 RM'000 RM'0C0
At beginning of year/period 1,348,741 1,269,366 1,080,541
Surplus attributable to
participants during the
year/period 414,914 102,168 219,068
Hibah paid to padicipants
during the yearfperiod 22518 {11,793} (20,243)
At end of vear/period 1,787,174 1,348 741 1,258,366
Qard
3122012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
RM'C00 RM'900 RM'000
At beginning/end of year/period 36,684 36,684 36,684

Management expects that the Qard will be repaid by the family takafuf fund within §
o 10 years from the date of the financial statements. The Qard has been retained
within the group family takaful fund to ensure that the fund continues to strenghten in
terms of financial positicn, before cash repayment is made to the shareholder's fund,
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11. PARTICIPANTS' FUND (CONT'D.)
(b} Family fakaful fund (cond'd))

(iiiy AFS reserves

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
RM'000 RM'GO0 RM'000
At beginning of yearfperiod 155,613 162,882 85,332
Net gain on fair value changes 02,236 29,691 133,282
Reaiised gain transferred to
income statement {Note 20) {105,784) {36,860 (56,732}
At end of year/period 142,065 155,613 162,882
12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES
Gross Retakaful Net
RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
Takafud funds and Company
31.12.2612
General takaful fund (Note {a)) 1,294,156 {273,3658) 1,020,721
Family takafui fund (Note (b)) 5,303,482 {18,634) 5,284,848
6,597,638 {291,899) 6,305,638
31.12.2011
General takaful fund {Nete (a)) 1,137,876 (278,108) 858,768
Family takaful fund (Note (b)) 4,812,034 {18,832) 4,793,202
5,849,910 {296,940} 5,652,970
1.07.2011
General takaful fund {Note (a)} 1,042,855 {300,084) 742,791
Family takaful fund (Note (b)) 4,568,158 {21,081} 4,547,077
5.6811.013 {321,145} 5,289,868
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12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

(a) General takaful fund

Gross Retakaful Net
RM'000 RN'000 RN000
31.12.2012
Claims liabilities (Note (i) 748,517 (237,507) 511,010
Contribution liabilities (Note (i)} 545 639 {35,858) 508,781
1,294,166 (273,365) 1,020,791
31.12.2011
Claims liabilities (Note (i) 661,800 (258,229} 403 571
Cantribution liabilities (Nofe {ii)} 476,076 (19.879) 456,197
1,137,876 (278,108} 858,768
1.07.2011
Claims fiabilities (Note (i)) 552,811 {234,780} 318,031
Contribution liabilities (Note (i) 490,044 {65,284} 424,760
1,042 855 (300,064) 742,791
(i} Claims habilities
Gross Retakaful Net
RMO00 RM'000 RM'000
31.12.2012
At beginning of year 661,800 {258,229 403,571
(Claims incurred in the current _
accident year 479,285 (22,8207 456,465
Movement in claims incurred
in prior accident years (47,371) 32,432 (14,938)
Claims paid during the year (372,058) 6,707 {365,351)
Movements in PRAD 26,861 4,403 31,264
At end of the year 748,517 {237 ,507) 511,010
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12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{a) General takaful fund (cont'd )}

(i} Claims liabilities (conf'd.)

31.12.2011

At beginning of period

Claims imcurred in the current
accident period

Movement in claims incurred
in prior accident years

Ciaims paid during the period

Movements in PRAD

At end of the period

1.67.2011

At beginning of vear

Claims incurred in the current
accident year

Movement in ¢laims incurred
in prior accident years

Ciaims paid during the year

Movernents in PRAD

At end of the year

Gross Retakaful Net
RMQ00 RM'000 RM'CO0
552,811 (234,780) 318,031
437,396 (112,272) 325,124

{305,782} 150,913 {154 B69)
(138,347) 5,535 (132.811)
145 722 (67,626) 48 096
661,800 {258,229) 403,571
361,348 {83,842) 267,507
437,062 {176,297} 260,755

17.6589 12,006 29.665

{285,859) 28,580 (237.269)
2 610 (5,237) (2,627}
552,811 {234,780) 318,031

95



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES {CONT'D.)

{a) General takaful fund {cont'd.}

{if}y Contribution liabifities

31.12.2012

Al beginning of the year

Coniributions written during
the vear

Contributions earmned
during the year

At end of the vear

31.12.2011

At beginning of the petind

Contributions written during
the period

Contributions earned
during the period

At end of the period

1.07.2011

At beginning of the vear

Contributions written during
the year

Contributions earned
during the year

At end of the year

Gross Retakaful Net
RM'000 RM'000 RM'0GO
476,076 (18,879) 456,197
867,259 {96,399) 770,860

(797,656} 80.420 (717.,276)
545,638 (35,858) 508,781
490 044 (65,284) 424 760
358,715 (31,162) 324,083

(369,683) 75,567 (293,116)
476,076 {(19.879) 458,187
379,283 (20,438) 349,845
835,241 (161,773) 534 468

(525,480 55 927 {459 553)
490,044 (65,284) 424 760
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12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.}

{b) Family takaful fund

() The family takaful certificate labilittes and its movements are further analysed as

follows:
Gross Retakaful Net
RAMO00 RM'000 RM000
31.12.2012
Provision for outstanding
ciaims (Note {i}) 128,083 (113) 127,940
Actuarial liabilities {Note (i)} 5,118,543 {18,521} 5,100,022
NAV attributable to
unitholders (Note (i} 56,888 - 56,886
5,303,482 (18,634) 5 284 848
31.12.2011
Provision for outstanding
claims {Note {ii} 125,546 - 125,546
Actuarial liabilities (Note (ii}) 4,818,790 (18,832) 4,599,958
NAV atfributable to
unitholders {Note (i)} 67,698 - 67,698
4,812,034 {18,832) 4,783,202
1.07.2011
Provigion for outstanding
claims (Nete (i) 104,725 - 104,725
Actuarial liabilities (Note (i) 4,346,553 {21,081} 4,325 472
NAV attributable to
unitholders (Note (ii}) 116,880 - 116,880
4,568,158 {21,081} 4,547 077
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12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)
(0 Family takaful fund (Cont'd.)

{i) Movementis of family takaful certificate liabilities

31,12.2012

As at 1 January 2012

Net earned cortribution

Other revenue
Experience/benefit variation
Claims intimated during the year
Claims paid during the year
Other expenses

Taxation

Increase in cettificate reserves
As at 31 December 2012

Provision for NAV
Cutstanding Actuarial  Attributable fo Gross Retakaful Net
Claims  Liabilities Unitholders Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RM'Q00 RN'O00 RM'0G0 RWMQ00 RM000 RM'000
125,546 4,618,790 67,698 4,812,034 {18,832) 4,793,202
- - - - {12,183} (12.163)
- - 2,991 2.991 - 2,591
{3,676) - - {8,679) 3,558 (1,078)
838,726 (639,728) - - {(113) (113)
(627.543) - {12,650 {640,133} 3.565 (636,628)
- - {937) (937} - {937)
- - {216} (216) - {216)
- 1,138,479 - 1,139,479 311 1,139,790
128,053 5,118,543 56,886 5,303,482 (18,834) 5,284,848
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12. TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES {CONT'D.)

{b} Family takaful fund (Cont'd.)

(i) Movements of family takaful certificate labilities (cont'd )

31.12.2011

As at 1 July 2011

Net earned contribution

Other revenue

Experiencesbenefit variation
Claims intimated during the period
Claims paid during the period
Other expenses

Taxation

increase in cerlificate reserves

As at 31 December 2011

Provision for NAY

Outstanding Actuarial Atiributable to Gross  Reiakaful Net
Claims  Liahilities Unitholders Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RM'0G0 RREFO0G RM'0G0 RMO00 RM'9GH RM'000
104,725 4,346 553 116,880 4,568,158 (21.081) 4,547 077

- - {1,219} (1,219 (10,808) (11,827)

- - 1,480 1,490 - 1,480

1,832 - - 4,632 3,818 5,450
345,022 {345,022} = - - -
(325,833} - (48,919) (374,752) 6,790 (367,962)
- - (513) (513) - {513)
- - {21) 21 - (21)

- 617,259 - 617,289 2,249 619,608

125,546 4,618,790 67.698 4 812,034 {18,832) 4,743,202
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12, TAKAFUL CERTIFICATE LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

(b} Family takaful fund (Cont'd.})

(i} Movements of family takaful certificate liabilities {cont'd.)

1.07.2011

As at 1 July 2010

Net earned contribution

Other revenus
Experience/benefit variation
Claims intimated during the year
Claims paid during the year
Other expenses

Tasation

Increase in certificate reserves
As at 30 June 2011

Provision for NAV

Qutstanding Actuarial  Attributable to Gross  Retakaful Net
Claims  Liabilities Unitholders Liabilities Assels Liabilities

RM 000 RMMQCO R&¥000 RM'000 RMQ00 RM'000
87,272 3,835,535 314,994 4,237 801 (31,078} 4,206,723
- - 1,218 1,218 {20,236} {19,017}

- - 17,493 17,493 - 17.493

814 - - 814 16,287 17,101

638,450 (639,450) - - - -
{622.811) - {206,258) (829,069) 3,949 {825,120}
- - (8,918} (9,919) - {2.219)
- - {649) (549) - {649)

- 1,150,468 - 1,150,468 9,997 1,160,465

104,725 4,346,553 116,880 4,568,158 {21,081) 4,547,077
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13. EXPENSE LIABILITIES

Shareholder's fund

Expense liabilities for general

{akaful fund:
Provision for unearned wakalah fees

Expense liabilities for family
takaful fund:
Unexpired expense reserve ("UER")

31.12.2012

At beginning of the year

Woakalah fee received during the
year (Note 18)

Wakalah fee earned during the year

Movement in provision for UER

At end of the year

101

31122012 31.42.2011 1.07.2011
RN000 RM0D0 RMO00
83,104 72,992 66,841
223,024 144,981 152,116
306,128 217,973 219,087
General Family
takaful fund takafd fund Total
RV 0OQ RW000 RM000
72,992 144,981 217,873
217,182 - 217,162
{207.080) - (207.080)
- 78,043 78,043
83,104 223,024 306,128
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13. EXPENSE LIABILITIES (CONTD.)

31.12.2011

At beginning of the period

Wakalah fee received during the
period (Note 18)

Wakalah fee earned during the period

Movement in provision for UER

At end of the period

1.67.2011

At beginning of the year

Wakalah fee received during the
year

Wakalah fee earned during the year

Movement in provision for UER

At end of the year

102

General Family

takafut fund takaful fund Total

RM'G00 RM'O00 RM'000

66,941 152,116 219 057

88,029 - 88,028
(81,978) - (81,978)
- {7,135} (7,135)

72,992 144,881 217.973

51,535 138,518 180,054

161,318 - 161,316
{145,910) - (145,810}

- 13,6897 13,507

66,941 152,116 219,057
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14. DEFERRED TAXATION

31.12.2012

At beginning of year
Recognised in :
Income statement (Note 25)
Other comprehensive income
At end of year

31.12.2011

At beginning of period
Recognised in :
Income statement {(Note 25)
Other comprehensive income
At end of period

1.07.2011

At beginning of year
Recognised in :

income statement

Cther comprehensive income
At end of year

Shareholder's Family

fund takaful fund Company

RM'000 RM'000 RAM'000
{6,747) (63} {8,610)

2,612 4 2,608
{1,110} - {1,110}
(5,245) (67) {5,312)
(7.772) {671) {8,443)

950 608 1,568

65 - 65
(6,747) (63) {6,810}
{4,029) 1,210} {5,239
(2,386) 539 {1,847}
{1,.357) - {1,357)
{7,772} {671) {8,443)
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14, DEFERRED TAXATION {(CONT'D.)
Deferrext tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to

the same fiscal authority. The net deferred tax liabllities shown in the statements of financial
position have been determined after appropriate offsetting as follows:

Family takaful fund

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1.07.20141
RM'060 RM'000 RM000
Deferred tax liabilities (67) (63} (671}

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities during the financial year/period
prior to offsetting are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.42.2011 1.07.2011
RM'000 RM'0CGO R 000
Fair value adjustment
Af beginning of the year/period {63} {E71) {1,210
Recognised in incoms statement (4} 608 539
At end of the year/period {67) {63) 671}
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14. DEFERRED TAXATION {CONT'D.)

Sharefhiolder's fund

Deferred tax assets
Deferred {ax liabilities

31422012 31.12.2011 1.07.2011
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,784 278 385
(7,029) (7,025) (8,137)
{5.245) (6.747) (7.772)

The companents and movements of deferred tax {liabilities)/assets of the Shareholder's fund during the financial year/pariod prior {o ofiselting are as follows:

impairment MNet accretion Accelerated
AF3 en AFS ot discounts Fair value capital
reserves  financial assets  on investments  adjustment allowances Others Total
RM'GOG RMG0D RNO00 RM'009 RM'000 Ri'g00 RAYOUG
At 1 January 2092 (3,596) 133 {3) {627} (2,798} 145 {6,747}
Recognised in:
Income staterment - 360 1,133 627 475 16 2612
Other comprehensive income (1,119) - - - - - {1,110
Al 31 December 2012 (4,706) 493 1,130 - (£,323) 161 {5,245)
At 1 July 2011 (3.661) 153 67 (627) (3.848) 145 (7.772)
Recognised in:
income siatement - (20} {7l - 1,050 - 960
Other comprehensive income 85 - - - - - 85
At 31 December 2011 {3,596} 133 3 {627} (2,799) 145 (6,747)
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14, DEFERRED TAXATION {CONT'D.)

Bhareholder's fund (cont'd.)

The components and movements of deferred tax (liabiliiesassets of the Shareholder's fund durin

g the financial year/period prior to offsetiing are as folfows:

(coni'd,)
Impairment Net accretion Accelerated
AFS on AF3 of discounts Fair value capitaj
reserves financial assets oninvestments  adjustmeant allowances Qihers Total
RM'000 RM'G0D RM'000 RM'G00 RM000 RIMOGO Rm'000
At 1 July 2010 (2.304) - 120 780 {2,625 - {4,028}
Recognised in:
Income statement - 183 {53) {1.407) {1.224) 145 {2,386)
Other comprehensive incame (1,357} - - - - - (1,367}
At 30 June 2011 (3.661) 153 57 {827} (3,849) 145 (7772}
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15. TAKAFUL PAYABLES

Shareholder's General Family

fund takaful fund takafulfund  Company
RM'000 R\V000 RN'OOO RM'O00

31.12.2042
Due {0 agents and brokers 3,008 43,004 51,872 898,074
Due to retakaf operators - 46,089 92758 55,364
3,008 89,183 61,247 - 153,438

31.42.2011
Due fo agents and brokers - 11,392 50,510 61,802
Due 1o retakaful operators - 45,545 19,290 64,835
- 86,937 69,800 126,737

1.07.2011

Due to agents and brokers - 12,522 64,236 76,758
Bue fo retakaful operators - 52,169 16,441 67,610
- 84 691 79677 144,368

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these balances.
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6. OTHER PAYABLES

31.12.2012

Coniributions deposits
Advance contributions
Amounts due fo.
Shareholder's fund*
Farmily takaful fund*
Amount due o stockbrokers
Unclaimed monies
Service tax pavable
Mudharabah payable
Witholding tax payable
Amount due to ultimate
holding company™
Amount due fo holding company*
Amount due to related parties™
Sundry payabtes and accrued
liabilities

31.12.2011

Condributions deposits
Advance contributions
Amounis due to:
Shareholder's fund*
Family takaful fung*
Amount due to stockbrokers
Unclaimed monies
Service tax payable
Mudharabzah payable
Witholding tax payable
Amount due to ultimate
holding company*
Amount due to holding company*
Amount due to related parties*
Sundry pavabiles and accrued
liabilities

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM000 RAM'000 RM000 RM'000
- - 7,981 7,961
108 7,038 B80,586 67,733
- 84,012 170,309 -
- 1,340 - -
- - 18 18
539 5,651 14,476 20,666
{9 2,832 239 3,062
- 62,185 4 62,189
- 2,885 7,743 10,728
34,114 - - 34,114
2,774 - - 2,774
5,550 - 8 5,596
75,669 18,935 12,296 111,100
122,986 164,978 273,638 325,841
- - 6,548 6,548
979 44 466 39,674 86,119
- 48,620 428,038 -
- 7.678 - -
- 4,208 7,731 71,938
552 3,300 10,658 14,510
- 2,873 4,603 7.476
- 88,403 - 88,409
- 6,056 49,183 55,239
10,445 - - 10,445
2,482 - - 2,482
3,930 - - 3,830
37,020 7,664 49,837 84,521
55,408 213,284 586,272 380,618
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16. OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'D.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'G00 RM'GO0 RMW'000
1.07.2011
Contributions deposits - 38 8,023 8,111
Advance condributions 387 41,058 26,788 68,241
Amounts due to:
Shareholder's fund” - 59,196 393,834 -
Family takaful fund* - 4.861 - -
Amount due {o stockbrokers - 15,973 24,590 40,663
Unclaimed monies 478 2,343 8,724 8,545
Service iax payable - 1,132 6,911 8,043
Mudharabah payabie - 75,501 - 75,501
Witholding tax payable - 4 370 40,425 44,795
Amount due fo ullimate
holding company* 4,980 - - 4,980
Amount due to holding company* 1,656 - - 1,656
Amount due {o related parties™ 3,234 - - 3,239
Sundry payables and accrued
liabilities 48 582 9 782 25,023 83,387
59,322 214,302 532,428 348,161

*  The amounts due to the ultimate holding company, the holding company and refated
companies, and the shareholder's and family takaful funds in the respective funds are
unsecured, not subject to any profit elements and are repayable upon demand.

The carrying amounts disclosed above appreximate their fair values ai the reporting date. All

amounts are payable within one year.
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17. NET EARNED CONTRIBUTION

1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012

{(a) Gross contribution
Change in unearned
contribution reserves

{b} Coniributions ceded fo
retakaful operators
Change in unsamed

contribution reserves

1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011

(a) Gross contribution
Change in unearned
contribution reserves

{b) Contributions ceded to
retakaful operators
Change in uneamed

contribution reserves

110

General Family
takafui fund takaful fund Company
RM000 RM000 RM00C
867,259 1,744,795 2,608,019
{69,563} - (69,583}
797,696 1,744,785 2,638,456
(96,398) (12,163) {108,562)
15,979 . 15,978
{80,420} (12,163) {92,583)
717,276 1,732,632 2,445,873
355,715 724,835 1,079,002
13,968 - 13,868
369,683 724,835 1,093,060
{31,162) (10,608} (41,770}
{(45,405) - (45,408)
{76,567} (20,808) (87.175)
293,116 714,227 1,005,885
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18. FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012

Wakalah fee income:
Gensral takaful fund
Family takaful fund
Profit commission
Retakaful commission income
Cthers

1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011

Wakalah fee income:
General takaful fund
Famity takaful fund

Frofit commission

Retakahil commission
income

Others

Shareholder's General Farily
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RWM'000
217,192 - - -
303,162 - - -
- - 1,869 1,869
- 15,387 19 15,386
- 380 - 380
520,354 15,747 1,888 17,835
88,026 . - -
21,497 - - -
- - 32 32
- 5,897 - 5,997
- 148 - 148
109,526 8,145 32 6,177
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18, INVESTMENT INCOME

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM000 RM'0GO Ri'000 RM 000
4.01.2012 fo 31.12.2012
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Profit income - ~ 180,874 180,874
HFT financial assets:
Profit income - - 2,238 2238
AFS financial assets:
Profit income 20,345 35,488 70,352 126,186
Dividend income:
Equity securities 1,863 5,253 18,426 25,642
Unit and properiy frusts 8 98 1,016 1,122
LAR;
Profit income 4,536 5,585 19,873 30,084
Net (amgortisation of premium)/
accretion of discount {1,722} (2,689) 1,959 {2,452}
investment related expenses {254) (240) {1.024) {1,518}
24 B77 43,495 303,814 372,186
1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011
Financial assets at FVTPL:
Profit income - - 80,263 80,263
HFT financiat assets:
Profit income - - 1,472 1,472
AFS financial assets:
Profit income 3,588 14,552 29,883 48,023
Dividend income:;
Equity securities 640 2,408 10,148 13,186
Unit and property trusts 7 56 g7 1,034
LAR:
Profit income 1,603 4,053 16,466 22,122
Net accretion of discount/
(amortisation of premium) 310 (368) 8,324 8,268
investment related expenses {109) (114) {684) (8G7)
6,039 20,589 148,843 173,471
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20. REALISED GAINS AND LOSSES

1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012

Gain on disposal of.
AFS financial assets
FVTFL financial assets
HFT financial assets

1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011

(Gain on disposal of:
AFS financial assets
FVTPL financial assets
HFT financial assets

Sharehclder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RM'0G0 RM'000 RA000
10,357 23,564 105,764 139,708
- - 43,196 43,196
- - 215 215
10,357 23,564 149,185 183,116
1,966 9,290 36,960 48,216
- - 9,163 9,163
- - 7,879 7,879
1,866 8,280 54,002 85,258
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1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012

Surrender charges
Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange:
Realised
Unrealised
Processing fee income
Bad debts written off
{Impairment losses)freversal of
impairment losses on:
Investments
Financing receivables
Takaful receivables
Other receivables
Processing fee expenses
Sundry incomef{expenditure}

21. OTHER OPERATING REVENUE/EXPENSES}, NET

1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011

Surrender charges
Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange:
Realised
Unrealised
Processing fee income
Property, plant and equipment
written off
(Impairment losses)reversal of
impairment losses on:
Investments
Financing receivables
Takaful receivables
Others receivables
Processing fee expenses
Sundry (expendiiurelincome

Shareholder's General Farnily
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM 0G0 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
202 - - 202
(4) 7 (140) (137)
- - (154) {154)
3,724 - - 3,724
(24) - {1,228} (1.252)
{2,198) {7,275) (31,753} {41,224)
{42) 15 (199) (226}
- 116 (24 ,575) (24,459}
(1,029) (550) {1.579}
- - (3,791) (3,791)
313 {4,441) - (4,128}
944 {11.578) {62,380) (73,024}
- - i0 10
5 (1) {317) (313)
- - 798 798
4,839 - 94 4,833
(2,145) - - {2,145}
{615) {2,102) (16.0489) (18,666)
- 436 2 438
- 5,294 {1,488) 3,796
{385) - - (385)
- - (4,853) (4,853}
{20) 28 - 8
1,779 3,658 {21,813) (16,379)
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22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

1.01.2012 {0 31.12.2012

Employee benefils expenses

{Note (@)}

Direclors’ remuneration
{Note (b))

Auditors' remuneration:
Statutory audits
Other setvices

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment (Note 3}
Amortisation of intangible
assels (Note 4)
Agency related expenses
Bank and financing charges
Electronic data processing
eXPenses
tntertainment
Fund management fees
irderest expenses
Legal fees
Office facilities expenses
Cther management fees
Qutsourcing services
Postage & stamp duties
Prinding & stationery
Professionat fees
Promotional and marketing
cost
Rental of offices/premises
Training expenses
Travelling expenses
Utllities, assessment and
maintenance
Penalty charges
Other expenses

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RW000 RM'CO0 RM000
104,107 461 32,337 136,805
1,207 - 226 1,433
252 2 100 354
36 - 4 40
643 S 5 853
5,808 15 438 8,361
5,402 - - 5,402
6,407 - 4,438 10,845
21,177 163 3,738 25,078
777 4 337 1,118
410 - 553 1,103
5,223 15 - 5,238
1,035 2 86 1,123
412 3 158 573
712 3 92 807
5,245 - 75 5,320
2,433 11 520 2,964
3,282 3 615 3,800
445 5 753 1,203
35,571 30 3,088 39,589
8,233 3 1,858 8,222
2,832 17 381 3,230
2,723 15 835 3.573
1,976 13 620 2,609
2,349 9,586 11,815
7,337 56 2,829 5,187
224,134 854 64,792 285,745
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22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONT'D.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takafuil fund Company
RM'000 RMGOG RM'0GO RM'0G0
1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011
Employee benefils expenses
{Note (a}) 30,103 300 26,463 56,866
Direciors' remuneration
{Note (b)) 810 1 29 640
Auditors’ remuneration:
Statutory audits 209 3 a5 307
Other services 5 - 8 13
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (Note 3) 372 2 4 378
Amauortisation of intangible
assels (Note 4) 3,756 7 324 4,090
Agency related expenses 1,619 - - 1,818
Bank and financing charges 2,786 38 2,576 5,371
Electronic daia processing
expenses 3,194 81 4013 7,288
Entertainment 445 6 455 a06
Fund management fees 2,308 - 3,789 6,087
Legal fees 305 - 3 308
Cffice facilities expenses 119 1 113 233
Other management fees 8 - § 13
Qutsourcing services 7 - 2 g
Postage & stamp duties 341 1 451 793
Printing & stationery 412 1 495 808
Professional fees 1,012 g 748 1,770
Promotional and marketing
cost 11,206 {1) 7,102 18,307
Rental of offices/preamises 2,180 15 1,898 4,093
Training expenses 1,280 7 508 1,803
Traveiling expenses 817 9 1,108 2,035
Utilities, assessment and
maintenance 816 10 578 1,404
Other expenses 2,357 43 2,877 3,819
66,350 534 53,644 119,070
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22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONT'D.)

{a} Employee benefils expenses

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RMCO0 RM'0GG RM'G00 R'000
1.061.2042 to 31.12.2012
Wages, salaries and
bonus 76,116 321 21,608 98,135
ERF 11,101 47 3,354 14,502
SOCS0O 422 2 148 572
Share based
compensation 3,058 28 779 3,865
Other benefits expenses 3,410 83 6,358 15,831
104 107 4671 32,337 136,905
1.07.201% to 31.12.2011
Wages, salaries and
DOTUS 20,708 201 18,802 39,709
EPF 2,629 32 3,040 5,701
S50C80 148 1 138 287
Share based
compensation 2,728 35 1,728 4 491
Other benefits expenses 3,892 31 2,755 6,678
30,103 300 258 463 56,866

included in employee benefits expenses are remuneration paid {o the Chief Executive
Office of the Company amounting fo RM93,000 (1.7.2011 to 31.12.2011: RM1,067,000)
as detailed in Note 22(¢).
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22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CCNT'D.)

{b) Directors' rernuneration

Shareholder's General Family
fund fakaful fund takafui fund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'000
1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012
Executive:
Salary 263 - 49 312
Bonus o8 - 18 114
EPF and pension scheme 8 - 2 10
Share based
compensation - - - -
Other remuneration 380 - 71 451
747 - 140 887
Non executive:
Fees 418 - 78 496
Other emoluments 42 - & 50
460 - 88 546
1,207 - 226 1.433
1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011
Executive;
Salary 137 - - 137
Bonus g9 - - 99
Benefits-in-kind -
Share based
compensation 33 - - 33
Qther remuneration 172 - - 172
449 - - 449
Non executive;
Fees 141 1 23 165
Other emoiuments 20 - 8 26
161 1 28 191
610 1 29 540
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22. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES (CONT'D.)
(b) Directors’ semuneration (cont'd.)

The number of directors whose total remuneration received from the Company during the
year/period falis within the following bands is analysed below:

Number of Direciors
1.01.2012 to  1.07.2011 o
31.12.2042 31.412.2011

RM'000 RM'000
Executive directors:
RM500,001 to RMO00,000 1 .
RM400,001 to RMB00.000 - 1
Non-executive directors:
RME0,061 to RM1G0,000 7 -
Below RMS0,000 2 3

(¢) The details of remuneration receivable by the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) inciuded in
employee benefits expenses during the year/period are as follows:

1.01.2012to0  1.07.2011 to
31422012 31.12.2011

RM'000 RM000

Saiaries 70 270
Bonus - 412
EPF 13 113
Share based compensation - 227
Other emoluments 10 45
93 1,067
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23. CHANGE IN EXPENSE LIABILITIES

Shareholder's fund

Expense liabilities for general takaful fund:

Increase in provision for uneamed
wakalah fees (Note 13)

Expense liabiliies for family takafud fund:
Increase/{decrease} in UER {Note 13)

24. FEE ANDR COMMISSION EXPENSES

1.01.2012 {0 31.12.2012

Commission paid
Wakalah fee expense
Others

1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011

Commissgion paid
Wakalzh fes expense
Others

1.01.2012t0 1.07.2011 to
31.12.2012  31.42.2011
RM'000 RM'000
10,112 8,051
78,043 (7,135)
88 155 (1,084}
Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'000 RN'000 RM'000 RM'000
214,999 - 85,077 300,076
- 217,192 303,162 -
- - 1,988 1,988
214,099 217,192 390,227 302,084
46,856 - 76,936 123,792
- 88,029 21,497 -
- - 5,341 5,341
48,856 88,029 103,774 129,133
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25. TAXATION
Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund fakafui fund Company
RM'GO0 RM'000 RM'O00 RM'CoC

1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012
Malaysian income tax;

Tax expense for the year 80,069 - 212 80,281

Overprovision of fax in prior years (8,038) - - (6,038)

Deferred taxation:
Relating to origination and reversal
of temporary differences
{Note 14} (2,612) . 4 (2,608)
71,418 - 216 71,635

1.07.2011 fo 31.12.2011

Malaysian income tax;
Tax expense for the period 20,685 - 852 21,337

Qverprovision of tax in prior years - - (23) (23)
Deferred taxation:
Relating to ofigination and reversal
of temporary differences
{Note 14) (960) - {608) (1,568)
19,725 - 21 19,746

Domestic income tax for the shareholder's and general takaful funds is calculaied at the
Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% ({1.7.2011 fo 31.12.2011: 25%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the financial yeariperiod.

Domestic income tax of the family takaful fund is calculated at the preferential tax rate of 8%
(1.7.2011 to 31.12.2011: 8%} of taxable investment income for the financial year/period.
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25. TAXATION {CONT'D.)

The reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation af the statutory
income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Company is as

foltows:

Company
RM000
1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012
Profit before taxation 208,475
Taxation at Malaysian statutory
tax rate of 25% 51,315
Taxation at Malaysian statutory
tax rate of 8% 17
income not subject fo tax {(123,001)
Expenses not deductible for tax
DUTDOSes 192,854
Surplus transferred to shareholder's
fund -
Transfer to deferred tax {2,608}
Tax borne by participants {40,904)
OCverprovision of {ax in prior years {6.038)
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25. TAXATION (CONT'D.}

Company
RM000
1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011
Frofit before taxation 67,001
Taxation at Mataysian statutory
tax rate of 25% 16,745
Taxation at Malaysian statulory
tax rate of 8% 2
Income not subject to tax (55,175)
Expenses not deductible for tax
purposes 73,765
Surplus transferred to shareholder's
fund .
Transfer {o deferred tax (1.568)
Tax bormne by participants (14,000)
Qverprovision of tax in prior years (23)
19,746

There is no chargeable income for the general and family takaful funds as the adjusted
income of each fund has been fully distributed to the shareholder and the participants in
accordance with the principles of Shariah. The tax expense for the family takaful fund relates
wholly to tax borne by unithoiders of the investment-linked funds.
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26,

27.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share ("EPS") is calculated based on the pet profit for the financial
year divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial year/period as

follows:
1.01.2012 {0
31422012
RM'000
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholder 125,723
Number of shares in issue 100,000
Basic eamings per share (sen) #2572

1.07.2011 to
31.42.2011
RM'000

43,516
100,000
43.52

Diiuted earnings per share are not presented as there were no dilutive potential ordinary

shares as at the date of {he statement of financiai position.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares between the reporting date

and the authorisation date of these financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at the reporting date, the Company and takafu! funds lease office premises under lease
agreements that are not cancellable within a year. The leases contain renewable options,

Future minimum lease payments for leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or

more are as follows:

1.01.2012%0 1.07.2011 10

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

RM'O00 RM'OGO

Within 1 year 8,030 8.08a
After 1 year but not mere than 5 years 29.886 30,458
37.918 38,538
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28.

2.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
31.12.2012 31.12.2011
RM'000 RM00D
Shareholder's fund
Approved and contracted for:
fntangible assets 14,258 11,918
Approved and nof contracted for:
intangible assets 6,734 -
SEGMENT INFORMATION ON CASH FLOW
Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RMOG0 RM'000 RM'G00 RAO0)
31.42.2012
Net cash flow generated
fromfused in):
Operating activities 1,508 (6,890) 8,503 4,121
Financing activities - - {12,650) (12,650}
Investing activities {3,532) - - (3,532)
(2,024) {5,890} {4,147} {12,061)
Net increasef(decrease)
in cash and cash
equivalents:
At 1 January 18,510 26,130 44,188 88,828
At 31 December 16,486 20,240 40,041 78,767
(2,024) (5,890} {4,147) {12,061)
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28. SEGMENT INFORMATION ON CASH FLOW (CONT'D.)

Sharsholder's General Famity
fund takaful fund takaful fund Company
RM'O00 RM'000 EM'000 RW000
31.12.2011
Net cash flow generated
fromi{used in):
Operating activities 19,877 {2,932) 74,270 91,315
Financing activilies - - {50,137) {50,137)
investing activities (2,633) - - (2,633)
17,344 (2,932 24,133 38,545
Net increase/{decrease)
it cash and cash
equivalenis:
At 1 July 1,166 25,062 20,055 50,283
Al 31 December 18,510 26,130 44,188 88,828
17,344 {2,932) <4 133 38,545
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial

statements, the Company had the following transactions and balances with related
pariies during and at the end of the financial year/perdod:

Shareholder's General Family
fund takafui fund takafui fund
RM'000 RM'000 RMO0GO
Incomel/(expenses):
1.01.2012 to 31.12.2012
Transactions with the ultimate
holding company:
Frofit income 815 718 7,616
Gross takaful coniribution income - 6,504 3,959
Commissions and fees expenses {(42,008) {242) {1,340}
Transactions with the holding
company:
Gross takaful contribution income - 114 453
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries
within the MAHB Group:
Gross takaful contribution income - 1,206 5,031
Rental expense {7,252) - {2453
Management fee - - -
Processing fee 56 - -
Transactions with other reiated
companies within the MBB Group:
Gross takaful contribution income - 295 465
Commissions and fees expenses (413} - (6Go0)

Transactions with shareholder with
significant influence over the MBB Group:

Gross takaful contribution income 3,000 1,072
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {CONT'D.)

{a) In addition fo the fransactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Company had the following transactions and balances with related
parties during and at the end of the financial year/period: (cont'd.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund
RM'000 RMO0D RM'C0G
incomel{expenses}); {Cont'd.)
1.07.2011 to 31.12.2011
Transacticns with the ullimate
halding company:
Profit income 279 1,083 8,934
Gross takaful contribution income - - 51,9089
Commissions and fees expenses (15,486 (2,223) {1,793
Transactions with the holding
company.;
Gross takaful contribution income - 299 48
Transactions with fellow subsidiaries
within the MAHB Group:
Gross takaful condribution income - 192 2583
Rental expense (3,344} - {3688}
Management fee {2,308} - (3,789)
Processing fee 38 - -
Transactions with other related
companies within the MBB Group:
Gross takaful contribution income - - 1,338

Transactions with shareholder with
significant influence over the MBB Group:
Gross takaful contribution income - 302 859
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30, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {CONT'D.)

{a) In addition to the fransactions and balances detfailed elsewhers in the financial
statements, the Company had the following transactions and balances with related
parties during and &t the end of the financial year/period: (cont'd.)

included in the statement of financial position of the Company are amounts due from#(io)
reiated companies represented by the following:

Sharetiolder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund
RNFOO0 RM'000 RM'OCO
31.12,2012
Amount due from/(to) ultimate
holding company:
Bank balances 12,338 18,607 29,499
Income and profit due and
accrued a7 32 748
Islamic investment accounis 28,000 3,809 121,023
Other receivables - - 1,683
QOther payables {34, 114) - -
Amount due to holding company:
Other payable (2,774) - -
Amount due from/(to) fellow
subsidiaries within the
MAHB Group:
Other receivables 12 - -
Other pavables {4,754) - (8}
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D.)
{a) In addition fo the ftransactions and balances detailed elsewhere in the financial

siatements, the Company had the following transactions and balances with related
parties during and at the end of the financial year/period: {cont'd.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund
RM'O00 RMW'000 RAMOGO
31.12.2012 {cont'd.}
Amount due from other refated
companies within the MBB Group:

Other receivables 102 “ -
Other payable {836) - -

Transactions with shareholder with
significant influence over the MBB Group:

Takaful receivables - 221 138
Takaful payables - (7) .
31.12.2011

Amount due from/(to) ultimate
holding company:

Bank balances 14,738 23,280 29,404
income and profit due and

accrued - 202 1,142
islamic investment accounts 33,000 105,380 288,758
Ciher receivables - - 1,663
Other payables {10,445} - -
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30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D.)

(@} in addition to the transactions and balances detalled elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Company had the following fransactions and balances with related
parties during and at the end of the financial year/period: (cont'd.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takaful fund
RM'Q00 RM'000 RM'000
31.12.2011 {Cont'd.)
Amount due o holding company:
Other payable (2,482) - -
Amount due from/(to) feliow
subsidiaries within the
MAHB Group:
QOther receivables - 6 181
Other payables {3,930) - -
Amount due from other related
companies within the MBB Group:
Other receivables 87 - -

Transactions with sharehoelder with
significant influence over the MBB Group:
Takaful receivables - 373 81
Takaful payables - - -
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30, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONT'D.)
(b} Key management personnal compensation
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly. The

key management personnel of the Company are the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer.

() The remuneration of key management personnel compensation during the
year/period was as follows:

1.01.2012t0 1.07.2011to
31.12.2012 31122011

RM'O00 RM'000

Short-term empioyee benefits
Salaries, allowances and bonuses 498 918
EPF 23 121
Share based compensation - 260
Other staff benefiis 461 217
980 1,516

(1) The movement in share options of key management personnel is as follows:

1.01.2012 to  1.07.2011 to
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

RM'000 RN'000
At beginning of year/period 219 o4
Appointed - 125
Resignation of key management personnel (125) -
At end of year/period 94 218

The remuneration of other key management personnel, that is the non-executive
directors of the Company are as disclosed in Note 22(b).
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Risk Management Framework defines the govemnance struciu-e to support the Risk
Management process and to ensure strong risk management. 1t defines the risk related
roles and responsibiliies of the different Boards, Committees and Departments for the
Group's legal entities within Maybank Ageas Holdings Bhd ("MAHE") {formerly known as
Mayban Ageas Holdings Berhad), collectively known as the Mayhank Ageas Group ("the
Group"). A strong risk governance structure enhances the capabilities to align risk appetite
and strategy, link risk with growth and return, make timely risk response decisions,
minimise operational surprises and losses, seize opportunities and razionalise capitat,

The Framework also ensures that risks are properly and adequatelv identified, evaluated,
monitored and reported, so as to safeguard and protect the assets of the Group and enabie
the Group to fuifill ifs obligations to its customers, shareholder, stakehoiders and meeting
the expectations of regulators.

The Risk Management function was strengthened with the appointment of the Chief Risk
Officer ("CRO™ iIn the Senior Management Committee. The CRO will ensure an
independent control function and makes risk management more strategic within the Group.

The Group Risk Appstite principles are subject to BNM guidelines, International Standards
Guideline on Risk Management issued by recognised organisational. In addition, The
Company's Risk Governance principles are subject to Shariah compiance where relevant.
Shariah non-compliance risk refers to possible failure to mest the obligation of Shariah
principles as defined in BNM Shariah Govermance Framework adopted in the Coempany as
Sharigh Compliance Framework.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.}

This Framework is set up to ensure that all significant risks are identified, assessed,
monitored and managed in accordance with the interests of sharehoiders and is intended fo
guide alt business conduct within the Company. it identifies three levels:

(2) A clear risk objectives and business strategy,
(b} Comprehensive risk management cycle; and
(c) A strong risk culture.

(a} A clear risk objectives and business strategy

The Group’s business is risk taking in nature and is intrinsic in creating value for its
customers and shareholders. To ensure the Group deiivers sustainable growth in
shareholder value, the execution of business strategy is at all times, kept within its risk
tolerance to control the risk of insolvency. A clear business strategy is required together
with explicit statements of which risks or events are tolerable or to be avoided at all
times. The risk appetite is controlled by having consistent Bmits and policies in place for
all relevant risks.

Any risks are, must stay within the risk appetite set by the Board. Action must be taken
for any risks outside the risk appetite.

{b) Comprehensive risk management cycle

“Ali key risks are identified and appropriately managed. An overview of major risk
categories including financial, insurance, operational risks and strategic or industry-
specific fisk types describes the entire set of potential risks that should be used to
ensure completeness. Key risks and key risk indicators are identified to track the most
important developments and actions. Reporting is prepared with necessary limits
including risk appetite or other relevant elements to support immediate monitoring.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK {CONT'D.)
(c) Strong risk cuiture

The Framework describes the risk management process and the control procedures
necessary {0 ensure risk management is effectively carried out. Monitoring is
accomplished through engoing management activities, separata evaluations. or both,
Clear responsibilities and accountabilities are the cornerstone for good risk
management and good governance in general,

Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Approach

The Capital Management Guideline sets a standard policy regarding the leveis of
capital to be maintained within the Company. The Company aligns its capital
requirements with the minimum paid-up capital requirements for takaful operators as
specified in Circulars issued by BNM (BNM/RH/CIR/004-13). As at 31 December 2012,
the Company maintained a minimum capital of RM100 milion and the shareholders’
equily stood at RM758 million.

The Capital Management Guideline defines the levet of internal sapital target which is
reviewed on an annual basig, This is to ensure that the target capilal level adequately
reflects the risk profile of the Company and the Company's risk tolerance. The
guideline is supported by stress testing exercises conducted at least twice a year. The
stress testing exercise is governed by the requirements established in the stress testing
Guideline issued by BNM (BNM/RH/GL/004-186).

Effective from 1 January 2014, takaful operators including the Company will have to
align its capital requirement with the Capital Adeguacy Ratio ("CAR") defined in the
RBC Takafui Framework issued by Bank Negara Malaysia.

Under the requirements of the RBC Takaful Framework, the mirimum CAR as set by
Bank Negara Malaysia at 130%.
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31 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.}
(c) Strong risk culture (cont'd.}
Asset-Liability Management ("ALM")

The Asset-Liabliity Management Committes ("ALCO") is responsible to coordinate
ongoing controls aver the financial/investment risk position of each investment portfolio
and the liability position of the Company.

The ALCO is authorised to propose policies to the Risk Maagement Commiites
("RMC") and the Investment Committee ("IC") and to proposa the implementation
program of investment activities. The ALCO is also responsible for carrying out Asset
Liabiity Management ("TALM"} studies, amongst other things.

Risk Governance Structure and Risk Organisation

The governance structure outlines the organisational stiucture, the hierarchy and the
scope of responsibilities of afl the governance bodies involved in the risk management
function.

The Risk Management function is built around a number of Boards and Commitiees

that have been set-up, including the Board of Directors ("Board”), the Risk
Management Committee ("RMC") and the Risk Management Meeting ("RMM").
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.)

{c) Strong risk culture (cont'd.)

Risk Governance Structure and Risk Organisation {cont'd.}

Governance is emphasised via various level of Commitices {Board, Management and
working levels). Each of the Committees has s own terms of reference, roles and
responsibilities, specific duties and levels of authority.

o A e ke o W MR MR e e e e s 4 o oEm e = m M A e o n

R T T .

:Boam‘ Levef

1

1

: l MAHS Board ! investment Risk Avdit Shariah

| ith ittae i i

: [ETB Board 1EiB Board | Commiltes | Commi Commitiee || Commitiee
H

Management Level

1

]

f Serndor Business Product Asset and Risk Audit Review
; Management Growth Development Liability Management Mestin

: Committee Meeting Commifiea Committes Meeting E

1

I

Jim ot o e e e e o ek o e e s e e e e . e o 1
'Operating units Y Support units f

,  First line of I second tine U Third 1ne of

: defence E of defence E defeace

f | : i

\ : Risk . : | ]

; Risk taking units i1 Management Compliance | Intermat audit

: | |

’ ' '

e AL G g e e o e o w

-

Rigk management at the Company is organised centrally and is embedded in the business
units. The Company risk management approach is premised on three lines of defence —
Risk Taking Units, Risk Contro! Units and Internal Audit.
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3. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (CONT'D.}

Risk Governance Structure and Risk Organisation (cont'd.)

()

(i)}

Risk Taking Unit (First Line of Defence)

Risk Taking Units are responsible for the day-to-day management of risks inherent in
their business activities. They are the first line of defence and oparationally responsible
to ensure that the Group does not suffer from unforseen circurnstances.

The business is responsible for managing the full risk iaxonomy that relates its
execution of business strategy and ranges from the CEQ, Line Management and
Business Managers t¢c employees in the business lines.

Risk Control Unit (Second Line of Defence)

Risk Control Units, through Risk Management and Compliance Deparfment, are
responsible for setting the risk management framework, adherence to it and developing
tools and methodologies for the identification, measurement, monitoring and control of
risks.

In addition, the Risk Management Department has the responsibility to communicate
and embed risk sirategy, risk awareness and risk managemant within the entire
organisation. The Compliance function has an overall assurance role in which it ensure
that policies abide to any relevant external guidelines and requirements.

(iii) internal Audit {Third Line of Defence)

Internal Audit checks and provides independent assurance of the effectiveness of the
risk management approach, proper design and implementation of the risk management
framework and observance of guidelines, policies and processes.
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK

Underwriting risk relates to the inherent risk associated in the underwriting activities of the Family and General Takaful businesses. Such risk includes
pricing risk, claims reserving and retakaful risk. Actuarial analyses are performed to control pricing, underwriting and reserving risks,

Retakaful is placed to minimise certain takaful risks within the estabiished risk parameters. Risks associated with retakaful risk include counterparty risk,

which is the risk of retakaful operators failing to honour their obligations, Claims processes are defined by approval authority as part of the controls in place
oh financial exposure.

The Company has established appropriate guidelines and framework which are aligned with regulatory authority limits. Annual internal audit reviews are
performed to ensure compliance with the Company's guidelines and standards.

(a} Family takaful fund

The table below shows the concentration of family takaful certificate liabilties:

31.12.2012 31.12.2611 1.07.2011
Gross  Retakaful Net Gross  Retakaful Net Gross  Retakafu) Net
RMO00 RM'006 RM'000 RM'000 RMWQ00 RM'000 RM'000 RMOGO RM 000
Endowment 1,118,893 - 1,118,983 1,086,719 - 1,088,719 929,149 - 829,149
Morigage 2,833 345 (18,621) 2,874,824 2,637,782 {18,832} 2,518,850 2,384,293 (21,081} 2,363,242
Term assurance 30,253 - 30,253 30,219 - 30,219 28,078 - 28,078
Annuity 787,078 - 787,078 755,550 - 755,550 757.216 - 757,210
Others 288,874 - 288,874 238,520 - 238,520 247,823 - 247 823
5,118,543 {18,621} 5,100,022 4,618,790 (18,832} 4,589958 4,346 553 (21,081) 4325472
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.)
{a) Family takaful fund {cont'd.}
{i} Key assumptions and methodology

The valuation was made in accordance to the Guidelines on Valuation Basis for Liabilities of F amily Takaful Business (BNM/RH/GL 004-20) and

additional guideline pertaining to the Valuation of Liabilities arising from SATK Annuity Business (Ref JPIT/PT//23} issued by Bank Negara
Malaysia.

Material judgment is required in determining the Takaful's Participants Risk Fund ("PRFT} liabilities. PRF refers to the fund in which the portion of
confributions paid by the participants is allocated and pooled for the purpose of meeting claims. Assumptions are sei based on past experience,
current internal data, external market indices and benchmarks which reflect current observable market prices and other published information.
Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at the date of valuation and no credit is taken jor possible beneficial effects of voluntary
withdrawals. Assumptions are further avaluated on a continuous basis in order to ensure realistic and reasanable valuations.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are as follows:

Discouni rate
Discount rates used in the determination of PRF cashfiows are based on leng-term Government investment issue ("GiI") rates.
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.)

{a} Family takafui fund {cont'd.)

{)

(i}

Key assumptions {coni'd.}

Moriality and morbidity rates

The Company determines moriality and morbidity rates using established local industry tablas which reflect historicat experiences, adiusted where
appropriate to reflect the Company's unique risk exposure, product characteristics, target markets and own claims severity and frequency
experiences. For those contracts that are exposed to risk on longevity, prudent allowance is made for expected fulure mortality improvements.

Lapse and syfrender rates
Lapse and surrender rates are based on the Company's historical experience of lapses and surrenders.

Expenses
Assumptions on future expenses are based on current expense levels, adjusted for expected expense inflation adjustments, where appropiiate.

Sensitivities

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assurnptions affecting the determination of lakaful hahilities with ail
other assumptions held constant, showing the impact on net fiabilifies, surplus arising and the surplus atiributable to the shareholder (referred to
as "surplus sharing™).
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {CONTD.)
{a} Family takaful fund (cont'd.)
{ii} Sensitivities (cont'd.}

The correfation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claim fiabilities, but to demonstrate the impact
changes in assumptions are analysed on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these assumptions are non-linear.
Sensitivity information will alse vary according to the current economic assumptions.

% change in Impact on Impact on impacton
assumptions net i abilities surplus arising surplus sharing
RM'000 RM'000 RM'0GO

31.12.2012
Discount rate - 1% 278,738 {278,738} (58,395)
Mortality and morbidity rates + 10% 219,712 {219,712} (54,301)
Lapse and surrender rates -10% 2,770 {2,770 {50)
Expenses +10% 12.657 {12,657} {2,621)
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {CONT'D.)

{a} Family takaful fund {cont'd.)

{ii) Sensitivities {cont'd.)

% change in Impact on Impact on Impact on
assumptions  net liabilities  surplus arising surplus sharing
RMOCO RM'000 RM'000
31122011
Discount rate 1% 232,855 (232,855) (46,497}
Martality and morbidity rates +10% 190,420 {190,420) (45,798}
Lapse and surrender rates -10% 4,367 (4,367) {2.483}
Expenses +10% 18172 (19,172) (4,537}
1.07.2011
Discount rate -1% 205,810 (205,810) (54,987)
Mortality and morbidity rates +10% 184,642 (184,642) (48,509)
Lapse and surrender rates “10% 2,844 (2.844) (1,835)
Expenses +10% 17,357 {17.,357) (3.168)

Changes in morbidity, montality and lapse rates shown above include both upwards and downwards experience, depending on the
specific key assumption being analysed. For the purposes of the sensitivity analysis, management has only examined the impact
arising from adverse changes to these key assumptions as the impact of such adverse changes would be more significant to
management in their decision-making process and strategic positioning.

143



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia}

32, UNDERWRITING RISK (CONTD.)

{b} General takafui fund

The table below shows the concentration of contribution of the general takaful fund by class of business.

31.12.2012 31.42.2611 1.07.2011

Gross  Retakaful Net Gross Retfakaful Net Gross Retfakaful Net

RMWM'Q00 RM'G00 RM'a00 RM'200 RMWG90 RN000 RM™C00 RNF'GOD RMGOD

Motor 663,031 {5,719} 847 312 282,981 {1,844} 281,137 433,468 (4,385} 479,083

Fire 84,6829 (27.,051) 57,578 28,113 {9,230} 18,883 68,922 {24,122) 44 800
Marine, Aviation,

Cargo and Transit 52,124 {50,482) 1,632 12,892 (12,308) 684 54,035 (52,111 1,924

Miscellaneous 77475 {13,137) 64,338 31,629 {7.780) 23,849 79,816 {21,155) 58,661

867,259 (86,39%) 770.860 355,715 (31.162) 324 553 636,241 (101,773} 534,468
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.)

(b} General takaful fund (cont'd.)

{i) Key assumptions and methods

The claim liabilities of the general takaful fund are estimated by using a range of standard actuarial claims projection methodologies, such as
the Chain Ladder and Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods. The main assumption underlying these techniques is that past claims development
experience can be used to project future claims development and, hence, the ullimate cos: of claims. Accordingly, these methods exirapciate
the development of paid and incurred losses based on the observed deveiopment of earfier years and expected loss rafios. Historical claims
development is mainly anslysed by accident period. Claims development is separately znalysed for each line of business. Ceriain fines of
business are also further analysed by type of coverage. The changes in key variables also Jo not have an impact on the change in contribution
fiabilities. This is due to the unearned contribution reserves ("UCR") held by Company being higher than the estimated unexpired risk reserves
{("URR") even after the application of the key variables.

The assumptions used in the projection methodologies, including future rates of claims irflation or loss ratio assumptions, are implicit in the
historical claims development data on which the projections are based. Additional qualitative judgment is used to assess the extent to which
past trends may not apply in the future, for example, to reflect one-off ocoufrences, changes in external or market factors such as public
aftitudes to claiming, legislative changes, judicial decisions and economic conditions, as well as internal factors such as porifelio mix, policy
conditions and claims handling procedures in order to arive at a point estimate for the ulimate cost of claims that represents the likely
outcome, from a range of possible outcomes, taking into account, all the uncertainties jnvolved. The range of possible ouicomes does nat,
however, result in the quantification of a liabitity range. in addition, the liabilities are estinated on an undiscounted basis and no curvefitting
methods have been applied in the estimation process. The inherent uncertainties in estimating kabilities can arise from a variety of factors such
as the range and quality of data available, underlying assumptions made and random volatikty in future experience.

There has been no change in the estimation methods used since the previous financial year nor have there been any significant changes in key
assumptions.
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.}
(b} General takaful fund {cont'd.)
{ii} Sensitivities

Using the methods described above, the claims development is extrapolated for each accident year based on the observed development of
earfier years. In most cases, no explicit assumptions are made as projections are based on assumptions implicit in the historical ¢laims.

liustrative results of sensitivity testing for the general takaful fund's claims Habilities are set out below. The cumulative effect of all possible
factors that affect the assumptions in the projection would ultimately impact the claims ligbilities and, consequently, the observed nat claims
ratio for the financial year. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis has been performed based on reasonably possible movements in the net claims

ratio with all olher assumptions or key factors held constant, showing the impact on gross and net claim liabilities, surplus before tax and the
participants® fund.
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.)
{b) General takaful fund (Cont'd.)

(i) Sensitivities (cont'd.)

31.12.2012

Incurred Claims Ratio

31.12.2011

tncurred Claims Ratio

% change

Impact on

in key gross liabilities

assumptions

+ 5%
- 5%

+ 5%
- &%

147

RM'000

39,885
(39,885)

18,484
(18,484}

impact on Impact on
net liabilities  surplus before fax
RMW000 RIN'O00
35,864 {35,864)
(35,864) 35,864
14,656 {14,656}
(14,656) 14,656

Impact on
participants’ fund
RM"000

(17,932}
17.932

{7,328}
7.328
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32, UNDERWRITING RISK {CONT'D.}

(b} General takaful fund (Cont'd.)

{ii} Sensitivities {cont'd.)

% change Impacton impact on fmpact on Impact on
in key gross liabilities netiiabilities surplus before tax  participants' fund
assumptions RM'000 Ri'0ac Rn'000 R Q00

1.07.2011
tncurred Claims Ratio + 5% 26,274 22,978 (22,878) {11,489)
- 5% (26,274) (22,8978} 22,978 11,489

The method used and significant assumiptions made for deriving sensitivity information did not change from the previous year.

(ili) Claims development table

The foliowing tables show the estimated incurred claims, including both claims notified and IBNR for each successive accident year at
the end of each reporting peried, together with cumulative payments to date. The management of the Company believes the estimate
of total claims liabilities as at the financial year end are adequate. The Company gives consideration to the probability and magrifude
of future experience being more adverse than assumed and exercises a degree of caution in setting reserves when there is
considerable uncertainty.
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {CONT'DL.)

{b} General takaful fund {Cont'd.)

{iiij Claims development table (cont'd.)
Gross analysis of claims development for 2012:

Before
2006
Accident vear RMC00

At the end of accident year
1 year later

2 years fater

3 years later

4 years fater

5 years fater

& years later

2006
RM'060

118,774
136,027
137,431
137,159
128,707
130,104
122,877

149

2007
RIM'000

121,433
108,884
103,481
112,376
82,602
86,665

2008
RMo00

166,000
175,889
123,154
163,998
182,720

As at 31 December
2009 2010 2011 2012
REA'GO0 RM'G0Q RAM'O0G Ray'oog

237 471 394,600 437386 479,285
196,615 258,983 436,220

23280 260,490

232675

Total
RI'00Q
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {CONT'D.)
{b} General takaful fund {Cont'd.)
{iti) Claims development table (cont'd.)

Gross analysis of claims development for 2012: {cont'd.})

Before As at 31 December
2006 2006 2007 20108 2008 2016 1 2012 Total

Accident year RM'000 RM000 RN0O0 RM'00G RA'000 RM'O00 RNOO0 RMWM'000 RMO00
Estimate of gross cumulative ciaims to date {A) 122,877 88,665 162,720 232875 260,480 435220 478,285
At the end of accident vear 54,850 25,589 67,164 7£.439 94 507 131,482 187,973
1 year faler 91,182 55428 113,408 14€,844 191,698 269,769
2 years iater 103,757 63,548 130,773 172478 226,315
3 years later 108,731 77,843 142,458 18X 492
4 years later 114,085 80,888 145,212
5 years iater 118 4686 82,636
§ years later 116,178
Gross cumulative claims paid to date (B) 148,178 82,636 145212 183482 228,315 269,769 187,973

Best Estimate Gross Claim

Liabilittes (A} - (B} 6,795 5,695 6,029 17,508 45,183 75 166,451 281,312 578,152
Pravision for Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation {C} 170,365
Gross Claim liabilities (A} - (8) + (C) 748,517
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {(CONT'D.}
{b) General takaful fund {Conf'd.)
(i} Claimns development table (cont'd.)

Net analysis of claims development for 2012:

Before
2006
Accident vear RWo00
At the end of accident year
1 year later

2 years later
3 years later
4 years later
& years later
& years later

2006
RiM'000

85,376
102 469
103,864
103,884

98,603

93,133

94,271

151

2007
RMO00

106,825
82,318
89,532
98,911
81,269
77,902

2008
RM'000

152,245
166,168
108,833
145,198
141,239

As at 31 December
20603 2010 2011 2012
RAMCOO RMQG0 RM'0GH RM'GOD

182,266 342,237 325,123 455,485
197,960 227,880 336,639

192,838 227,866

188,892

Total
RM"000
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {CONT'D)
{b) General takafui fund (Cont'd.)
{ilij Claims development table {cont'd.)

Net analysis of claims development for 2012; {cont'd.)

Before As at 31 December
2006 2008 2007 2008 2009 2410 2011 2012
Accident year RM'000 RM'00G RAI'0BO RM'00C RHII'OGO RM'OG0 RNF000 RM'C00
Estimate of net cumulative claims to date (A) 84,271 77902 141,239 185,892 227 866 336,639 456 465
Al the end of accident year 42,176 26,626 64,563 72745 91,793 130,642 186,608
1 year later 71,163 51,812 106,228 13£ 607 171,337 266,182
2 years later 78,740 60,824 119,667 161900 204,693
3 years later 83,369 68,873 129,419 171,527
4 years later §7.568 71,676 131,884
5 years later 89,035 73,246
6 years later 88,291
Net cumulative claims paid to date (B) 89,261 73,246 131,804 171,527 204,893 266,182 186,608
Best Eslimate net Claim
Liabitiies (A} - (B) 4,022 4,980 4 B56 8,345 17,465 22,973 70457 289857
Provision for Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation (C)
Net Claim liabilities (A} - (B) + {C)

152

Total
RNF0o0

403,755
107,255

511,010
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK {CONT'D.)
(b} General takaful fund (Cont'd,)
{iif} Claims development table (cont'd.)

Gross analysis of claims development for 2014:

Before

2905 2005
Accident year RM000 RM'000
Al the end of accident year 93,054
1 vear later 104,214
2 years later 80,278
3 years later 51,473
4 years later 87,108
5 years later 74,148
6 years later 80,152

163

2006
RM000

118,774
136,027
137,431
137,158
128,702
130,104

2007
RMWM'060

121,433
108,884
103,481
112,376

92,602

As at 31 December
2008 2008 2010 20911
Rwooe RM'G00 RM'CGO0 RMGOD

166,000 237 471 381,033 437,396
173.88% 200,678 258,963

123,154 238,280

163,998

Total
RMO00
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.)
{b} General takaful fund (cont'd.)
{iit} Claims development table {cont'd.)

Gross analysis of claims development for 2011: {cont'd.)

Before As at 31 December
2005 2005 209Q¢ 2007 2008 2009 20190 2011 Teotal
Accident year RM'0G0 RM'005 RM'000 RMOC0 RM'G00 RMQ00 RM000 RM'Q00 RM0CQ
Estimate of cumulative claims to date {A) 89,152 130,104 82.6G2 163,998 239,280 258,963 437,396
At the end of accident year 328673 54,850 29,999 687,184 74,439 94,507 131,482
1 year later 54,714 g1,182 59,428 113,408 146,844 191,668
Z vears later 62,300 103,757 69,548 130,773 173,478
3 vears later 87,334 169,731 77,943 142,458
4 years later 68,500 114,065 g8¢.888
5 years [ater 71,367 116,466
& years later 74,317
Cumulative claims paid to date (B) 74,317 116,486 80,888 142,458 173,478 191,698 131,482
(Sross Best Estimate Claim
Liabitities (A) - (B} 26,588 5,835 13,636 11,714 21,540 65,802 57,265 305,914 518,268
Provision for Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation (C) 143,504
Gross Claim liabilities (A) - (B} + (C) 661,800
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312, UNDERWRITING RISK {(CONT'D.}
{b) General takaful fund (cont'd.)
(iif) Glaims development tabie (cont'd.}

Net analysis of claims development for 2011:

Before
2005
Accident year RMO0G

At the end of accident year
1 year later

2 years later

3 years later

4 years later

5 years fater

6 years later

2005
RM'OOD

74,947
89,694
74,859
71,324
68,417
60,581
65,565

185

20086
RM"CG00

85,376
102,468
103,864
103,884

88,603

98,133

2007
RM¢00

108,625
92,318
89,532
98,911
51,269

As at 31 December

2008 2009 g 2011
RMQC0 RAiroac RM0o0 RW000

152,245 182,266 338,143 325123
156,169 161,225 227,880

108,833 192,838

145,198

Total
RM'000
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32, UNDERWRITING RISK (CONT'D.)
(b} General takafui fund {cont'd.}
{iit} Glaims development table (cont'd.)

Net analysis of claims development for 2011: {cont'd.)

- Before As at 31 December
2005 2005 2006 2007 2008 2608 2610 2011
Accident year RM'000 RM'OG0 RAN'Q00 RM'00G RM000 RM'000 RM000 Rivo0a
Estimate of cumulative claims to date (A) 65,565 99,133 81,269 145,198 192,838 227,980 325123
Al the end of accident year 30,663 42178 26,626 6« 563 72,745 81,793 130,542
1 year iater 51,182 71,163 51,812 108228 135607 171,337
2 years later 55,236 78,740 80,824 115,687 161,900
3 years later 55,745 83,369 68,873 128419
4 years later 57,730 87,568 71,678
S years iater 59,561 89,035
& years fater 81,331
Cumulative claimns paid to date (B) 61,331 89,035 71,676 128419 161,900 171,937 130,642
Gross dest Estimate Claim
Liabilities (A) - (B) 5814 4,234 10,098 9,593 15779 30,038 865,643 184,481

Provision for Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation (C)
Net Claim liabilities {A) - (B} + {C}

188

Total
Moo

327,580
75,891

403,571
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32, UNDERWRITING RISK {Cont'd.}
{b} General takaful fund {cont'd.)
{iti) Claims development table {cont’d.)

Gross analysis of claims development for 201%;

Before
2005

Accident year RM'000

Al the end of accident year
1 year later

2 years later

3 years later

4 years |ater

§ years later

g years later

2005
RMWM'000

83,734
108,848
83,024
78,665
75,033
74,716
74,277

157

2006
RN'000

52,638
121,481
117,184
108,412
105,987
107,065

2007
RM'C00

137,200
125,198
124,884
120,590
120,898

As at 1 July
20038 2069 2010 2011
R0G0 RM 000 RNO00 RM'GOO
122,788 184 505 241,083 439,932
130,133 216,117 254,229
127,574 215,488
124148

Tofal
RM 000
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32. UNDERWRITING RISK (Cont'd.)
{b) General takaful fund (cont'd.}
{iif) Claims development table (cont'd.)

Gross analysis of claims development for 2011: {cont'd.}

Before As at 1 July

2005 2005 2006 2907 2008 2008 261¢ 2011 Total
Accident vear RM'000 RAM'Q00 RM'QO0 RM'000 RIMA000 RM’Q00 RM00 RN0O0 RM'000
Estimate of cumulative claims to date (a} 74,277 104,066 120,888 128418 215,488 254,229 433,932
Al the end of accident year 28,797 34,466 48,155 37,048 55,267 74 418 126,768
1 year later 56,6895 65,406 80,550 8C,181 113,987 170,558
2 years later 65,171 78,178 85,319 92,788 136,833
3 years later 67,073 85,689 102,004 10:882
4 years later 68,457 88,368 106,156
5 years later 58,763 90,425
& years later 71,255
Cumulative claims paid to date (b) 71,255 80,426 106,166 103,682 136,833 170,569 126,768

Gross Best Estimale Claim

Liabilities (A} - (B) 7,386 3.022 16,629 14,743 2ET37 78,855 83,670 313,166 543,207
Provision for Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation ((-:) 3,604
Gross Claim Habifities (A} - (B) + (C) 852,811
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3z, UNDERWRITING RISK {Cont'd.)

{b] General takaful fund {conf'd.}
(iii} Ciaims development table (cont'd.)
Net analysis of claims development for 2011;

Before

2005
Accident year RQo0

At the end of accident year
1 year later

2 years later

3 years later

4 years later

& years later

€ years later

2005
RM'000

76,071
68,192
68,527
64,025
81,374
60,330
60,193

158

2006
RM'000

88,877
112 BES
104,985

98,339

89,861

98,336

2007
RM'000

114,831
101,727
101,454

88 737
100,044

As at 1 July
2008 2609 2019 2011
RM'00G RAM'0QC RATODO RMWOOD
113,696 158,530 200,363 266 287
11,668 172,887 216,842
11=.844 163,668
108,702

Total
RMGOO
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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32. UNDERWRITING RiSK {Cont'd.}
{b} General takafu! fund {(cont’d.)
{iii} Glaims development table (cont'd.)

Net analysis of claims development for 2011: {cont'd.)

Before As at 1 Juiy
2008 2005 2008 2007 20638 20405 2016 26811 Total

Accident year RM'000 RM'000 RM{Q00 RM000 RW000 RM'Q00 RM'00G RM'000 Rutqo0
Estimate of cumulative claims to date {a) 60,193 898,336 100,044 108,702 163,669 216,842 266,267
At the end of accident year 27,176 47,103 40,481 3£,429 53,473 71,785 13,111
1 year later 47,029 75,491 68,881 72,572 107,528 157,967
2 years later 53,387 79,739 80,238 84,073 128,214
3 years Iater 54,167 24,625 85,215 82,068
4 years later 55,204 86,823 88.437
5 years later 56,464 89,030
6 yaars later 57,844
Gumuiative clzims paid to date {b) 57.944 85,030 BB 437 92,058 128,214 157,967 113,11
Gross Best Estimate Claim

Liabilittes (A} - {B) 2,787 2,248 9,206 11,607 1€,644 35,455 58,675 153,156 294,079
Pravision for Risk Margin for Adverse Deviation (C) 27,952
Net Claim liabilities (A} - {B) + (C) 318,031
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS
(i} Credi Risk

The Company's credit risk arises through investments in fixed income instruments, fixed
and call deposits, corporate loans and coniracts with retakaful counterparties.

However, the main contribufor to credit risk arises from fransactions related to the
Company's position in debt securities, mainly corporate bonds. The Company faces
defaull risk when counterparties fail {o meet contractual payment obligafions.

Financial loss may materialise as a result of the widening credit spread or downgrade of
credit rating. "

The Company measures and manages their credit risk foliowing the philosophy and
principles below:

{a) The Company actively aims {o prevent undue conceniration by ensuring # holds a
diversified and marketable credit porifolio;

(b) The Company’s asset management research team adopts a prudent position in the
selection of fixed income investments:

{¢} The Company esiablishes imils on maximum credi exposures. The credit fimit for &
counterparty is based on the counterparly credit quality and is aligned to risk
appetite; and

{d) The Company uses Key Risk indicators ("KRI"} to alert the management to
impending problems in a timely mannsr.

Credit exposure
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2012. The maximum exposure is

shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of master netling or
collateral agreements.
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTD.)
(i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)

Credit exposure {(coni'd.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund takafulfund Company
RN000 RM'900 RNOO0 RM'OO0
31.12.2012
AFS financial investments:
Malaysian government
papers 12,187 210,218 277,861 500,236
Uniguoted debt securities
in Malaysia 657,885 616,182 1,306,083 2,580,130
Megotiable islamic
cerificates of deposit - 24 888 16,5697 41,285
LAR:
Deposits and placements
with financial
institutions 113,860 211,070 639,623 964,653
FVTPL financial
investmenis:
Malaysian government
papers - - 921,405 921,405
Unguoted debt securities
in Malaysia - - 3421175 3,421,175

Negotiable islamic

certificates of deposit “00,203 100,203
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)

(i) Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure {cont'd.)

31.12.2012 (cont'd.)

HFT financial investments:
Unquoted debt securities
in Malaysia
Negotiable isiamic
certificates of deposit
Foreign notes
Financing receivables
Takaful receivables
Cther receivables
Retakaful assets
Cash and bank balances

31.12,2011

AFS financial investmerts:
Malaysian government
papers
Unquoted debt securities
in Malaysia
Negotiable islamic

Sharshoider's General Family
fund takaful fund takafuflfund Company
RM'000 RM'000 RM'G00 RM'000
- - 5,847 5,847
- - 7,731 7,731
20,319 - 16,922 37,241
- 106,682 97,362 204,084
282775 19,311 112,586 142,307
- 273,365 18,634 291,999
16,486 20,240 40,041 76,767
1,103,562 1,481,766 6,882,050  8,295.033
2,050 177,601 228,142 406,793
164,818 488,848 1,091,269 1,725,033
- 23,922 15,975 39,897

ceriificates of deposit
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33. FINANGIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{ij CreditRisk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure (cont'd.)

Shareholder's General Family
fund takaful fund fakafulfund Company
RNM'000 RM'000 RM'0CO RM'000
31.12.2011 {cont'd.}
LAR;
Deposits and placements
with financial
institutions 130,748 262 760 1,002.172 1,395,680
FVTPL financial
investmentis:
Malaysian government
papers - - 772,038 772,038
Linquoted debt securities
in Malaysia - - 2,842,585 2,842,585
Negotiable istamic
cerificates of deposit - - 96,492 96,492
HFT financial investmenis;
Unguoted debt securities
in Malaysia - - 49,357 49 3867
Negotiable islamic
certificates of deposit - - 10,7556 10,755
Foreign noles - - 8,208 8,506
Financing receivables 21,055 - 40,878 61,833
Takaful receivables - 02,652 68,449 161,101
Other receivables 522,167 11,818 092,112 105,074
Retakaful assels - 278,108 18,832 286,940
Cash and bank balances 18,510 26,130 44,188 88,828

859,346 1,341,939 §,279,758 8,060,013
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.}

(i) Credit Risk {Cont'd.)

Cradit exposure {cont’d.)

1.07.2011

AFS financial investments:
Malaysian government
papers
Unquoted debt securities
in Malaysia
MNegotiable isfamic
certificates of deposit
LAR:
Deposits and placements
with financial
institutions

FVTPL financial investments:

Malaysian government
papers
Unquoied debt securities
in Malaysia
MNegotiable islamic
certificates of deposit
HFT financial investments:
Unquoted debt securities
in Malaysia
Negotiable islamic
certificates of deposit
Foreigh notes
Financing receivables
Takaful receivables
Other receivables
Retakaful assets
Cash and bank balances

Shareholder's General Family
fund takafulfund takaful fund Company
RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM'D00
12,023 174,685 218,570 406,288
132,097 443,636 $55,843 1,531,576
- 23,138 18,785 41,920
184,094 181,873 1,054,315 1,380,282
- - 776,183 776,163
- - 2,493,012 2,493,012
- - 116,911 116,911
. - 54,735 54,735
- - 50,129 50,129
- - 11,138 11,138
22,192 1,621 53,488 77,259
- 97,618 80,272 177.880
500,085 10,634 83,846 78,9¢1
- 300,064 21,081 321,145
1,168 29,062 20,055 50,283
821,658 1,262,338 5,989 341 7,578,782
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{iy CreditRisk {Cont'd.}
 Credit exposure by credit rating

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Company by classifying assets according to the Company's

credit ratings of counterparties. This analysis excludes assets of the investment-linked funds as credit risk of these funds are bome by the
participants,

Shareholder's fund

---------- - Neither past-due nor impaired «w-rrreomemx
Investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: A to AAA grade: B to BBB Not Rated Past-due credit risk Totai
RM'000 RM'G00 RM*000 RNM'000 RNM000 RA'000
31.12.2012
AFS financial investments:
Equity securities - - - - 91,289 91,269
Malaysian government papers - - 12,157 - - 12,157
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 475447 - 182,418 - - 657,865
Negoiiable islamic cerificates
of deposits - - - - - -
Trust funds - - - - 1,843 1,843
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{I) Credit Risk {Cont'd.}
Credit exposure by credit rating

Shareholder's fund {cont'd.)

31.12.2012 {cont'd.)

LAR:
Deposits and placements with
financial institutions
Financing receivables
Other recejvables
Cash and hank balances

------------ Meither past-due nor impaired

investment  Non-investment

Not subject to

grade: Ato AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'GOG RM'000 RM'000  RM'000 RN'C00 RM'000
113,825 - 135 - - 113,960

- - 18,249 1,870 - 20,319

5,794 9 278,713 - 259 282,775

16,398 - 88 - - 16,486

811,464 g 489,960 1,870 93,371 1,196,674
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)

{i)

Credit Risk (Cont'd.}

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.}

Shareholder's fund

31.12.201

AFS financial investments:
Equity securities
Malaysian government papers
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia
Trust funds

---------- Neither past-due nor impaired - -mmmmme-

investment

Non-investment

grade: Atc AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRamed Past-due

RN'000

89,181

168

RM'O00

I}

RMQ00 RM000

2,050 -
75,6825 -

Not subject to
cradif risk
RN'GGO

37,202

154

Total
RM'o0Q

37,202
2,050
164,816
154
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33, FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(i} CreditRisk (Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.)

Shareholder's fund {cont'd.)
-——-mmmmeme Neither past-due nor impaired se—eamasea

investinent  Non-investment Not subject to

grade: Ato AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'00G RM000 RM'000 RW'000 RMW'000 RM'000

31.12.2011 {cont'd.)

LAR:
Depaosits and placements with

financial institutions 130,618 - 130 - - 130,748
Financing receivables - - 19,233 1,822 - 21,055
Other receivabies ) 712 - 521,381 - 74 822,167
Cash and bank balances 18,304 - 116 - - 18,510
238,915 - 618,535 1,822 37,430 836,702
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)

{i) Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd)

Shareholder's fund

1.07.2011

AFS financial investments:
Equity securities
Malaysian government papers
Unguoted debt securities in Maiaysia
Trust funds

RNFO00

12,023

------- Neither past-due nor impaired
investment  Non-investment
grade: A toc AAA grade: Bto BBB Not Rated
RVI'OG0O RMO90
57.679 50

170

74,68

Past-due
RA'000

Not subject o
credit risk
RM'0G0

35,644

415

Total
RWM000

35,644
12,023
132,097
415
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

Shareholider's fund {(cont'd.}

------ --- Neither past-due nor impaired —e—v-smrawae
Investment  Non-investment Not subject to

grade: A to AAA grade: Bio BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'Q00 RN'O00 RM'000 RM"GG0 RMO00 RM'COD

1,07,2011 {cont'd.}

LAR:
Deposits and placements with

financial institutions 153,964 - 130 - - 154,094
Financing receivables - - 20,431 1,781 - 22,192
Other receivabies 1,444 - 498 553 - 84 560,086
Cash and bank balances 1,049 - 117 - - 1,166
214 341 50 605,422 1,761 36,043 857,617
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)

(i} Gredit Risk {Cont'd.}

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

General takaful fund

31.12.20192

AFS financial investments:
Equity securities
Malaysian government papers
Unqguoted debt securities in Malaysia
Negotiable islamic cerlificates
of deposits
Trust funds

------- - Neither past-due nor impaired ~wcmmrmeeue
Investment  Non-investment
grade:; Ato AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due
RM'G00 RM'O00 RM'O00 RM'G00
- - 210,218 -
527,920 - 88,2682 -
24,688 - - -

172

Not subject to
credit risk
Rio0o

185,617

Total
RAT0O0

185,617
210,218
616,182

24,688
4,087
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.}
{i} Credit Risk (Cont'd.}
Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.)

General takaful fund {cont'd.}
~~~~~~~~~~ Neither past-due nor impaired --—-reeem-

Investment  Non-investment Not subject to

grade: Ato AAA grade: B to BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'COC  RM'00G RMW'0G0 RM000

31.12.2012 {cont'd.)

LLAR:
Deposits and placements with

financial institutions 211,070 - - - - 211,070
Takaful receivables - - 72,422 34,270 - 106,692
Other receivables 7,365 - 11,614 - 432 18,311
Retakaful assets 179,173 14,407 43,927 - 35,858 273,365
Cash and bank balances 203,236 - 4 - - 20,240
970,452 14,407 428,347 34,270 225,994 1671470
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D,)

B

Credit Risk {Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.}

General takaful fund (cont'd.)

31.12.2011

AFS financial investments:
Equity securities
Malaysian government papers
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia
Negotiable islamic certificates
of deposits
Trust funds

---------- - Neither past-due nor impaired ———--nnre
investment Non-investment
grade: A to AAA  grade: B to BBB Not Rated
RNM'O00 RANTG00D RM'000
- - 177,601
358,187 - 109,761
23,822 . -

174

Past-due
RIV'O00

Not subject to
credit risk
RM'000

152,484

1,581

Total
KM'000

152,484
177,601
468,948

23,922
1.581
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {(CONT'D.)
{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

General takaful fund (cont'd.)
-—-mm-emeew Neither past-due nor impaired we—eemees

Investment  Non-investment Not subject to

grade: A {o AAA grade: B to BBB Not Rated Past-due credit risk Total
RANOGD RM'000 RM'C60 RM009 RM000 RM000

31.12.2011 {cont'd.)

LAR:
Depaosits and placements with

financial instifutions 261,660 - 1,106 - - 282 760
Takafui receivables - - 71,415 21,237 - 92,652
Other receivables 5,215 - 6,404 - 198 11,818
Retakaful assets 206,019 8,047 44 163 - 14,879 278,108
Cash and bank balances 26,121 - g - - 26,130
882,124 8,047 410,453 21,237 174,143 1,496 004
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

General takaful fund (cont'd.)

-------- Neither past-due nor impaired —eeemmram.
Investment  Non-investment Not subject to
grade: A to AAA grade: B to BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'G00 RMO0G RM'0GG RM'000 RM009 RM OG0
1.07.2011
AFS financial investments:
Equity securities - - - . 148,121 149,121
Malaysian government papers - - 174,695 - - 174,695
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 333,987 - 108,649 - - 443 636
Negotiable islamic ceriificates
of deposits 23,135 - - - - 23,135
Trust funds - - - - 2,903 2,903
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {(CONT'D.}
{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

General takaful fund (cont'd.)
wwenemmanemes Neither past-due nor impaired —=eeeacecenan

Investment Non-nvestment Not subject to
grade: A to AAA grade: B io BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'G00 RM'000 RMG00 RWG00 RNM'O00 RET000
1.07.2011 (cont'd.)
LAR:
Deposits and placements with 180,587 - 1,276 - - 181,873
financial institutions
Financing receivables - - 1,621 - 1,621

Takaful receivables - 78,560 19,258

- - 97,618

Other receivables 4,407 - 6,000 - 227 10,634
Retakaful assets 191,054 7,516 36,210 - 65,284 300,064
Cash and bank balances 28,047 - 16 - - 29062
782,227 7,518 406,205 20,879 217,135 1,413,962
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(i} Credit Risk (Cont’d.}
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.}

Family takaful fund

------- - Neither past-due nor impaired ——--ueeerer
investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: Ato AAA grade: B to BBE NotRated Past-due credit risk Totai
RMO00 RM'OGO RM'000 RM'000 RM'00 RM'000
31.12.2012
AFS financial investments:
Equity securities - - . - 601,145 601,145
Malaysian government papers “ - 277,861 - - 277,861
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia 907,332 - 398,751 - - 1,306,083
Negotiable islamic certificates of deposits 16,597 - - - 16,587

Trust funds - - - 23,6586 23,686
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)

(i)

Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.)

Family takaful fund (cont'd.)

------ ~- Neither past-due nor impaired ---re~vem
investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: Ato AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk
RM000 RATO00 RM'000 RM'CO0 RM'0GO
31.12.2012 {cont'd.}
LAR:
Deposits and placements with
financial instifutions 634,409 - 9,214 - -
FVTPL financial investments:
Malaysian government papers - - 821,405 - -
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 2,611,025 - 510,150 - -
Negotiable istamic certificates of deposits 100,203 - - - -
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Total
RM000

639,623

921,405
3,421,175
100,203
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.}
{i) Credit Risk (Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credjt rating (cont'd.}

Family takaful fund {cont'd.}

-==---=--=-« Neither past-due nor impaired -—---—u.
investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: Ato AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due creditrisk Total
RM000 RN'000 RM'00D RM'0G0 RIV'G00 RM'000
31.12.2012 {cont'd.}
HFT financial investments:
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 5,847 ~ - - - 5,847
Foreign notes - - 7,731 - - 7731
Financing receivables - - - 16,922 - 16,922
Takaful receivables - - 52,739 44 623 - 97,362
Other receivables 45,614 - 64,457 - 1,485 112,568
Relakaful assets 18,634 - - - - 18,634
Casti and bank balances 39,876 - 85 - - 40,041
4,576,637 - 2342373 81,545 626,326 7,808,881
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{i) Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.)

Family takaful fund

31.12.2011

AFS financial investrents:
Equity securities
Malaysian government papers
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia
Negotiable islamic cerlificates of deposits
Trust funds

--------- Neither past-due nor impaired -—--c-u--—

investment Non-investment
grade: A to AAA grade: B to BBB
RM'000 RM'GO0

834,778 -
15,875 -

181

Not Rated
RM'C00

226,142
256,491

-

Not subject to
Past-due  credit risk
RMOG0 RM000C

- 525,230

- 17,088

Total
RM0O00

625,230
226,142
1,091,269
15,975
17,088
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONTD.)
(I} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

Family takafu! fund (cont'd.}

----------- Neither past-due nor impaired ——---—-
Investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: Ato AAA grade: Bi{o BBB NotRated Past-due credit rigk Total
RWC00 RM'0D0 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM 000
31.12.2011 (cont'd.)
EAR:
Deposits and placements with
financial institutions 946,068 - 56,104 - - 1,002,172
Financial investments at FVTPL;
Malaysian government papers - - 772,039 - - 772,039
Other debt securitios, structured 2,345,563 - 437,022 - - 2,842 535
Negotiable islamic certificates of deposits 96,452 - - - - 96,492
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.}

(i)

Credit Risk (Cont'd.}

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

Family takaful fund (cont'd.}

--------- Neither past-due nor impaired —---e--
Investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: Afo AAA grade: Bto BBEB Not Rated Past-due credit risk Total
RATOOD RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM00O RAG00
31.12.2011 {cont'd.}
HFT financial investments:
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia 49 357 - - - - 49 357
Negaotiable islamic certificates of deposits 10,755 - - - - 10,755
Foreign notes ' - - 8,506 - - 8,506
Financing receivables - - - 40,878 - 40,878
Takaful receivables - - 15,088 53,353 - 68,449
Other receivables 33,878 - 57,584 - 659 92,119
Retakaful assets 18,832 - - - - 18,832
Cash and bank balances 44 001 - 87 - - 44 188
4,395,697 - 1,889,171 94 231 642877 7022076
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.}

Family takaful fund

1.07.2041

AFS financial investments:
Equity securities
Malaysian government papers
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia
Negotiable islamic certificates of deposits
Trust funds

-—emmeeems Neither past-due nor impaired «-—-veemse.

Investment Non-investment Nof subject to
grade: A to AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk
RW'Q60 RM'000 RM'000Q RM'000 RAT0GO

- - - - 633,150

- - 219,570 - -

704,588 - 251,245 - -

18,785 - - - -

- - - - 18,196
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RN'O00

633,150
218.,57C
955,843
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
() Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.}

Family takaful fund {cont’d.}

------ Neither past-due nor impaired -—-eemeem
Investment Non-investment Not subject to
grade: A to AAA grade: Bto BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'O00 RM'000 RM200 RM'000 RM'G00 RWM'000
1.67.2011 {cont'd.}
LAR:
Deposits and placements with
financial institutions 996 671 - 57 644 - - 1,054,315
Financial investments at FYTPL;
Malaysian government papers - - 776,183 - - 776,163
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia 2,049,581 - 443,431 - - 2,483,012
Negofiable islamic certificates of deposits 116,911 - - - - 116,911
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ETIQA TAKAFUI. BERMAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.}
{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd,)

Family takaful fund (cont'd.)

------ --- Neither past-due nor impaired -eeeem
Investment Non-investment Mot subject to
grade: Ato AAA grade:Bio BBB NotRated Past-due credit risk Total
RM'000 RAM0GD RM'000 RMVO00 RM'000 RM'Q00
1.07.2011 (cont'd.}
HFT financial investments:
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia 854,735 - - - - 54,735
Negotiable islamic certificates of deposits 50,129 - - - - 50,129
Foreign notes - - 11,138 - - 11,138
Financing receivables - - - 53,486 - 53,486
Takaful receivables - - 46,158 34114 - 80,272
Other receivables 34.350 - 28,610 - 886 63,846
Retakaful assets 21.081 - - - - 21,081
Cash and bank balances 19,440 - B15 - - 20,055
' 4,066,281 - 1,834,574 87,600 652,226 6640681
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)

{i}

Credit Risk {Gont'd.}

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd }

Age Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Dug/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due anc Impaireg

Shareholder's fund

31.12.2012

Financing receivables
Other receivables

Past due but not impaired = e Past due and impaired «orenn
91 to Original fmpairment  Net carrying Grand
<80 days 180 days >180days Total {i carrying amount allowance amount total
RM000 RIWG00 RW00d  RM'000 Riv'009 RM'000 RM'000 R&000
- - 1,870 1,870 622 (622) - 1,870
- - - - 1,430 {1.430) - -
- - 1.870 1,870 Z&ﬁﬂgg: {2 0523 - 1.870
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia}

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)

{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.)

Credit exposyre by credit rating {cont'd.

Age Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Due/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due and Impaired {cont'd )

Shareholder's fund {cont'd.)

31.12.2011

Financing receivables
Other receivables

e P35E due but not impaired -

Past due and impaired

¥to Original impairment  Net carrying Grand

<80 days 180days >180 days Totat §l carrying amount aflowance arnount fotal
RM'0GO RM'0GO RAFO00 RWMPO0G RM'GOQ RM'000 RWO00 RM'0G0

- - 1,822 1,822 580 {580) - 1,822

- ~ - - 401 {401} - -

- - 1,822 1.822 981 {981) - 1,822
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONTD.}
{i} Credit Risk (Cont'd.)
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd)

Age Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Dua/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due anc Impaired (cont'd.}

Shareholder's fund (cont'd.)

1.07.2011 mmemmemnmeeess PAsE due but not impaired Past due and impaired s
#Mto ! Original Impairment  Net carrying Grand
<90 days 180 days >180 days Total {| carrying amount allowance amount total
RN 000 RM'000 RM'00C  RM'0GO RM000 RMGE0 RM000 RMG00
Financing receivablas - - 1,761 1,761 580 {580 - 1,761
Other receivables - - - - 16 {16} - -
- - 1781 . 1761 596 (596} - 1,761
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ETIGA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'DL)
{i} Credit Risk (Cont'd.}

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd,}

Age Analysis of Financial Assels Past-Due/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Dug and Impaired

General takaful fund

Py 2 S v — Past due but not impaired --e=m- e ~meeememare PaSt QUE AN impaired R
81 to Original impairment  Net carrying Grand
<86 days 180 days >180 days Total §i carrying amount allowance amount total
RN'000 RM'GGO RIWDa0 RM'000 RAT000 RM'0GO RV'000 RW'000
Financing receivables - - - - 3.381 (3,381) - -
Takaful receivables 1,259 13.018 31,392 56,938 21,121 (21,121} - 56,939
1,258 13,018 31,382 56,939 24,502 (24 502) - 56,839
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ETIQA TAKAFUL. BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONTD.)

(i) Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd,)

Age Analysis of Finangial Assets Past-Due/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due and impaired (cont'd.}

General takafui fund {(cont'd.}

31.12.2011

Financing receivables
Takaful receivables

mer——e—ne P35t due but not impaired e —

mmmemeewe—- Past due and impaired seeow—---

g1 to Originaj impairment  Nef carrying Grand

<8 days 186 days >180 days Totai § carrying amount allowance amount total
RM'C00 RM'0GO RM'060 RM'000 RM'Q0G RM'G00 RM'C00 RM000

- - - - 3,396 {3,396} - -

8,159 2,891 8,187 21,237 21,237 (21,237} - 21,237
9,159 2,891 8187 21,237 24 633 {24,633} - 21,237
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ETIQA TARAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Majaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTD.)

(i) GCredit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

Agg Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Due/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due anc tmpaired {conid.)

General takaful fund {cont'd.)

1.07.2011

Financing receivables
Takaful receivables

enrene—— Past due but not impaired

Past due and impaired ~ww——-

2t QOriginal impairment  Net carrying Grand

<90 days t80days >180 days 'Totai carrying amount allowance amount fotal
RM'000 RAOGO RM'000 R'000 RM'000 RM'G00 RM'G00 RMO00

- - 858 858 « 595 {3,832} 763 1,621

11,983 4,994 2,281 19,258 26 531 {26,531} - 19,258
11,963 4,934 3,139 20,116 | 31,126 {30,363} 763 20 879
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)}

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{i} Credit Risk (Cont'd.}
Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)

Age Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Due/Buf Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due and Impaired

Family takaful fund

31.12.2012 ——-rmeem Past duie but not impaired - —— Past due and impaired ——weee
91 o Qriginal Impairment  Net carrying Grand
<90 days 180 days >180days Total {| carrying amount allowance amount total
RM'Go0 RM'CO0 RM'000 RMO40 RMQQ0 RM'000 RAM'000 RV GO0
Financing receivables - - - - 42118 {25,198) 16,922 16,822
Takaful receivables 23,087 13,685 7,850 44 622 41,217 {41,217) - 44,622
Other receivables - - - - 580 (850) - -
23087 13,685 7,850 44 822 83885 . . (66963 16,922 51,544
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.}

(i) Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Credit exposure by credit rating {cont'd.}

Age Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Due/But Not impaired and Financial Assets Past Due anc Impaired {cont'd.)

Family takaful fund {cont'd.}

31.12.2011

Financing receivables
Takaful receivables

Past due but not impaired ~—e-meaues

remeer— Past GUe and impaired

91 to Qriginal impairment  Netcarrying Grand

<80 days 180 days >180 days Total i} carrying amount allowance amount total

RMO00 RM'e00 RM'G0D RM'G00 RMWQ00 RMOOG RM'000 RM'GO0

205 2,500 - 2,705 62,170 {24,997) 38,173 40,878

5,656 19,362 28 305 53,353 1€,642 {16,842} - 53,353
5861 21,882 28,305 56,058 7€ 812 (41639) 38173 94,231
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{(incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.}

{i} Credit Risk {Cont'd.}

Credit exposure by credit rating (cont'd.)}

Age Analysis of Financial Assets Past-Due/But Not Impaired and Financial Assets Past Due and impaired {cont'd.)

Family takaful fund (cont'd.)

1.07.2011

Financing receivables
Takaful receivables

Past due but not impaired —-—-—

remeemene e P25t due and impaired -

910 Originai Impairment  Net carrying Grand

<90 days 180 days >180days Total || carrying amount allowance amount total
RM000 RM'000 RN000 RM'G00 RWV'000 RMO00 Rivi'o00 RIV000
21 2,500 10,292 12,813 8672 {24 999 40,673 53,485
32,933 1,181 - 34,114 15,144 {15,144} - 34,114
32,854 3,681 10,282 46 927 8C.816 (49,143} 40873 87,800
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.}

{f

Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Reconciliation of allowance accoint

The movements in allowance for impairment losses for financial assets are as follows:

Sharehoider's fund

At 1 July 2011

impaiment losses
during the year

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2012
Impairment losses
during the year
Written off during the year
Reversal of impairment
losses during the year
Al 31 December 2012

Certeral takaful fund

At 1 July 2011

Reversal of impairment
fosses during the period

At 31 December 2011

Financing Takafid Other
receivables receivables receivables Total
RW'000 RIA'D0O RM'O00 RM'000
580 - 18 506
- - 385 385
580 . 401 881
580 - 401 981
102 - - 102
{24) - - (24
{36) . 1,029 093
622 - 1,430 2,052
Financing Takaful Other
receivables receivahles receivables Total
RAMB0O0 RM'000 RM000 RM'GO0
3,832 26,531 - 30,363
{436) (5,284) - (5,730
3,366 21,237 - 24 633
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(lncorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)

{i)

Credit Risk (Cont'd.)

Reconcitiation of allowance account {cont'd.)

The movements in allowance for impairment losses for financial assets are as follows:

{cont'd.}

General takaful fund {conf'd.)

AL 1 January 2012

Reversal of impairment
losses during the year

At 31 December 2012

Family takaful fund

At 1 July 2011
Impairment losses
during the year
{Reversal of impairment
lossesyimpairment
fosses during the peried
At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2012

Amount written off

Impairment losses
during the year

At 31 December 2012

Financing Takaful Qther
receivables receivables receivables Totai
RM'000 RM'CO0 RM00H RM'BOD
3,366 21,237 - 24,633
{15) {115} - {137}
3,381 21121 - 24 507
Financing Takafui Other
receivables receivables receivables Total
RM'c00 RMO00 RW000 RAMQ00
24,899 15,144 - 40,143
{2) 1,488 - 1,498
24 967 16,642 - 41,638
24,997 16,642 - 41,638
- {1,228) - {1,228}
199 25,803 550 26,552
25,196 41,217 550 66,963
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ETIQA TAKAFLI, BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)
{1} Credit Risk (Conf'd.)

Financigl effect of collateral held

The main types of collateral held as security by the Company o mitigate credit risk are

as follows:

Type of financing receivahbles Type of coilaterals

Secured staff loans Charges over residential properties
and vehicles

Corporaie loans Charges over properties, lands being

financed and bank guarantees

The funds with financial assels over which collaterals are held as security inciude the
shareholder's and family takaful funds. The quantification of the extent to which
coliateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk (referred to as *the financial
effect of collateral”) is described below.

Sharsholder's fund

The financial effect of collateral held for financing recaivables of the fund is 78% as at
31 December 2012 (31.12.2011: 77%). The financing receivables include staff loans
which amounted to RM20.3 miltion as at 31 Dacember 2012 (31.12.2011; RM21.1
million). These loans are collateralised in the form of charges over residential properties
which are worth RM21.9 million (31.12.2011: RM24.4 million),

Family takaful fund

The financial effect of collateral held for financing receivabies of the fund is 100% as at
31 December 2012 (31.12.2011: 28%). The financing receivables inciude corporats
toans which amounted to RM16.9 million as at 31 December 2012 (31.12.2011: RM40.9
million). These lcans are collateralised in the form of land guaraniees, worth RM25.5
million in aggregate (31.12.2011: RM152.0 million),
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{ii} Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that arises from the lack of marketability of an investment that cannot be bought or sold quickly enough to prevent
or minimise a loss, i is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial instruments.

The objective of liquidity risk management is to safeguard the Company's ability to meet all payments when they come due. Liquidity risk
management will ensure that, even under adverse conditions, the Company has access to the funds necessary to cover surrenders,
withdrawals, claims and the maturity liabilities.

The Company measures and manages liquidity risk foliowing the philosophy and principles below:

(8} The Company actively monitors the cashflows associated and derived from assetis and liabilities of the Company through the ALCO
platform; and

{b) The Company's investment strategies ensure that the established investment limits sel takes care of reasonable liquidity requirements
at ali times,
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.}
{ii} Liquidity Risk (Cont'd.}
Maturity Profiles

The table below summarises the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities of the Company based on remaining undiscounted
contractual obligations, including profit payable and receivable. For takaful certificate liabilities and retakaful assets, maturity profiles are
determined based on estimated timing of net cash outflows from the recognised takaful certificate liabilities.

Contribution liabiliies and the retakaful operators’ share of contribution liabilities have been excluded from the analysis as there are no
eontractual obligations to make payments on those kabilities,

Unit-linked liabilities are repayable or transferable on demand and are inciuded in the ‘up to a year” column. Repayments which are
subject o notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately.
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D,)
(i} Liquidity Risk {Cont'd.)
Maturity Profiles (cont'd.}

Shareholder's fund Carrying value  Up to a year 1 -5 years > &b years No maturity date Total
RIM000 RN'GOO RM'000 RN000 RATG00 RM000

31.12.2012

Financial investments:

LAR 113,860 113,860 - - - 113,860

AFS 763,134 - 190,381 703,387 93111 986,879
Financing receivables 20,319 2,228 8,774 9,317 - 20,318
Other receivables 282775 282,775 - “ - 282775
Cash and bank balances 16,486 16,486 - - - 16,486
Total assels 1,196,674 415,448 198,155 712,704 93,111 1,420,418
Takaful payables 3,008 3.008 - - - 3,008
Other payabies 122,986 122,986 - - - 122,886
Total iabilities 125,994 125,994 - - - 125,954
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERMAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)
(i) Liquidity Risk (Cont'd.}
Maturity Profiles (cont'd.)

Shareholder's fund {cont'd.)

31.12.2011

Financiat investments:
LAR
AFS
Financing receivables
Cther receivables
Cash and bank balances
Total assets

Other payables
Total liabiiities

Carrying value Up to a year 1-5years >5years  No maturity date Fotal
RM000 RNM'O00 RM'e00 RM'C00 RM'000 RM'O00
130,748 130,748 - - - 130,748
204,222 - 28,557 193,050 37,365 258, 962

21,065 2,277 9,310 8 468 - 21,055
522,167 522,167 - - - 522,167
18,510 18,510 - - - 18,510
896,702 673,702 37.867 202 518 37,365 951,442
55,408 55,408 - - - 55,408
55,408 55,408 - - - 55,408
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)
{iiy Liquidity Risk {Cont'd.)
Maturity Profiles {(cont'd.)

Shareholder's fund (cont'd.)

1.07.2011

Financial investments;
LAR
AFS
Financing receivables
QOther receivablas
Cash and hank balarices
Total assets

Other payables
Total liabilities

Carrying value Up to a year 1-5&years >byears  No maturity date Total
RM'000 RN'Q00 RATOGO RM'000 RI¥000 RMW900
154,094 154,094 - - - 154,004
180,079 - 29,404 162,553 35,959 227,916

22192 807 3,453 18,092 - 22,192
500,086 500,086 - - - 500,086
1,166 1,166 - - - 1,166
867,617 585,953 32,897 180,645 35,959 905,454
59,322 58,322 - - - 59,322
59,322 59,322 - - - 59,322
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)
{ii} Liquidity Risk {Cont'd.)
Maturity Profiles {cont'd.)

General takaful fund

31.,12.2012

Financial investments:
LAR
AFS
Takaful receivabies
Other receivables
Retakaful asssts
Cash and bank baiances
Total assets

Up to a year

Carrying value 1-5H years > & years  No maturity date Total
RRY000 RM"QO0 RMQ00 RM'000 RM'GO0 RM'006
211,070 211,070 - - - 211,070

1,040,792 290,051 509,830 153,307 188,704 1,142 8392
106,682 106,692 - - - 106,682
18,311 18,311 - - - 19,311
237,507 118,766 94,331 24,410 - 237,507
20,240 20,240 - - - 20,240
1,635,612 766,130 604,161 177,717 188,704 1,737,712

204



266243-D

ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTD,)
(i)} Liquidity Risk {Cont'd.)
Maturity Profiles {(cont'd,)

General takaful fund {cont'd.}

31.12.2012 {cont'd.)

Takaful payabies
Other payables
Ciaims liabilities
Total liabitities

Carrying value Up to a year 1-6years > S years No maturity date Total
RM'G00 RM000 RM'000 RNO0H RF000 RM'OO0

89,183 89,183 - - - 89,183

164,978 164,878 - - - 164,978
748,517 374 297 287,288 76,932 - 748,517
1,002,678 628,458 297 288 76,832 - 1,002,678
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D.}
(i) Liguidity Risk (Cont'd.}

Maturity Profiles (cont'd.}

General takaful fund {cont'd.} Carrying value Up to a year 1 -5 years >byears  No maturity date Total
RIVI'000 RNW0GO RM'GOO RM'000 RN'0G0 RM'000
31.12.2011
Financial investments:
LAR 262,760 262,760 - - - 262,760
AFS 824,536 130,758 522 588 90,925 154,065 898,337
Takafui receivables 92 652 92,652 - - - 92,652
Other receivables 11,818 11,818 - - - 11,818
Retakaful assets 258,229 114,059 111,500 32,870 - 258,229
Cash and bank balances 26,130 26,130 - - ~ 26,130
Total asseis 1,476,125 638,177 534,089 123,595 154,065 1,549,925
Takaful payables 56,937 56,937 - - - 55,837
Other payables 213,284 213,284 - - - 213,284
Ciaims liabilities 661,800 292 316 285,758 §3.726 - 661,800
Total liabitities 932,021 £82,537 285,758 83,726 - 832.021
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(i) Liquidity Risk (Cont'd.)

Maturity Profiles {cont'd.)

General takaful fund {cont'd,) Carrying value Upto a year 1-5years >&Gyears No maturity date Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'Q00 RN'O0G0 RM'0G0 RMQ00
1.07.2011
Financial investments:
LAR 181,873 181,873 - - - 181,873
AFS 793,080 147,934 489,791 76,4549 161,624 865,808
Financing receivabios 1,821 858 - 763 1,621
Takaful receivables 97,818 87,618 - - - 97 618
Qther receivables 10,634 10,634 - - - 10,634
Retakaful assets 234,780 100,784 112,160 21,836 - 234780
Cash and bank balances 28,062 28,062 - - - 29,062
Total assets 1,348,678 568,763 601,951 99,058 151,624 1,421,385
Takaful payables 64 601 64,691 - - - 64,691
Other payables 214,302 214,302 - - - 214,302
Claims liabifities 552,811 237,308 264 090 51,418 - 552 811
Total liabilities 831,804 516,299 264,080 51,416 - 831,804
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ETIQA TAKAFUL BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia}

33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{ii} Liquidity Risk {Cont'd.)

Family takaful fund

31,12.2012

Financiat investments:;

LAR

AFS

FVTPL

HFTY
Financing receivables
Takaful receivables
Other receivables
Retakaful asseis
Cash and bank balances
Total assets

Takaful payables

Other payabies

Takaful cerlificate liabilities
Total liabilities

Carrying value Uptoayear 1+ B years > G years  No maturity date Total
RAM00Q RM0G0 RM'GGO RM'G60Q RM"Q00 RM'000
639,623 538,623 - - - 639,823

2,225,372 102,526 408,537 1,563,661 824,831 2,689,555
4,442 783 227,780 735,497 5,012,380 - 5,975,667
13,578 13,578 - - - 13,578
16,822 - - 16,922 - 16,922
97,362 97,362 - - - 97,362
112,566 112,566 - - - 112,556
18.634 5,153 10,174 3,307 - 18,634
40,041 40,041 - - - 40,041
7.606,881 1,238,629 1,184,208 6,596,280 624,631 9,613,948
61,247 61,247 - - - 61,247
273,638 273,638 - - - 273,638
5,303,482 2,582,342 1.080,079 2,946,752 - 5,608,173
5,638,367 2917227 1,080,079 2,846,752 - 6,944,058
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(i) Liquidity Risk (Cont'd.)

Family takafu! fund {cont'd.) Carrying value Up to a year 1-5vyears >Gyears  No malurity date Total
RM'O00 RMQ00 RWM'G00 RMo00 RM'G00 RW'000

31.12.2011

Financial investments:

LAR 1,002,172 1,002,172 - - - 1,002,172

AFS 1,875,704 44 517 528,370 1,179,873 642,318 2,395,177

FVTPL 3,711,116 106,232 1,184,907 3,689,337 - 4,986,476

HFET 68,618 - 68,618 - - 58,618
Finanging receivables 40,878 2,705 9,000 28,173 - 40,878
Takafui receivables 68,449 &8,449 - - - 68,449
Qiher receivables 92,119 82.11% - - - 82,119
Retakaful assets 18,832 7.020 10,045 1,767 - 18,832
Cash and bank balances 44 188 44 138 - - - 44,188
Total assets 7.022.078 1,367,402 1,800,940 4,800,250 642,318 8,710,808
Takafu] payables 69,800 698,800 - - - 68,800
Other payables 586,272 596,272 - . - 596,272
Takaful certificate liabilities 4,812,034 2,193,850 §62,300 2,489,913 - 5,546,153
Totatl liabilities 5,478,106 2,858 822 862,380 2,488,913 - 6,212,225
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS {CONT'D,)
{if} Liquidity Risk {Cont'd.)

Family takaful fund {cont'd.) Carrying value  Up to a year 1 -5 years >S5 years  No maturity date Total
RM'000 RM'CO0 RM'GGO RnG00 RM000 RM0G0

1.87.2041

Financial investments:

LAR 1,054 315 1,054,315 - - - 1,054,315

AFS 1,845,538 60,884 565,203 1,501,408 651,340 2,778,835

FVTRPL 3,386,088 170,303 982,755 2,754 686 - 3,007 755

HFT 116,002 - 116,002 - ~ 116,002
Financing receivables 53,486 12,813 11,500 29,173 - 53,486
Takaful receivables 80,272 80,272 “ - - 80,272
Cther recaivables 63,846 63,846 - - - 63,846
Retakaful assets 21,081 8,683 11.073 1,325 - 21,081
Cash and bank balances 20,055 20,055 - - - 20,055
Total assets 6,640,681 1471171 1,686,534 4,286,602 651,340 8,095,647
Takafui payables 79,677 79,677 - - - 79,677
Other payables 832,428 532,428 - - - 532,428
Takafut cerlificate liabilities 4,568,158 2,135,748 810,393 2378757 - 5,325,808
Total liabilities 5,180,263 2,747,853 810,393 2.379,757 - 5,938,003
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H, FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(i) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a Bnancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises of three (3] types of risk;
(8) currency risk;
{b) profit yield risk; ang

{c) equily price risk.

The Campany has three key fealures in s market risk management practices ang policies.
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
{iii} Market Risk {(Cont'd.)

First, a company-wide market risk policy exists which sefs out le evaluation and determinalion of components of market risk for the Company. Compliance with the
poficy is monitored and reported monthly {o the RMC and exposures and breaches are reporied as soon as praclicable.

Second, the Company's policies on asset aliocation, portiolie kmit structure and diversification benchmark have been set in ling with the Company's risk management
policy after taking cognisance of the regulatory requirements in respact of maintenance of assets and solvency,

Third, strict controls exist aver derivative transactions; such transactions are only permitied for hedging purposes and not for speculative purposes.

The Company also issues unit-linked investrnent certificates in a number of its products. in the unit-inked business, the participanis hear the invesiment risk on the
assets held in the unit-linked funds as the benefits are directly linked 1o the value of the assets in the funds.
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONTD.)

(iii} Market Risk {cont'd.)

The Company's exposure to market risk ont this business is fimited te the exteni that income arising from assel management charges is based on the value of the

assets in the funds. Accordingly, the sensitivity analyses discloged for each component of market risk in the following pages do not include analyses on the frmpact such
risks ot the investment-linked funds.

{a} Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrement will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company’s primary transactions are carried ou in Ringgit Malaysia {"RM"} and its exposure to foreign exchange riek arises principally with respect tg US Deilar.

As the Company’s business is conducled primarily in Malaysia, the Company's financial assels are ajso priranily mainigined in Malaysia as required under the
Takaful Act, 1984, and hence, primarily denominated in the same currency (the local RM) as s insurance and invesiment cedificate liabitities.

The Company's main foreign exchange risk from recognised assels and liabilities arises from retakafyl transactions for which the balances are expected to be

seltled and reafised in less than a year. Accordingly, the impact arising from sensilivity in foreign exchange rates is deemed minimal as the Company has no
significant concentration of foreign currency dsk.
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33. FINANCIAL RIBKS {CONT'D.)

{iii} Market Risk (cont'd,}

(b} Profit Yieid Risk

Profit yisld fisk is the risk that the value or future cash fiows of & financial instrument witt Ructuate because of changes in market profit ratefproft vietd.

Profit yvield risks arise from expesures to profit rate/profit vield related assets and fiabilities. % is alse known as assef-fiabifity mismatch (“ALM") nisk. It is mainky
driven by the volatility of fulure cash flows. The quanium is also proxied to the durafion mismateh between the assels and the liabiities.

The Company measures and manages the profit rate/profit vield rsk through the main following philosophies and principles:

(a} Actively aim 1o maich the liability duration with the asset duration, without compromising credit gualily;

{2} Set forth the benchmairk for asset duration in fine with risk appetite: and

{c) Use KRIis to alert the organisation to impendinig problems in a timely manner.

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key vanables with all other varables heid constant, showing the impact on equity or

unaliecated surplus, and implicitly, profit before tax. The correlation of variables wilt have 3 significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on profit rate sk but
to demonstrate the iImpact variables are examined on an individual basis. It should be noted that moversents in these variables are non linear,
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33, FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.}
(i} Market Risk {zont'd.)

(b} Profit Yield Risk (cont'd.)

1; 3 -Dec-12 31-Dec-11 1-Jui-11
Impact on Profit /| Impact on Equityi{lmpact on Profit f Impact on Equity]ilmpact on Profit!| lmpact on Equity
Funds Changes in variables Surplus Before ¢t Participants’}t  Surplus Before [ Participants' Surplus Before { Participants’
Tax Funds Tax Funds Tax Funds
{RM'00G}) {RM'000} (BNT005) {RM"908) (RM'000) {RE000)
Sharehelders’ +100 basis poinis (251} {51,821} {259} (15,961) {288) (8,333)
Fund -100 basis points 251 51,821 f1 259 15,961 288 8,383
General Takalut +10G basis poirts {369 {20,501) (406} (15,658) (227 (14,433)
Fund ~100 basis points 369 20,501 4416 15,658 327 14,433
Family Takaful +100 basis points {319,245) {348,125) (239,067} {259,337} {217,530} (222,813)
Fund ~100 basis points 319,245 349,125 || 239,087 2592337 217,999 222,813
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33. FINANGIAL RISKS {CONT'D.)
(ili) Market Risk (cont'd.)
(e} Equity Price Risk

Equity price 7isk is the risk that the fair value of fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale bacause of changes in market prices {other than those

arising from profit ratefprofit yiek! risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individuat financial instrument o its issuer or
factors affecting simmitar financial instrumends traded in the rmarket,

The Company's equily price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose valuges will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices which
are principally investiment securifies not held for unit-inked business.

The Company’s equity price risk policy requires it to raanage such risks by sefling and monitoring objectives and constraints on invesiments, diversification plans
and krmits on investiments in each country, sector, marke! and issuer, having regard also to such Fmits stipulated by BNM.

The Company complied with BNM stipulated fimits during the financiat year and had rio significant conceniraton of equity price risk,
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33. FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT'D.)
(1) Market Risk (cont'd.}

{c} Equity Price Risk {conf'd.)

The analysis below is performed for reasanably possible movemeants in key
unallocated surplus. The correlation of variables will have a significant eff
variables are examined on an individual basis. 1t should be noted that

variables with all other varables being held constant, showing the impact on equity or

ect in delermining the uffimate impact on price risk, but to demonstrate the impact,
the raovements in these variables are non linear.

i [ 31-Dec-12]] 31-Dec-11 1-Jul-11
impact on Equity[l Impact on Equityl] Impact on Equity,
Funds Market Indices Changes in variables 1 Participants® { Pacticipants’ ! Participants®
Funds Funds Funds
(RM'000) (RIM'000) {(RM'000)
Bursa Malaysia +10% 9,308; 3,732 3,596
Sharehalders Fund Bursa Malaysia -10% (9,308} (3,732 (3.596)
Bursa Malaysia +10% 18,8703 15,407 14,295

Kaful £ - :
General Takaful Fund Bursa Malaysia -10% (18,970) {15,407} {14,205)
i Bursa Malaysia +10% 62,482 63.173 60,559
Family Takaful Fund Bursa Mataysia -10% (62,483} (63,173) (60,559)
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34. OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. The Company bas put in place conirols 1o mitigate operational risks. If
thesa ¢ontrols fail tu perform, they can cause damage to reputation, have egal or regulatory implications and can jead to financial loss, Business risks such as changes in
environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company's strategic planning and budgeting process.

Operational risks includes Shariak her-compliance risk. Shariah non-compliance risk refers to the possible failure in meeling the obligations of Shariah, When controls fait to
perform, Shanah non-compliznce risk can cause reputational and operational damage, have regulatory implications or can even lead to financial loss and finally, impediment
frem Adlah's barakah or blessing. The Company expects ip mitigate such risks by intitiating, menitoring and responding to the Sharal contro! framewori. Controls include
effactive oversight of the Shariah Committee, supported by the internal Shariah Compliance Department Jn all aspects of the Campany's operations, Other refevant controls
include staff awareness training and interpal cperating guidelings, including the use of infernal and external Shariah audit,
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

{i)

{ii}

(iif)

{iv)

Cash and cash equivalents and other receivables/payables

The carrying amounts approximate fair values due fo the redatively short-terrn maturity
of these financial instruments.

Financing receivables

Financing receivables are granted at interest/profit rates which are comparable with the
rates offered on similar instruments in the market and to counter parties with similar
credit profiles. Accordingly, the carrying amount of the financing receivables
approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not material.

Takaful receivables and payables
The carrying amounts are measured at amortised cost in accordance with the
accounting policies as disclosed in Note 2.2(n) and 2.2(r). The carrying amounts

approximate fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Investments

investments have been accounied for in accordance with the accounting policies as
disclosed in Note 2.2(d} and 2.2{e). The carrying amounts and fair values of

- investments are disclosed in Note 5 of the financial statements.

Description of Gverall Fair Value Framework

the Company has an established framework and policies which provide guidance
concerning the practical considerations, principles and analytical approaches for the
establishment of prudent valuations of financial instruments.

The valuations of financial instruments are performed either based on quoted prices in
active markets at which an arm’s length transaction would be likely to ocour or using
valuation techniques. Fair values of financial instruments can be assessed using
observable inputs or unobservable inputs where one or more significant inputs are
unobservable. Management judgment is exercised in the selection and application of
appropriate parameters, assumptions and madeling techniques where some or all of
the parameter inputs are not observable in deriving fair value.
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONT'D.}
(iv) Investments (Gont'd.)
Description of Overall Fair Value Framework {cont'd.}

Valuation adjustment is an integral part of valuation process. Valuation adiustment
reflects the unceriainty in valvations for products that are iess standardised, less
frequently traded and more complex in nature. In making valuation adjustments, the
Company follows methodologies that consider factors such as liguidity, bid-offer
spread, unobservable pricesfinputs in the market and unceriainties in the assumptions/
parameters.

fn addition, the Company continuously enhances its design and validation
methodologies and processes used to produce valuations and periodic reviews are
performed to ensure the model remains suitable for its intended use.

Description of Overall Definition of the Fair Value Hierarchy

The jevels of the fair value hierarchy as defined by the accounting standards are an
indication of the observability of prices or valuation input. It can be classified into the
following hierarchies/levels:

- Level 1: Active Market ~ quoted price

Refers to financial instruments which are regarded as guoted in an active market if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market iransactions on an arm’s length basis. Such
financial instruments include quoted equity securities and quoted unit and property
trust funds.
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONTD.}
{iv} Investments (Cont'd.)
Pescription of Overall Fair Value Framework (cont'd.)
* Level 2 : No Active Market ~ Valuation techniques using observable input
Refers fo inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or fiability, either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e.

derived from prices).

Examples of level 2 financial instruments inciude Malaysian government papers,
unquoted debt securities and negotioble Istamic certificates of deposits.

+ Level 3 No Active Market — Valuation techniques using unobservable input
Refers to financial instruments where fair values are measured using unobservable
market inputs. The valuation technique is consistent with level 2. The chosen

valuation technigue incorporates management's assumptions and data.

Examples of level 3 instruments include unguoted equity securities and foreign
notes.
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONTD.)
(v) Fair Value Disciosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy

Shareholder's Fund

I Valuation techniques using: 1
Level 1 Level 2 lLevel 3
Quoted Observable Significant
market prices inputs  unobservable inputs ~ Total
RM'000 RM'000 RN'GD0  RM'000
31.12.2012
Assels
AFS financial assets:
Equily securifies 81,237 - 32 91,268
Malaysian government
papers - 12,157 - 12,157
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia - 857,865 - 657,865
Trust funds 1,843 - - 1,843
Total assats 93,080 670,022 32 763,134
31.12.2011
Asgets
AFS financiat assets:
Equity securities 37170 - 32 37,202
Malaysian government
papers - 2,050 - 2,050
Unguotaed debt
securities in
Malaysia - 164,816 - 164,816
Trust funds 154 - - 154
Total assets 37,324 166,866 32 204,222
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy {cont'd.}

Shareholder's Fund {cont'd.}

l

Valuation technigues using:

Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3
Quoted Observable Significant
market prices inputs  unobservable inputs Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000
1.07.2011
Assets
AFS financial assets;
Equily securities 35,314 - 230 35,644
Malaysian government
papers - 12,023 - 12,023
Unquoted dabt
sgcurities in
Malaysia - 132,097 - 132,087
Trust funds 415 - - 415
Total assets 35,729 144,120 230 18,079
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTD.)
{v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy {cont'd.}

General takaful fund

| Vatuation techniques using: |

Leved 1 Level 2
Quoted  Observable
market prices inputs | Total
RM'000 RM'Ga0 RM'800
31.12.2012
Assels
AFS financial assets:
Equity securities 185,617 - 185,617
Malaysian government papers - 210,218 210,218
Unguoted debt securities in Malaysia - 618, 182 616,182
Negotiable Islamic certificates
of deposits - 24,688 24,6888
Trust funds 4,087 - 4,087
Totat assets 189,704 851,088 1,040,782
31.12.2011
Assets
AFS financial assets:
Equity securities 152,484 - 152,484
Malaysian government papers - 177,601 177,601
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia - 468,948 468,848
Negotiable Islamic certificates
of deposits - 23,922 23,922
Trust funds 1.581 - 1,581
Tolal assets 154,065 670,471 824,536
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONT'D.}
(v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (cont'd.)

General takafui fund (cont'd.)

{ Valuation techniques using: |

t.evel 1 Level 2
Quoted Observahle
market prices inputs Total
RM'000 RM'000 RAM'0O0O
1.07.2011
Assets
AFS financial assets;
Equity securities 149,121 - 149,121
Mataysian government papers - 174,695 174,685
Unquoted debt securities in Malaysia - 443,636 443,636
Negotiable istamic certificates
of deposits - 23,135 23,135
Trust funds 2,503 - 2,503
Total assets 151,624 641,468 793,090
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356. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

(v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (cont'd.)

Family takaful fund

B Vatuation techniques using:
Ltevel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Observable Significant
market prices inputs  unobservable inputs
RVI'000 RMQ00 RM'C00
31.12.2012
Assels
AFS financial assels;
Equity
securities 601,145 - -
Malaysian
government
papers - 277,861 -
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia - 1,306,083 -
Negotiable istamic
certificates
of deposits - 18,597 -
Trust funds 23,686 - -
FVTPL financial
investraents:

228

- Total
RM'000

601,145
277,861
1,308,083

16,597
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (cont'd,}

Family takaful fund {cont'd,)

{ Valuation techniques using:

Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3
Quoted Observable Significant
market prices inputs unobservable inputs Total
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
31.12.2012 {cont'd.)
Assets (cont'd}
Malaysian
government
papers - 921,405 - 921,405
Unguoted debt
securities in
Malaysia - 3,421,175 - 3,421,175
Negotiable islamic
certificates
of deposits - 100,203 - 100,203
HFT financial investments:
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia - 5,847 - 5,847
Foreign Notes - - 7,731 7,731
Tetal assets 524,831 6,049 171 7,731 6,681,733
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABHLITIES (CONT'D.)

{v} Fair Vaiue Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (cont'd.}

Family takaful fund {cont'd.)

{ Valuation techniques using:

{evel 1
Quoted
market prices
RM'O0C

31.12.2011

Assefs
AFS financial assets:
Eqguity
secirities
Malaysian
governmaent
papers
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia
Negotiable
islamic cerfificates
of deposits
Trust funds
FVTPL financial
investments:
Malaysian government
papers
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia
Negotiable
islamic certificates
of deposits

Leve] 2
Observabie
inputs
RM'000

226,142

1,091,269

15,975

772,039

2,842 585

86,492

228

Level 3

Significant
unchservabie inputs
RM'000

Total
RM'000

625,230

226,142

1,081,269

15,875
17,088

772,039

2,842 585

96,492
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (cont'd.)

Family takaful fund (cont'd.)

| Valuation techniques using:

Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3
Quoted Observable Significant
market prices inputs  unobservable inputs Total
RM 000 " RM'Q00 RA'OGO RM000
31.12.2011 {cont'd.)
HFT financial investments:
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia - 49,357 - 48,357
Negotiable
Islamic
certificates
of deposits - 10,755 - 10,758
Foreign Notes - - 8,508 8,506
Total assets 642 318 9,104,614 8,508 5,755 438
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36. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {CONTD.)

{v} Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy (cont'd.)

Family takaful fund {cont'd.})

| Valuation techniques using:

Level 1
Quoted
market prices
RM'000

1.07.2011

Assets
AFS financial assets:
Eqity
securities 633,150
Malaysian
government
papers -
Unquoted debt
securities in
Malaysia -
Negotiable
Islamic certificates
of deposits -
Trust funds 18,180
FVTPL financial
investments:
Mataysian
government
papers -
Unquated debt
securifies in
Malaysia -
Negotiable
islamic certificates
of deposits -

Level 2
Observabie
inputs
RM'000

219,670

955,843

18,785

778,183

2,493,012

116,911

230

Level 3

Significant
unchservable inputs
RM'006

Totat
RM'000

633,150

219,670

955 843

18,785

18,180

776,163

2,493,012

116,911
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35. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT'D.)

{vi) Fair Value Disclosures Based on 3-Level Hierarchy {cont'd.)

Family takafut fund (cont'd.)

{ Valuation techniques using:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Observable Significant
markef prices inputs  unobservable inputs Total
RM'G00 RM'ODO RM'000 RM'00C
1.07.2011 {cont'd.)
Assets {cont'd.)
HFT finangcial investments:
Unquoted debt
securifies in
Malaysia - 54,735 - 54 735
Negotiable
Istamic
cerifficates of
deposits - 50,129 - 20,128
Foreign Notes - - 11,138 11,138
Total assets 651,340 4 685,148 11,138 5,347 626
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35. FAIR VALUES HIERARCHY (CONTD)

{b) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value hierarchy

AFS3 financial assetls

31.12.2012

As at 1 January/31 December 2012
31,12.2011

As at 1 July 2011

Net fair vaiue loss recognised in

other comprehensive income
As at 31 December 2011

Family takaful fund
31.12.2012

As at 1 January 2012

Net fair value loss recognised in other
tomprehensive incomefincome statement

Disposal

As at 31 December 2012

232

Unquoted

Equity
Securities

Shareholder's
fund
RAMO0G

32

230

(198)

32

Foreign Notes

HFT
financial
asseis
RM'000

8,508

571
{(1.348)

7,731
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35. FAIR VALUES HIERARCHY {CONT'D.)

(b} Reconciliation of Leve! 3 fair vaiue hierarchy (Cont'd.)

Foreign Notes

HFT
financial
assets
RM'000
Family takaful fund (cont'd.)
31.12.2011
As at 1 duly 2011 11,138
Net fair value loss recognised in other
comprehensive incomefincome staternent (294}
Disposal (2,338)
As at 31 December 2011 8,506

36, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(i} Counter claim on litigated case

In 2004, the Company commenced a civil suit against a third party (“the First Defendant™
and all the guarantors for the failure o pay twe monthly instalments amounting o RM0.8
million. The First Defendant counter claimed for loss and damage amounting to RM283.8
million as a result of the Company’s alleged faiure to release the batance of the facility of
RM7.5 million. It was alleged that the First Defendant was unable to carry on with its
preject and therefore had suffered loss and damage.

The Company’s solicitors were of the opinion that the First Defendant bore the burden of

proving all allegations against the Company which was contained in the statement of
defence and counterclaim. In addition, the First Defendant was obliged to prove, on the
balance of probabilities, the loss and damage purportedly suffersd as a result of the
Company's actions at the material time. The Company's appiication for Summary
Judgment was heard on 14 May 2009 and aliowed by the Kuala Lumpur High Court
{"KLHC"}. In addition, the KLHMC ordered that the First Defendant’s counter claim against
the Company be dismissed,
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36. CONTINGENT LIARILITIES {CONT'D.)
{i) Counter claim on litigated case {Gont'd.)

The First Defendant then filed a Notice of Motion to the Court of Appeal for stay of
execution and to appeal against the decision of the KLHC dated 14 May 2009, During
the hearing of the application for stay of execution on 28 Qciober 2009, the Court of
Appeal had dismissed the application with cost.

The First Defendant's appeal against the decision of the KLHC dated 14 May 2009 was
neard by the Court of Appeal on 4 March 2010 which had allowed the First Defendant's
appeal with cost. Thus, the Summary Judgment granted by the KLHC on 14 May 2009
was set aside and the striking out of the Defendants’ counter-claim was now overturned.
The Court of Appeal had directed the matler to be set down for full trial.

The full tdal concluded on 29 June 2011 and on 21 September 2011 the KLHC had
dismissed the Defendants' counter-ciaim against the Company and aflowed judgment to
be entered against the Defendants. The First, Second and Fourth Defendants then filed
for a stay of execution of the Judgment dated 21 September 2011 and on 8 December
2011, the KLHC dismissed the said application with costs of RM1,000.

The First, Second and Fourth Defendanis had filed for appeal against the decision
dated 21 September 2011 to the Court of Appeal and the Court had fixed 20 February
2013 as the next hearing date.

The solicifors of the Company are of the view that the Company has a more than even
chance of success based on the merits of the case and, accordingly, the Company
should be able to maintain the judgment at the disbursed sum less payments received
o dale.
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONT'D.}
(ii} Letter of demand from service provider

On 22 Gctober 2012, the Company and its fellow subsidiary had terminated the services
of a service provider on the grounds that they had not complied with the services
required of them under a service level agreement between the service provider and the
Company and its fellow subsidiary. On 28 November 2012, the service provider had, via
its solicitors, issued a letter of demand against the Company and its fellow subsidiary for
a particular sum, alleged fo be amounts owing to the service provider for cutstanding
claims by Medical providers. In respect of the amounts claimed by the service pravider,
management is of the opinion that the claimed amounts were not substantiated and,
thus, no payments were made. The Company's and its fellow subsidiary's solicitors had
advised management that the Company and ifs follow subsidiary had a reasonable
defence against the claim until such fime as sufficient evidence is given by the service
provider o support the claimed amounts. Accordingly, the management of the Company
and its fellow subsidiary are of the view that an accrual for the claimed amounts is not
necessary as the alleged armounis are not substantiated by documentary evidence.

235



